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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission File Number 0-23125
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California 33-0238801
(State or Other Jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer
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12525 Chadron Avenue, Hawthorne, Californie 90250
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Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code(310) 978-0516
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afie Act:

Common Stock, no par value
(Title of Class)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢ifie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vielbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405ed8éturities Act.  Yesd No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes:[d
No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementstfe past 90 days. YedX] No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowdgdig definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlearge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, poa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRnle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer]] Accelerated filelX] Non-accelerated filéd
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgfe Act). Yes:O No

The aggregate market value of the registrant’sngaéind non-voting common stock held by non-affisatomputed by reference to the
price at which the common stock was last sold aB@rember 29, 2006, the last business day of tfistrant’s most recently completed
second fiscal quarter was $350,799,358.

The number of shares outstanding of the regissammmmon stock as of September 10, 2007 was 14836,
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement relatinghe 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (tdiled subsequently) are
incorporated by reference into Part IIl.
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PART |

Forward Looking Statements

This report contains “forward-looking statementsthin the meaning of the Private Securities LitigatReform Act of 1995,
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as anednahd Section 21E of the Securities Exchange At®84, as amended. Forward-looking
statements relate to expectations concerning rsdtiat are not historical facts. Words such asjg&gts,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,”
“expects,” “intends,” “may,” “should,” “will,” “woud,” “will be,” “will continue,” “will likely resul t" and similar words and expressions are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Wé&dieve that the expectations reflected in thevéod-looking statements are reasonable,
but those expectations may not prove to be coriqtortant factors that could cause our actuallteso differ materially from those
expectations are disclosed in this report, inclgdimithout limitation, those described in Parttérh 1, “Business,” Part I, Item 1A, “Risk
Factors” and Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Distmssand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuoft©peration” as well as elsewhere in
this report and other documents previously fileth@reafter filed by us from time to time with thec8rities and Exchange Commission. Such
factors, of course, do not include all factors tinéght affect our business and financial conditidlihough we believe that the assumptions
upon which our forward-looking statements are basedeasonable, such assumptions could proveitebeurate and actual results could
differ materially from those expressed in or imgligy the forward-looking statements. All forwardyrking statements contained in this report
are qualified in their entirety by this stateméffe undertake no obligation other than as may beired| under securities laws to publicly
update or revise any forward-looking statementstivr as a result of new information, future eventstherwise.

”ou ” ou ”

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

OSI Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries is a vdlyidategrated designer and manufacturer of speeélelectronic systems and
components for critical applications. We sell otmqucts in diversified markets, including homelaedurity, healthcare, defense and
aerospace. Our company was incorporated in 19&alifornia. Our principal office is located at 1Z6€hadron Avenue, Hawthorne,
California 90250.

We have three operating divisions: (a) Securitgyfling security and inspection systems; (b) Healtk, providing patient monitoring,
diagnostic cardiology and anesthesia systems;@rdgtoelectronics and Manufacturing, providingcpkzed electronic components for
affiliated end-products divisions, as well as fpplcations in the defense and aerospace markatsm@ others.

In our Security division, we design, manufacturd ararket security and inspection systems worldwaedend users under the “Rapiscan
Systems” trade name. Rapiscan Systems productsaceto inspect baggage, cargo, vehicles and oljects for weapons, explosives, drugs
and other contraband, and to screen people. Thedeagis are also used for the safe, accurate diegbaf verification of cargo manifests for
the purpose of assessing duties and monitoringxtpert and import of controlled materials. Rapis&sstems products fall into four
categories: baggage and parcel inspection, cargjeemcle inspection, hold (checked) baggage sangeand people screening.

In our Healthcare division, we design, manufacamd market patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiglagd anesthesia systems
worldwide to end users primarily under the “Spalsldrade name. These products are used by cavalprs in critical care, emergency and
perioperative areas within hospitals as well assjatigns offices, medical clinics and ambulatorygeuy centers. We also offer centralized
cardiac safety core lab services in connection wlitiical trials by or on behalf of pharmaceuticampanies and clinical research
organizations.

In our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing divisiarg design, manufacture and market optoelectroniccds and value-added
manufacturing services worldwide for use in a breatye of applications, including aerospace andrief electronics, security and inspec
systems, medical imaging and diagnostics, comg
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tomography (CT), fiber optics, telecommunicatiogesming, office automation, computer peripherals iaddstrial automation. We sell our
optoelectronic devices under the “OSI Optoelecttghirade name and perform our value-added manufagtservices under the “OSI
Electronics” trade name. We provide our optoelettraevices and value-added manufacturing sert@esiginal equipment manufacturers,
as well as to our own Security and Healthcare aims Our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing divisadso designs, manufactures and
markets weapons simulation systems under the “@&1M3e Systems” trade name, toll and traffic mamege systems under the “OSI
LaserScan” trade name and peripheral bone dendiosrend ultrasound bone sonometers under the d@ster” trade name.

In fiscal 2007, revenues from the Security divistanounted to $186.6 million, or approximately 3586ar revenues; revenues from
Healthcare division amounted to $233.2 millionapproximately 44% of our revenues; and revenues ftee Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing division amounted to $112.5 milli@m,approximately 21% of revenues. Additional infation concerning reporting segme
is available in Note 16 to our Consolidated FinahStatements.

Industry Overview

We sell our security and inspection systems ani@éqatnonitoring, diagnostic cardiology and anesthegstems primarily to end-users,
while we design and manufacture our optoelectrdeigces and value-added subsystems primarily fginal equipment manufacturers.

Security. A variety of technologies are currently useatidwide in security and inspection applicatiomsluding computed
tomography, transmission and backscatter x-rayahdgtection, trace detection and x-ray, gammaara/neutron analysis. We believe that
the market for security and inspection products edghtinue to be affected by the threat of tertdrisidents and by new government mand
and appropriations for security and inspection potslin the United States and internationally.

The September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks on thddMoade Center and the Pentagon using hijackdidexis led to nationwide shifts in
transportation and facilities security policiesoBly following these attacks, Congress passedithation and Transportation Security Act
and integrated many U.S. security-related agenitiekiding the Federal Aviation Administration, énthe U.S. Department of Homeland
Security. Under its directive from Congress, th& \Department of Homeland Security has since uakientnumerous initiatives to prevent
terrorists from entering the country, hijackindiairs, and obtaining and trafficking in weaponsrass destruction and their components, to
secure sensitive U.S. technologies and to ideatify screen high-risk cargo containers before theyoaded onto vessels destined for the
U.S., among others. These projects, known, for gkanas the Strategic Border Initiative, the Custéfnade Partnership Against Terrorism
and the U.S. Customs and Border Protection Cont&eeurity Initiative, have resulted in an increhdemand for security and inspection
products both in the United States and other nation

Projects underway in the United States, such abli8eCustoms and Border Protection Container $gduitiative and the Customs-
Trade Partnership Against Terrorism, have creatgolpde effect in other areas of the world becah®y call on other nations to bolster their
port security strategies, including acquiring opnoving their security and inspection equipmente Titernational market for non-intrusive
inspection equipment, therefore, continues to ed@ancountries that ship goods directly to the éthBtates are required to improve their
security infrastructure.

The U.S. Congress recently passed legislatiomtiagidated the inspection of international maritimego destined for the United Stal
domestic civil aviation cargo, and for radiologieald nuclear threats in cargo entering the UniteteS. Certain of our cargo and vehicle
inspection systems are already being used intemslty and by the U.S. government to comply withsth mandates.

Furthermore, the U.S. Department of Homeland SacsiiScience and Technology Directorate has suppdhie development of new
security inspection technologies and products. 8agurity division



Table of Contents

participates in a number of such research and derednt efforts, including projects to develop neshinologies for radiation and nuclear
materials detection, aviation screening and suibimaber detection. The Science and Technology irate has also initiated programs for
the development of technologies capable of pratgdiighways, railways and waterways from terraatsack.

In addition to these homeland protection activjttee U.S. Department of Defense has also beginvést more heavily in technologies
and services that screen would-be attackers b#fegeare able to harm U.S. and allied forces.

Similar initiatives by international organizatiosisch as the European Union have also resultedjiovaing worldwide demand for
airline, cargo, port and border inspection techgi@s. For example, the European Union is expectésktie uniform performance standards
for people, cargo, mail and parcel and hold baggageening systems as well as new directives celgiecifically to maritime security. We
anticipate that the promulgation of these new staslwill establish performance baselines agaihgtiwour Security division will be able to
direct certain of its research and developmentdipgrand market its products to customers locatetié European Union.

As a result of these and other changes, salesrafemurity and inspection products have grown aspewed to pre-September 11, 2001
levels. Major international projects recently iig@d or currently underway include system instéias in Hong Kong, India, Jamaica,
Malaysia, Mexico, Romania, South Korea and Taiveanong others. These sites contain various cargedati®n product offerings, including
mobile, fixed and relocatable high-energy x-ray piteogamma-ray and hybrid x-ray/thermo neutron gsialscanning systems. We anticipate
that there may be growing demand from governmemdscammercial enterprises for increasingly soptaséd solutions to screening vehic
trucks, ocean-going cargo, rail cars and air paletainers.

Healthcare. Healthcare is a rapidly growing sector thromgtmost of the world and especially in many Asaad Latin American
economies. In much of the developed world, inclgdinthe United States and Europe, an aging pdpul& also fueling growth.

Many factors such as a nursing shortage in theedr$tates and Europe, stricter government requirenadfecting the staffing and
accountability and shrinking reimbursements froraltheinsurance organizations are forcing healthpaogiders to do more with less. Our
Healthcare division designs, manufactures and nmgkeducts that respond to these new economieddry helping hospitals reduce costs
while maintaining or improving the quality of cateir physicians and nurses are able to deliver.

We are a global manufacturer and distributor ofgméitmonitoring and clinical networking solutiore use primarily in hospitals. We
design, manufacture and market patient monitorgigt®ns for critical, emergency and perioperatiege areas of the hospital, wired and
wireless networks, ambulatory blood pressure monand medical data services, all aimed at progidaregivers with timely patient
information. By making critical patient informationore readily accessible both inside and outsidéhtispital, delays in decision-making can
be reduced, length of stay can be shortened aatirtemt errors can be minimized.

In February 2005, we acquired Blease Medical, 8almanufacturer and distributor of anesthesiavdgfisystems, ventilators and
vaporizers. We sell these products primarily topitass for use in operating rooms and anesthesliacition areas as well as in magnetic
resonance imaging (MRI) facilities. In addition,@sarmaceutical companies develop new anesthesidsafpr the worldwide market, or as
generic alternatives to patented anesthesia fogrhdaome available, we work closely with them topgut their new product introductions.
As a result, we also sell systems and componeimth, & anesthesia vaporizers and ventilators,thjitecpharmaceutical companies and o
manufacturers of anesthesia delivery systems.
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In July 2006, we acquired Del Mar Reynolds, a globanufacture and distributor of cardiac monitorgygtems, including Holter
recorders, ECG, stress systems and related sofamarservices to hospitals. The acquired operatitstsincluded a core laboratory business
that provides clinical trial services to pharmaamltcompanies and to clinical research organipatidhese operations have since been
integrated into the Healthcare division’s diagnostrdiology and clinical trial services businesses

This division has grown from approximately $11 ioifl in annual revenues in fiscal 2003 to approxetya$233 million in fiscal 2007,
primarily as a result of the acquisitions of SpabslMedical, Blease Medical and Del Mar Reynoldgimy fiscal 2006, we formed Spacel:
Healthcare, Inc. to serve as a holding companwlfaf the business operations of our Healthcavesidin and then completed an initial public
offering of approximately 20% of Spacelabs Healthtsatotal issued and outstanding shares. The nsslyed shares began trading on the
Alternative Investment Market (AIM), a market adistered by the London Stock Exchange, on Octobe2@05 under the ticker symbol
“SLAB.” During fiscal 2007, we repurchased sharéSpacelabs Healthcare at a cost of $4.5 milliowoAJune 30, 2007, we owned
approximately 84% of Spacelabs Healthcare.

Optoelectronics and Manufacturing. Our optoelectronic devices are used in a watléety of applications such as satellites, laser
guidance systems, range finders, computer perifshanal other applications that require the conwersif optical signals into electronic
signals. Because optoelectronic devices and valdeeéhsubsystems can be used in a wide variety afanement control and monitoring
applications, they are also used in a broad arfaydastrial applications and are key componenth@telecommunications and fiber optics
industries. Historically, we have offered value-edananufacturing services to purchasers of ouredgttronic devices, including to our
Security and Healthcare divisions. More recenttyvbver, we have begun to expand such servicesdwdimg complete turn-key and box-
build manufacturing services, in which we can desarquire materials, produce, test and supplytreleic systems and components to
purchasers of optoelectronic devices and to others.

We believe that recent advances in technology eddations in the cost of key components of optasac systems, including
computer processing power and memory, have broaddéeenarket by enabling the use of optoelectrdeidgces in a greater number of
applications. In addition, we see a trend amongjmmal equipment manufacturers to increasingly autse the design and manufacture of
optoelectronic devices as well as value-added stbs)s to fully-integrated, independent manufactyiée us, who may have greater
specialization, broader expertise and the flexipth respond in shorter time periods than mogioal equipment manufacturers can
accomplish in-house. We believe that our leveletigal integration, substantial engineering resesy expertise in the use and application of
optoelectronic technology and low-cost internatiananufacturing operations enable us to compegcgdely in the market for
optoelectronic devices and for value-added manufan services.

We have also penetrated several related marketdepand on our optoelectronic technologies anctrelieics manufacturing
capabilities. For example, we sell a series of tsighed photodetectors for use in fiber optic systsath as Gigabit Ethernet, Fiber Channel
and other telecommunication and data communicaigiications. Through system engineering, prodagetbpment, rapid prototyping and
volume manufacturing, we develop, manufacture aacket laser-based weapons simulation systems fensle and homeland security
applications. Products include tactical engagemigmtilation systems, small arms transmitters, cdletrguns and a variety of targeting
systems. We also develop, manufacture and sel-besed remote sensing devices that are useddotdetd classify vehicles in toll and
traffic management systems.

Growth Strategy

We believe that one of our primary competitive isgt@s is our expertise in the cost-effective desigd manufacture of specialized
electronic systems and components for criticaliappbns. As a result, we have leveraged, and thtercontinue to leverage, such expertise
and capacity to gain price, performance and aglityantages over our competitors in the securéglthcare and optoelectronics fields, and
to translate such
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advantages into profitable growth in those fieldlisthe same time, we continually seek to identi&wmarkets in which our core expertise
and capacity will provide us with competitive adieages. Key elements of this strategy include:

Capitalizing on Global Reach. We operate from locations in North America,&\and Europe. We view our international operatas
providing an important strategic advantage overmetitors. First, international manufacturing faa allow us to take advantage of
competitive labor rates and favorable tax regufetim order to be a low cost producer. Secondjraarnational offices strengthen our sales
and marketing efforts and our ability to service agpair our systems by providing direct accesgdwving foreign markets and to our
existing international customer base. Third, midtimanufacturing locations allow us to reduce d@glptimes to our global customer base. In
the future, we intend to develop new sources ofufearturing and sales capabilities to maintain amubece the benefits of our international
presence.

Capitalizing on Vertical Integration. Our vertical integration provides several adagas in each of our divisions. These advantages
include reduced manufacturing and delivery timewgr costs due to our access to competitive intienmal labor markets, direct sourcing of
raw materials and quality control. We also belithat we offer significant added value to our custosrby providing a full range of vertically-
integrated services including component designcarstbmization, subsystem concept design and apiplicangineering, product prototyping
and development, efficient pre-production and shantand high volume manufacturing. We believe thatvertical integration differentiates
us from many of our competitors and provides vadueur customers who can rely on us to be an iatedrsupplier. We intend to continue to
leverage our vertically integrated services to rgmeater value for our customers in the desighraanufacture of our products.

Capitalizing on the Growing Market for Security anidhispection Systems Heightened attentiveness to terrorist and atkeurity
threats may continue to drive growth in the maflesecurity and inspection systems, not only am&portation security, but in facilities
security and event security. In addition, the treowlard increased international transportationamds may result in growth in the market for
cargo inspection systems that are capable of saigshipping containers for contraband and asgjstirstoms officials in the verification of
shipping manifests. Package screening by freightdoders also represents a potential growing seatonew regulations in Europe require
such screening and awareness of the need for sumbning grows in the U.S. We intend to continuexipand our sales and marketing effi
both domestically and internationally, and to calpie on opportunities to replace, service and aggexisting security installations. We also
intend to continue to develop new security andéesipn technologies, such as our real time tomdgrgpoducts, and may enhance and
expand our current product offerings through selecicquisitions to better address new applicataorssecurity industry demands.

Improving and Complementing Existing Medical Techlugies. We develop and market patient monitoring systamd diagnostic
cardiology products, anesthesia delivery systemstitators and vaporizers that utilize patient niaing technologies. As a result, we are
able to market and sell many of our product offgsithrough shared sales channels and distribugtmanks. Our efforts to improve our
existing medical technologies are focused on magat@gnt information available to care providerghbat the bedside as well as in other
or even away from the hospital, thereby reducingtdemands on physicians and nurses, enabling napicetreatment decisions and
improving patient care. Overall, our efforts at noying our existing medical diagnostic and anes¢hdslivery technologies will also
continue to concentrate on the development of @swvilsat make it possible for institutions from ktwspitals to small clinics and physicians’
offices to obtain accurate, precise, reliable avst-effective results.

Selectively Entering New Markets. We intend to continue to selectively enter mearkets that complement our existing capabiliti¥
the design, development and manufacture of speetklectronic systems and components for critipalications such as security and
inspection and patient monitoring, diagnostic aaljy and anesthesia systems. We believe that loyfacturing end products that rely on
our
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existing technological capabilities, we will levgeaour integrated design and manufacturing infuastire to capture greater margins and to
build a larger presence in new end markets thaemteattractive competitive dynamics. We intendabieve this strategy through internal
growth and through selective acquisitions.

Acquiring New Technologies and Companies. Our success depends in part on our abiligottinually enhance and broaden our
product offerings in response to changing techriekgustomer demands and competitive pressurehiaiedeveloped expertise in our
various lines of business and other areas thrautgihnal research and development efforts as wehrasigh selective acquisitions. As a
vertically integrated designer and manufacturespafcialized electronic systems and componentsifizat applications, we have, since our
inception as a company, looked for acquisition opputies to broaden our technological expertise eapabilities, lower our manufacturing
costs or facilitate our entry into new markets. Tdllowing are recent acquisitions we have made:

In March 2004, we completed the acquisition of Setes Medical based in Issaquah, Washington, frstrumentarium Corporation,
now a subsidiary of General Electric Company. Ttmuégsition price was approximately $47.9 millioncash (net of cash acquired), includ
acquisition costs. In March 2007, we settled audispvith General Electric Company regarding thecpase and received $15 million. The
receipt of this amount from General Electric Comphas been recorded as Other Income in our CordetidStatement of Operations for the
fiscal ended June 30, 2007. Spacelabs is a leadiigl manufacturer and distributor of patient ntoring systems for critical care and
anesthesia, wired and wireless networks, clinitfarmation connectivity solutions, ambulatory blqueéssure monitors and medical data
services. These are areas in which we had conbigdrderest as they represented a natural extemsiour engineering and manufacturing
expertise and would add to our presence in thecakdevice industry.

In June 2004, we purchased a 75% equity interéSXiR Limited, a United Kingdom based research agektbpment company that
develops real time tomography systems and in Deee2®04 we acquired the remaining 25%. As companrsti the selling shareholders
for this remaining interest, we have agreed to nwhkeain royalty payments based on sales of CXRdyrcts. In March 2006, our Security
division received its first contract for such ateys, known as the Rapiscan RTT120 CT. The systestillisinder development and subject to
the inherent risks and uncertainties of producettgyment. There is still no assurance of the swfekesompletion of development, timely or
otherwise, or of the characteristics of any finaduct, or whether such final product will achiegstification by regulatory authorities.

In February 2005, we acquired Blease Medical bas€&hesham, United Kingdom. We paid $9.3 milliorcash (net of cash acquired),
including acquisition costs. Furthermore, during three years following the close, contingent adergition is payable based on Blease’s net
revenues, provided certain requirements are met.cohtingent consideration is capped at £6.25anil{approximately $12.5 million as of
June 30, 2007). The acquisition of Blease expamelportfolio of products offered by our patient ritoring, diagnostic cardiology and
anesthesia systems companies, enabling us to geaetbmarket products for the perioperative market.

In July 2006, we acquired the Del Mar Reynolds Gardiivision of Ferraris Group PLC. Pursuant totérens of the acquisition
agreement, we made an initial cash payment of $28l@n, subject to a working capital adjustmentao an adjustment of plus or minus
$1.9 million based upon revenue and earnings efuitDel Mar Reynolds for the 13-month period eigdSeptember 30, 2006. In September
2006, Ferraris Group PLC paid $1.7 million in coctien with the working capital adjustment and inMdmber 2006 it paid an additional $
million as a result of the failure of Del Mar Reyd®to meet certain revenue and earnings resulthél3-month period ending
September 30, 2006. This acquisition broadenegdhiolio of products that we are able to offer tiespital market, especially in Germany
and the United Kingdom, with the addition of candmonitoring systems, as well as a core laboratasiness that provides clinical trial
services to pharmaceutical companies and to clinésgarch organizations. The results of operationBel Mar Reynolds have been
included in our Consolidated Financial Statemeatsfahe date of acquisition.

6
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Products and Technology

We design, develop, manufacture and sell prodactging from complex security and inspection systensatient monitoring,
diagnostic cardiology and anesthesia systems toadés optoelectronic devices and value-added stdrags

Security and Inspection Systems We design, manufacture and market securityirspection systems worldwide to end users under
the “Rapiscan Systems” name. Rapiscan Systems @odte used to inspect baggage, cargo, peoplieleghnd other objects for weapons,
explosives, drugs and other contraband. Thesemsgsiee also used for the safe, accurate and effieeification of cargo manifests for the
purpose of assessing duties and monitoring thereapd import of controlled materials. Rapiscant8ys products fall into four categories:
baggage and parcel inspection, cargo and vehisfeettion, hold (checked) baggage screening andepsoreening.

As a result of the terrorist attacks of Septemlder2D01, and subsequent attacks in other worldieickgtions, security and inspection
products have increasingly been used at a wideerahfacilities other than airports, such as boxtessings, railway stations, seaports, cruise
line terminals, government and military installacand nuclear facilities. As a result of the adddl markets, we have successfully
diversified our sales channels for security angéction products.

Many of our security and inspection systems in eddhe baggage and parcel inspection, cargo ahitleenspection, hold baggage
screening and people screening product categariebioe the use of x-ray technology with our optoeteics capabilities. For example,
some of our products include dual- or multi-enexgyy technology with computer software enhancealgimg technology to facilitate the
detection of materials such as explosives, weaparsptics, currency or other contraband. Whileathy systems produce a tvdimensioné
image of the contents of the inspected objectdtiad-energy x-ray systems also measure the x-rsgrption of the inspected object’s
contents at two x-ray energies to determine thm@toumber, mass and other characteristics of ifgcts contents. The various organic and
inorganic substances in the inspected object afpeagyerators of the inspection systems in var@mlsrs and this visual information can be
used to identify and differentiate the inspectedamals. Our baggage and parcel inspection, cangovahicle inspection and hold baggage
screening inspection systems range in size fronpeatritabletop systems to large systems comprisitigeebuildings in which trucks,
shipping containers or pallets are inspected.

Our cargo and vehicle inspection applications, lmiclv trucks, shipping containers, pallets and olhkere objects can be inspected, are
designed in various configurations, including fix&te, gantry, relocatable, portal and mobile systeThese products are primarily used to
verify the contents of trucks or cargo containers t detect the presence of contraband. They sif@ificant improvements over past
methods of cargo screening, such as manual seaahesr cargo systems are faster, more thorougld@amot subject the cargo to pilferage.
Entire shipping containers or trucks containingsddy packed goods can be screened rapidly.

Many of our cargo and vehicle inspection systenig@tonizing radiation, such as high-energy x-taygamma-ray beams, in
conjunction with digital imaging equipment to nantrusively inspect objects and present images tasector, showing shapes, sizes,
locations and relative densities of the contentanivof these systems, such as the Rapiscan Edgjlsh was designed and developed under
contract with U.S. Customs and Border Protectiahthie U.S. Department of Defense, have been louitidet specific customer inspection
requirements.

Other cargo and vehicle inspection products autimaiét and non-intrusively detect chemical signatiindicating the presence of
explosives and other contraband through the upalséd fast neutron and thermal neutron technadogi® opposed to ionizing radiation.
Pulsed fast neutron and thermal neutron technadqugemit the operator to inspect cargo, vehiclescamtainers based on the distinctive
chemical composition of explosives, drugs or ot@rtraband.
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Our Security division is the only competitor in timarket offering x-ray, gamma-ray and neutron-basatkrial specific technologies.
As a result, we believe that we offer the broatisstinology platform in the cargo and vehicle insipacsystems industry. This broad platfc
also permits us to offer customers hybrid solutiofilizing two or more of the technologies togetttbereby optimizing flexibility,
performance and cost to meet the customer’s uragpécation requirements. Cargo and vehicle inspraystems recently installed or
currently underway include system installationthia United States, China, Hong Kong, India, MalayBsexico, Romania, South Korea and
Taiwan, among others.

Our Security division also offers people screempngducts such as a line of “Metor” brand wétkeugh metal detection products for
at security checkpoints at airports, amusementspédnks, courthouses, government buildings, spoetsas and other venues and the
Rapiscan Secure 1000 personnel screener, whictemgesely low dose backscatter x-ray imaging tectecontraband and weapons
concealed underneath clothing and hair. The RapiSegure 1000 provides enhanced screening comfzaneetal detectors as it displays
anomalies caused by very small amounts of metak#isas non-metallic items. As a result, the Ragis8ecure 1000 can simultaneously
locate and detect conventional metal weapons, dsaw/eeramic knives, explosives, illicit drugsepious metals, cameras, recording devices
and other contraband or security threats.

The following table sets forth certain informatigiated to the standard security and inspectiodymts that we currently offer. We do,
however, also customize our standard productsit@gecific applications and customer requirements.

PRODUCT NAME /

PRODUCT LINE PRODUCT FAMILY TECHNOLOGY MARKET SEGMENT
Baggage and Parcel Inspection Rapiscan 500/600 series x-raysingle and Dual-energy x-ray  Checkpoint inspection at
systems airports, prisons, border

crossings and government
buildings; postal facilities for
mail screening

Cargo and Vehicle Inspection Rapiscan Eagle High energy x-ray Cargo and vehicle inspection at
Rapiscan VEDS Thermal Neutron Analysis gggorésrisborder crossings and
Rapiscan GaRDS Gamma ray P
Rapiscan PFN/ Pulsed Fast Neutron

Analysis

Hold Baggage Screening Rapiscan MVXR 5000 Multi-view, dual energy x-ray = Baggage inspection at airports
Rapiscan XRD 100 Dual energy -ray diffraction

People Screening Metor series of metal detectordletal detectors Checkpoint inspection at

) airports, border crossings,

Rapiscan Secure 1000 stadiums, prisons and

X-ray Backscatter government facilitie:

Patient Monitoring, Diagnostic Cardiology and Andsisia Systems. Our Healthcare businesses design, manufacharenarket their
products worldwide to end users primarily under‘®pacelabs” trade name.

Spacelabs products include “Ultraview SL” patierttritors, which are used primarily in perioperatigatical care and emergency care
environments. We also offer patient monitors fatually all applications in the hospital, includingonatal, pediatric and adult critical and
emergency care, as well as anesthesia and subeareteOur patient monitoring systems comprise manand central nursing stations
connected via hardwired or
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wireless networks, as well as stand-alone monittiare the patient data can be transported phygittalih one monitor to another as the
patient is moved. This ensures that hospital staffaccess patient data where and when it is egfjlin addition, these products are designed
with an “open architecturetd interact with hospital information systems. WM, based on Citrix thin client technology, is afigre of man

of these products which allows clinicians to viemdaontrol Microsoft Windows applications on theigat monitor’s display, eliminating the
need for separate terminals in the patient’s rostiending nurses can thereby check laboratory tesuld other reports, enter orders, review
protocols and do charting right at the patient'ddige. Inputs can be made using a mouse, keybodrtbachscreen.

In December 2006, we introduced the mCare 300 Bigihs Monitor, for instant access to essentidepatiata. The portable unit offers
electrocardiograph, respiration, SpO2 (Pulse Oxigenhon-invasive blood pressure and temperatuneitoring, along with an easy-to-use
touchscreen interface. The mCare 300 is primardyketed for use in low- to mid-acuity care enviramts where simplicity and portability
are important.

For electrocardiograph monitoring or multiparametemitoring of ambulatory patients, we offer a thgjtelemetry system. The system
operates in government-protected bands (608 andizland 1.4GHz), not used for private land mobéldio, business radio services or
broadcast analog and digital television. The SgédsetUltraview”Digital Telemetry solution comprises a lightweigimd compact transmitt
that enables monitoring of heart rate, ST segnaerttythmia and continuous SpO2 (Pulse Oximetryg Multiparameter transmitter also
integrates with the Spacelabs “Ultralite” ambulgtblood pressure monitor for the transmission aof-imvasive blood pressure values to a
central station or a multi-disclosure and inforroatsystem.

We are also a world leader in ambulatory blood saress monitoring, which is a routine procedure imgnBuropean countries and is
increasingly being used in the United States. Mamysicians are using ambulatory blood pressure tmang to detect “white coat”
hypertension, a condition in which people expereealevated blood pressure in the doctor’s office rot in their daily lives. Ambulatory
blood pressure monitoring is also used to adjusg tlerapies for hypertensive patients. It is estit that as many as 20% of the patients
are diagnosed with hypertension based on bloogpresneasurements taken in their physicians’ affare not actually hypertensive.
Ambulatory blood pressure monitoring helps imprdiegnostic accuracy and minimize the associatets @dsreatment.

In July 2006, our Healthcare division completedadbkquisition of the Del Mar Reynolds Cardiac dieisf Ferraris Group PLC, in
significant part for the purpose of augmentingdhesion’s diagnostic cardiology product offering®el Mar Reynolds has been developing
cardiac monitoring systems, including Holter systeand recorders, for over 40 years. Its “Pathfihded “Impresario” lines of Holter
analyzers offer users interactive control with athesd diagnostic parameters. Its “Lifecard” and &niecorders are worn by patients for u
seven days in order capture heart arrhythmiastlagtoccur in a patient only a few times per weekidnts that may be experiencing even
less frequent heart arrhythmias wear its “Cardi@abduct, which stays with the patient over selaveeks and transmits its findings over
the phone to a receiving station in the hospitahddition to these products, Del Mar Reynolds aféers other diagnostic cardiology prodt
such as the “Voyager” electrocardiogram seriesyd@direct” and “CH2000" stress test systems.

Our anesthesia delivery and ventilation group desand manufactures anesthesia delivery systemsthasia vaporizers and
ventilators. Our “Focus,” “Genius” and recentlyfehed “BleaseSirius” anesthesia delivery systerogige flexible anesthesia solutions for
most operating room environments, anesthesia ifmuateas, day surgery units, magnetic resonanagiig facilities and other areas where
the administration of anesthesia is required. Mtatim” anesthesia vaporizers and its line of amssthventilators are also designed to be
compatible with the anesthesia delivery systensewgéral other manufacturers. At the forefront iasthesia ventilation, this group recogni
the needs of clinicians and the clinical benefftaltowing patients to breathe without the assiséaof a ventilator {.e., on their own) as
much as possible while
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undergoing anesthesia. As a result, in 1999, tiismbecame the first to offer ventilators thapwakd patients to breathe spontaneously while
under anesthesia with the respiratory supportef/tntilator used only when necessary to overctraeffects of general anesthesia. In
addition, by incorporating spirometry loops int® Vientilators, which produce graphical displaysudtioe adequacy and state of a patient’s
ventilation, clinicians were able to carefully mamitheir patients and ensure the efficacy of tlelenof ventilation provided.

In fiscal 2007, we added seven new ventilatorsutoexisting product line, each of which enablericlans to enhance control over the
delivery of ventilation and more finely tune theéquirements to a surgical procedure and the iddalicharacteristics of a patient by actively
controlling flow into and out of the ventilationide system, throughout the entire respiratory cylcleaddition, each of these new ventilators
works in conjunction with a large 8.4 inch touclesar display. This screen, in conjunction with owappietary “Touch and Trak” user
interface is easy to use, allowing clinicians tou® greater attention on other aspects of patamet ¢n fiscal 2007, we launched the
BleaseSirius anesthesia delivery systems alongthitbe new ventilators in the United States.

The following table sets forth a description of there significant healthcare products that we eulyeoffer:

PRODUCT NAME /

PRODUCT LINE PRODUCT FAMILY MARKET SEGMENT
Anesthesia Delivery and 700 and 900 series Ventilators Ambulatory surgery centers
Ventilation BleaseSirius Operating rooms
Datum Vaporizer
Focus
Genius
Patient Monitoring and Ambulatory Blood Pressure Monitors All hospital care areas
Connectivity mCare 3000 Outpatient surgery centers
MOM (Maternal Obstetrical Monitors) Physician offices
Ultraview / Ultraview SL
Diagnostic Cardiology ARIA All hospital cardiology care areas
CardioCall Physician offices
LifeCard
Voyager

Stress Testing Syster

Optoelectronic Devices and Manufacturing Services.Optoelectronic devices generally consist ohlaattive and passive compone
Active components sense light of varying wavelesgthd convert the light detected into electrorgoals, whereas passive components
amplify, separate or reflect light. The active caments we manufacture consist of silicon, galliuseaide and indium gallium arsenide
photodetectors. Passive components include lepgses;s, filters, mirrors and other precision optjmaducts that are used by us in the
manufacture of our optoelectronic products or atd t others for use in telescopes, laser printagiers, microscopes and other detection
and vision equipment. The devices we manufactigdath standard products and products customizezpzific applications and are
offered either as components or as subsystems.

We have recently developed two-dimensional backviihated detector technology for security, health@and industrial CT
applications. This technology overcomes the lirnota of conventional detectors by providing finetattor pitch density. This is used in
high-resolution multi-slice CT scanners and othmgligations requiring improved image resolution.
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In addition to the manufacture of standard andiaigequipment manufacturer products, we also sgizeiin designing and
manufacturing customized value-added subsystemsstoin a wide range of products and equipmenboelectronic subsystem typically
consists of one or more optoelectronic devicesahattombined with other electronic componentsgatkaging for use in an end product.
The composition of a subsystem can range from plsiassembly of various optoelectronic devices dnatincorporated into other
subsystems (for example, a printed circuit boamtaiaing our optoelectronic devices) to completd-products (for example, pulse oximetry
equipment). Furthermore, we have expanded ourreldcs design and manufacturing capabilities botthé United States and in Asia with
enhanced, RoHS-compliant, box-build manufacturinyises and PC board assembly capabilities utdizitate-of-the-art automated surface
mount technology lines. As a result, we now offectonics manufacturing services for data andaignocessing, amplifier and processor
boards for medical equipment, musical tuning andisthardware, motor controls, power supplies, saweral other industrial applications
that do not utilize optoelectronic devices.

Markets, Customers and Applications

Security and Inspection Products. Most security and inspection products were el in response to civilian airline hijackings.
Consequently, a significant portion of our secuaity inspection products have been and continbe &old for use at airports. Recently,
however, our security and inspection products Hmeen used for security purposes at locations iitiaddo airports, such as courthouses,
office buildings, mailrooms, schools, prisons, higbfile locations such as Buckingham Palace, trentin and the Vatican and for high-
profile events such as the Olympic Games and thel®itl Games. Furthermore, as terrorist attackdhsascthe March 2004 bombings of
passenger trains at Atocha railway station in Madnd the July 2005 bombings of the London undempicand commuter bus systems
continue to occur, overall transportation and ttawiustry demands have increased, resulting ightened attention for our security and
inspection products. In addition, our security amspection products are increasingly being useadéor-security purposes, such as for cargo
inspection to detect narcotics and contraband aneérify manifests, prevention of pilferage at sesniductor manufacturing facilities, quality
assurance and the detection of gold and currency.

Our customers include, among many others, the Thr&hsportation Security Administration, U.S. Cussoamd Border Protection, U.S.
Department of Defense and Federal Bureau of Prisonise United States, as well as Heathrow andvigktAirports in the United Kingdom,
Chek Lap Kok Airport in Hong Kong, Ben Gurion Imetional Airport in Israel and the Malaysian AirpBoard in Malaysia.

Patient Monitoring, Diagnostic Cardiology and Andstsia Systems. Our patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiologydanesthesia
systems are manufactured and distributed globaily$e in critical care, emergency and periopegadieas within hospitals as well as
physicians offices, medical clinics and ambulatsuygery centers. We also provide wired and wiretesa/orks and clinical information
access solutions, ambulatory blood pressure menétod medical data services.

We have sold these products to organizations ssiéibeany Medical Center in Albany, Children’s Hasgé and Clinics of Minnesota,
New York and Tulane University Hospital and CliimcNew Orleans, Louisiana, Stichtermannklinik in Germany, LKW Villach in Austria
and Universitatsspital Zurich in Switzerland, amaongny other organizations, including Premier, lacdhpspital and healthcare system
alliance with approximately 1,500 affiliated hogtstand other healthcare sites.

Optoelectronic Devices and Electronics ManufactugrBervices. Our optoelectronic devices and value-addedysibéss are used in
a broad range of products by a variety of custontedsexample, they are utilized by customers enftllowing market segments: aerospace
and avionics; analytical and medical imaging; fibptics and telecommunications; gaming; homelaedrity; healthcare; military and
weapons simulation; office automation; and toll &madfic management. Major customers in these segsrnaclude: Honeywell, Raytheon,
Phillips Medical, JDS Uniphase, Bally Gaming, Gilani, Heidenhain, Smiths Medical, Somanetics, LegdMartin, Xerox and Florida
Department of Transportation, among others.
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Marketing, Sales and Service

We market and sell our security and inspection petalworldwide through a direct sales and markettaff of approximately 70
employees located in North America, Europe, Asid Aastralia, in addition to an expansive globawwk of independent and specialized
sales representatives. This sales staff is supgbbyte service organization located primarily inrtioAmerica, Europe and Asia, as well as a
global network of independent distributors. We alapport these sales and customer relations effgrtsoviding operator training,
computerized training and testing equipment, inatguservice support, software upgrades and settadeing for customer technicians.

We market and sell our patient monitoring, diagitosdrdiology and anesthesia systems worldwideutinaa direct sales and marketing
staff of approximately 260 sales personnel ands&#0ice personnel located in North America, Eurape Asia, in addition to a global
network of independent distributors. We also supfiase sales and customer service efforts by @iryioperator in-service training,
software updates and upgrades and service trafoirgustomer biomedical staff and distributors.

We market and sell our optoelectronic devices aldeadded manufacturing services, through both a dé@lets and marketing staff
approximately 40 employees located in North Ameritiarope and Asia, and indirectly through a glatetivork of independent sales
representatives and distributors. We also mairgairoridwide network of independent sales represigataand distributors. Our sales staff is
supported by an applications engineering group wimasmbers are available to provide technical supptiich includes designing
applications, providing custom tooling and prodessgration and developing products that meet ecostadefined specifications.

We consider our maintenance service operations gmtimportant element of our business. After #pration of our standard product
warranty periods, we are sometimes engaged byustiomers to provide maintenance services for czurtg and inspection products
through annual maintenance contracts. We providgiaty of service and support options for our grattimonitoring, diagnostic cardiology
and anesthesia systems customers, ranging fromletengn-site repair and maintenance service aeghene support to parts exchange
programs for customers with the internal expettisperform a portion of their own service needs. Wgkeve that our international
maintenance service capabilities allow us to bepaditive in selling our security and inspectionteyss as well as our patient monitoring,
diagnostic cardiology and anesthesia systems. &umitre, we believe that as the installed base tf tor security and inspection systems
and patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiology andsihesia systems increases, revenues generateddoh annual maintenance service
contracts and from the sale of replacement pattsnerease.

Research and Development

Our security and inspection systems are primaelyighed at our facilities in the United States imternationally in Finland, Malaysia,
India and the United Kingdom. These products inelatechanical, electrical, analog electronic, digitactronic and software subsystems,
which are all designed by us. In addition to prddiesign, we provide system integration servicaatggrate our products into turnkey
systems at the customer site. We support cooperaggearch projects with government agencies and¢easion, provide contract research
for our customers and government agencies.

Our patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiology amésthesia systems are primarily designed at oilitiein the United States and
internationally in Malaysia and the United KingdoB&uch systems include mechanical, electrical, aligifectronic and software subsystems,
all of which are designed by us. We are also ctlgrémvolved, both in the United States and inté¢iorzally, in several research projects air
at improving our medical systems and at expandingcarrent product line.

Our optoelectronic devices and value-added subsgstee primarily designed and engineered at otlitiag in the United States and
internationally in India, Malaysia, Norway and Sapgre. We engineer and
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manufacture subsystems to solve the specific agific needs of our original equipment manufactaustomers. In addition, we offer entire
subsystem design and manufacturing solutions. \Msider our engineering personnel to be an impogstension of our core sales and
marketing efforts.

In addition to close collaboration with our custamim the design and development of our currendyets, we maintain an active
program for the development and introduction of mpeaducts, enhancements and improvements to ostirexiproducts, including the
implementation of new applications of our technglog/e seek to further enhance our research andageuent program and consider such
program to be an important element of our busiaesisoperations. As of June 30, 2007, we engagemxippately 490 full-time engineers,
technicians and support staff. Our research andldpment expenses were $30.6 million in fiscal 2085.9 million in fiscal 2006 and $44
million in fiscal 2007. We intend to continue tos@st in our research and development efforts irfuhee.

Manufacturing and Materials

We currently manufacture our security and inspacsigstems in the United States, and internationiallpdia, Finland, Malaysia and
the United Kingdom. We currently manufacture ouigrd monitoring, diagnostic cardiology and anesthsystems in California and
Washington, and internationally in India, Malaysséngapore and the United Kingdom. We currently ofacture our optoelectronic devices
and valueadded subsystems in the United States and intenadliy in India, Indonesia, Malaysia and Norway.$¢lof our high volume, labc
intensive manufacturing and assembly is performeniafacilities in Indonesia and Malaysia. Sincestnof our customers currently are
located in the United States, Europe and Asiaability to assemble products in these markets aodige follow-on service from offices
located in these regions is an important compoagatr global strategy.

Our global manufacturing organization has expeitisgptoelectronic, microelectronic and integratetle-added assemblies for
commercial, medical, aerospace and defense indagpijcations. Our manufacturing includes silicoafev processing and fabrication,
optoelectronic device assembly and screening,ahéhthick film microelectronic hybrid assembliegiface mounted and thru-hole printed
circuit board electronic assemblies and value-ad@edces, including complete turn-key and box-dbuilanufacturing. We outsource certain
manufacturing operations, including certain sheetarfabrication and plastic components. The mastufang process for components and
subsystems consists of manual tasks performedilbgdstechnicians as well as automated tasks.

The principal raw materials and subcomponents irsptbducing our security and inspection systermmsish primarily of x-
ray generators, linear accelerators, detectors, atajuisition and computing devices, conveyor systand video monitors. A large portion of
the optoelectronic devices, subsystems and ciceumit assemblies used in our inspection and detesyistems are manufacturedhouse. Th
X-ray generators and certain metal enclosures insear baggage and parcel inspection systems spenaghnufactured in-house, while the x-
ray generators and linear accelerators used igango and vehicle inspection systems are purcHasedunaffiliated third party providers.
We purchase the x-ray tubes, computer hardwareeandin standard mechanical parts and some of etalranclosures from unaffiliated
third party providers.

The principal raw materials and subcomponents irsptbducing our patient monitoring, diagnosticdialogy and anesthesia systems
consist of printed circuit boards, housings, meatarassemblies, pneumatic devices, cables, fitatspackaging materials. We purchase
certain devices, including computers, peripherakasories and remote displays from unaffiliateditharty providers.

The principal raw materials and subcomponents irsptbducing our optoelectronic devices and valddeal subsystems consist of
silicon wafers, electronic components, light emgtdiodes, scintillation crystals,
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passive optical components, printed circuit boaadsl, packaging materials. The silicon-based opttraleic devices manufactured by us are
critical components in most of our products andsgatems. We purchase silicon wafers and otherref@ictcomponents from unaffiliated
third party providers.

For cost, quality control and efficiency reasons,generally purchase raw materials and subcompsaht from single vendors with
whom we have ongoing relationships. We do, howeyaslify second sources for most of our raw make@aad critical components, or have
identified alternate sources of supply. We purchiasenaterials pursuant to purchase orders plaoced ime to time in the ordinary course of
business. Although to date none of our divisiors dsgerienced any significant shortages or mateelzlys in obtaining any of its raw
materials or subcomponents, it is possible that thay face such shortages or delays in one or materials in the future.

Patents, Trademarks, Tradenames and Licenses

Trademarks and Tradenames. We have used, registered and applied to registéain trademarks and service marks to diststgou
products, technologies and services from thoseioEompetitors in the United States and in foraigantries. We enforce our trademark,
service mark and trade name rights in the UnitedeStand abroad.

Patents. We hold a number of U.S. and foreign pateritirg to various aspects of our security and inpa products, patient
monitoring, diagnostic cardiology and anesthessesyis and optoelectronic devices and subsystemsu®nent patents will expire at vario
times between 2007 and 2025. However, it remaissipte that pending patent applications or othetieations that may be filed may not
result in issued patents. In addition, issued pateray not survive challenges to their validitytr®ugh we believe that our patents have
value, our patents, or any additional patentsriet be issued in the future, may not be able teigeomeaningful protection from
competition.

Licenses. Our Security, Healthcare and OptoelectroniakManufacturing divisions have each entered intaréety of license
arrangements under which they are permitted to faature, market, sell and/or service various tygfesoftware, data, equipment,
components and enhancements to our own proprittaiyology.

We believe that our trademarks and tradenamesytsadad licenses are important to our businessldgseof some of our trademarks,
patents or licenses might have a negative impacuoifinancial results and operations. Howeverpperate in a competitive environment
with a known customer base and rely mainly on ghiong our customers with quality products and sewito ensure continuing business.
Thus, with the exception of the loss of either $pacelab8 or Rapiscar? trademarks, the impact of the loss of any singldémark, patent or
license would not likely have a material adverdeatfon our business. We consider the Spacélasiemark an important asset and have
registered it in approximately forty countries.addition, following the re-branding of our Securiivision under the “Rapiscan Systems”
name, we have Instituted a similar registratiorgpam for the Rapiscahtrademark.

Regulation of Medical Products

The patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiology anésthesia systems we manufacture and market gecstdregulation by numerous
federal government agencies, principally the Udghd-and Drug Administration (FDA) and by certaiatstand foreign authorities. They are
also subject to various U.S. and foreign electréediéty standards.

The FDA has broad regulatory powers with respegprésclinical and clinical testing of new medicabgucts and the manufacturing,
marketing and advertising of medical productsetjuires that all medical devices introduced intortrarket be preceded either by a pre-
market notification clearance order under sectibd(k) of the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, or anrappd pre-market approval application.
A 510(k) pre-market notification clearance ordetigates that the FDA agrees with an applicant’smeination that the
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product for which clearance has been sought istantially equivalent to another legally marketeddinal device. The clearance of a pre-
market approval application, on the other handgcates that the FDA has determined that the devésebeen proven, through the submission
of clinical trial data and manufacturing qualitysagance information, to be safe and effective thotabeled indications. The process of
obtaining 510(k) clearance typically takes betwgae and six months, but can take substantialigdo. The prenarket approval applicatic
review process, on the other hand, can last mame dhyear. To date, all of the patient monitoratiggnostic cardiology and anesthesia
systems we manufacture and sell in the United Stadege required only 510(k) pre-market notificatibearance.

Such regulatory approvals, when granted, may elim@thtions on the indicated uses for which a prctdnay be marketed, and such
product approvals, once granted, may be withdréywroblems occur after initial marketing. Manufaets of FDA-regulated products are
subject to pervasive and continuing governmentallegion, including extensive recordkeeping requieats and reporting of adverse
experiences associated with product manufactureisedCompliance with these requirements is costlgl,failure to comply can result in,
among other things, fines, total or partial suspmmef production, product recalls, failure of thBA to review pending marketing clearances
or approval applications, withdrawal of marketingazances or approvals or even criminal prosecution

We are also subject to regulation in the foreigantoes in which we manufacture and market ourgmhtmonitoring, diagnostic
cardiology and anesthesia systems. For examplegtinenercialization of medical devices in the Euap&nion is regulated under a system
that presently requires all medical devices solthénEuropean Union to bear the CE mark—an intemak symbol of adherence to quality
assurance standards. Our manufacturing faciliti¢$aiwthorne, California; Issaquah, Washington; mn@dhesham and Hertford in the United
Kingdom are all certified to the International Ongzation for Standardization’s 1ISO 13485 standardhiiedical device companies. They are
also certified to the requirements of the Europdadical Device Directive 93/42 EEC, which allowth to self-certify that newly
manufactured products can bear the CE mark.

We believe we are in material compliance with plplecable federal, state and foreign regulatiomgmrding the manufacture and sale of
our patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiology ameésthesia delivery systems. Such regulations aidehforcement do, however, constantly
change, and we cannot predict what effect, if amgh changes may have on our businesses in the futu

Environmental Regulations

We are subject to various federal, state and lecaironmental laws, ordinances and regulationgingldo the use, storage, handling
disposal of certain hazardous substances and wastesor generated in the manufacturing and asgeshblur products. Under such laws,
may become liable for the costs of removal or raatéxh of certain hazardous substances that hage fedeased on or in our facilities or that
have been disposed of off-site as waste. Suchriaaysimpose liability without regard to whether weelv of, or caused, the release of such
hazardous substances. We have conducted Phasednenental site assessments for each of our piiegeart the United States at which we
manufacture products. The purpose of each suchitrisgio identify, as of the date of such repodtgmtial areas of environmental concern
related to past and present activities or fromImgaperations. In certain cases, we have conddatéter environmental assessments
consisting of soil and groundwater testing and oiteestigations deemed appropriate by independevitonmental consultants. We believe
that we are currently in compliance with all maakgnvironmental regulations in connection with manufacturing operations, and that we
have obtained all material environmental permitsessary to conduct our business. The amount ofthaiza substances and wastes produced
and generated by us may increase in the futurendiépege on changes in our operations. Any failuraibyo comply with present or future
regulations could subject us to the impositionuddstantial fines, suspension of production, altenadf manufacturing process or cessation of
operations, any of which could have a material esbreffect on our business, financial condition essilts of operations.
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During one such investigation, we discovered suil groundwater contamination at our Hawthorne,fGatia facility. We filed the
requisite reports concerning this problem withdpgropriate environmental authorities in fiscal PO&/e have not yet received any response
to such reports, and no agency action or litigatsgoresently pending or threatened. We also hatiéied the prior owners of the facility and
the present owners and tenants of adjacent prepartincerning the problem and have requested fucharties agreements to toll of the
statute of limitations with respect to actions agasuch parties with respect to the contaminatiarder that we may focus our attention on
resolution of the contamination problem. Our sitesypreviously used by other companies for semicatiodmanufacturing similar to that
presently conducted on the site by us, and it ipresently known who is responsible for the conteation or, if required, the remediation.
The groundwater contamination is a known regiomabfem, not limited to our premises or our immeslistirroundings.

We have also been informed of soil and groundwatatuation efforts at a facility that our Fersorchieologies subsidiary previously
leased in Ocean Springs, Mississippi. Ferson Tdolgies occupied the facility between 1993 and 20U8.believe that the owner and
previous occupants of the facility have primaryp@ssibility for any remediation that may be reqdiend have an agreement with the
facility’s owner under which the owner is respomsitor remediation of pre-existing conditions. Hoxeg, as site evaluation efforts are still in
progress, and may be for some time, we are unaltihésaime to ascertain whether Ferson Technokbears any exposure for remediation
costs under applicable environmental regulations.

Competition

The markets in which we operate are highly comipetéind characterized by evolving customer needsapid technological change.
We compete with a number of other manufacturersesof which have significantly greater financiaictinical and marketing resources than
we have. In addition, these competitors may hagefility to respond more quickly to new or emeggiechnologies, adapt more quickly to
changes in customer requirements, have strongesroas relationships, have greater name recogniimhmay devote greater resources ti
development, promotion and sale of their produtas twe do. As a result, we may not be able to ctenpeccessfully against designers and
manufacturers of specialized electronic systemscantponents, broadly speaking, or more specifiaaithin the markets for security and
inspection systems, patient monitoring, diagnosticliology and anesthesia systems, or optoelectamiices. Future competitive pressures
may materially and adversely affect our businéagnttial conditions and results of operations.

In the security and inspection market, competit®based primarily on such factors as product perémce, functionality and quality,
the overall cost effectiveness of the system, primtomer relationships, technological capabilitiethe products, price, local market prese
and breadth of sales and service organization. 8lleve that our principal competitors in the marietsecurity and inspection products are
the Security and Detection Systems division of Cé&@nmunications Corporation, the Smiths Detectiais@in of Smiths Group pilc,
American Science and Engineering, Inc., GE Inftastire, Security, a division of the General Elec€ompany, Science Applications
International Corporation, Control Screening L.L.CEIA SpA, Garrett Electronics, Inc. and Nucteampany Limited. Competition could
result in price reductions, reduced margins ansl &dsnarket share. In the airline and airport ségand inspection market, particularly in the
upgrade and replacement market, we also compeffential customers based on existing relatiorsshgiween our competitors and the
customers. Certain of our competitors have estaddistrong relationships with airlines, airportd ather transportation security authorities.
Although we also have established relationshiph @ihumber of airport and airline customers, we matybe able to compete successfully in
the future with existing competitors or new entsaiih the cargo and vehicle inspection systems etane compete for potential customers
based on price, performance and the ability togtelsoth standard and customized products. Seveealrazompetitors have operated in this
area for longer than we have. However, due to ecemt successes in designing and delivering higinggrx-ray and gamma-ray systems, we
believe that we have demonstrated an ability topetm effectively. Additionally, although our comipets in the cargo and vehicle inspection
market each offer products in competition with onenore of our products, our ability to supply
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high-energy x-ray, gamma-ray and thermal neutralyais systems means that we offer among the wiadesy of solutions available from a
single supplier. This variety of technologies gl@omits us to offer unique hybrid systems to owstamers that utilize two or more of these
technologies, thereby optimizing flexibility, perfoance and cost to meet the customer’s uniqueagtigh requirements.

In the patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiologylamesthesia systems delivery market, competiiaisio based on a variety of factors
including product performance, functionality, vakued breadth of sales and service organizationb®lieve that our principal competitors in
the market for patient monitoring, diagnostic caloljy and anesthesia systems are Cardiac Scierrpei@ton, Criticare Systems, Inc.,
Mortara Instrument, Philips Medical Systems, GE Itheare, Dr@er Medical, Datascope Corp., Nihon Kohden CorponaMindray Medica
International, Penlon Limited, Nellcor, a divisiohTyco Healthcare and Schiller. Competition corgdult in price reductions, reduced
margins and loss of our market share. We belieaedbr patient monitoring products are easier #tban the products of many of our
competitors because we offer a consistent usenfacte throughout many of our product lines. Finaliile some of our competitors are also
beginning to introduce portal technology, whictoalé remote access to data from the bedside moné#atral station or other point of care,
we believe that our competing technologies arersoipia bringing instant access to labs, radiolagy charting at the point of care. Although
we have established relationships with a numbéarge hospitals, we may not be able to successfoligpete in the future with existing
competitors or with new entrants.

In the optoelectronic devices and subsystems mas&etpetition for optoelectronic devices and vaddeled subsystems is based
primarily on such factors as expertise in the desigd development of optoelectronic devices, prbduality, timeliness of delivery, price,
customer technical support and on the ability wvjate fully integrated services from applicatiorvélpment and design through production.
We believe that our major competitors in the ogtobnic device market are PerkinElmer, Inc. anchBimatsu Corporation. Because we
specialize in custom subsystems requiring a higjneseof engineering expertise, we believe that @reegally do not compete to any
significant degree with any other large United &aEuropean or Asian manufacturers of standamkgattronic components. Competition in
the extensive electronic manufacturing servicesketaanges from multinational corporations withesaih excess of several billions of
dollars, to large regional competitors and to sieall assembly companies. In our experience, tiginal equipment manufacturers to whi
we provide such services prefer to engage comp#mtffer both local and lower-cost off-shoreiliies. As a result, our primary domestic
competition for these services is located in Sauti@alifornia and in New England, where our U.Rilfées are also located. Such
competition includes CTS, Sigmatron Internatio®anmina-SCI, Senior Systems Technology, and BenghElactronics, among others. In
addition, our high-volume, low-cost contract marmtiaing locations in Southeast Asia compete witteomanufacturers in the same region.

Backlog

We measure our backlog as orders for which purcbasers or contracts have been signed, but whigh hat yet been shipped and for
which revenues have not yet been recognized.

We ship most of our baggage and parcel inspedtiold, (checked) baggage screening, people scregatignt monitoring, diagnostic
cardiology and anesthesia systems and optoelectdenices and value-added subsystems within oseveral months after receiving an
order. However, such shipments may be delayed ¥ariaty of reasons, including any special desigargineering requirements of the
customer. In addition, large orders of security arspection products (more than ten machines) &jfyicequire greater lead-times.

Certain of our cargo and vehicle inspection and johecked) baggage screening systems may reguieead months to several years
lead-time. We have experienced some significamipshg delays associated with our cargo and velislgection systems. Such delays can
occur for many reasons, including: (i) additionald necessary to conduct inspections at the fattefgre shipment; (ii) a customer’s need to
engage in time-
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consuming special site preparation to accommodiateystem, over which we have no control or respditg; (iii) additional fine tuning of
such systems once they are installed; (iv) desigpecification changes by the customer; and (igydeoriginating from other contractors on
the project.

As of June 30, 2007, our consolidated backlog edtalpproximately $209 million, compared to appraatiety $147 million as of
June 30, 2006 and approximately $95 million at BMe2005. Sales orders underlying our backlodiareorders. However, from time to
time, we may agree to permit the cancellation obater. Variations in the size of orders, produtt,rar delivery requirements, among other
factors, may result in substantial fluctuationdatklog from period to period. Backlog as of anytipalar date should not be relied upon as
indicative of our revenues for any future period aannot be considered a meaningful indicator ofp@uformance on an annual or quarterly
basis.

Employees

As of June 30, 2007, we employed approximately @ @ople, of whom 1,840 were employed in manufaugud80 were employed in
engineering or research and development, 370 wapdoged in finance and administration, 380 were leygd in sales and marketing and
410 were employed in service capacities. Of thal mnployees, approximately 1,480 were employedarth America and South America,
1,450 were employed in Asia and 550 were emplogdgeLirope. Many of our employees in Europe haveistat collective bargaining rights.
We have never experienced a work stoppage or sailcemanagement believes that its relations withleyees are good.

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirementhefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendaerefore, we file periodic repor
proxy statements and other information with theuiges and Exchange Commission. Such reports,ypsta¢ements and other information
may be obtained by visiting the Public ReferenceRof the Securities and Exchange Commission afFl8@eet, N.E., Washington, D.C.
20549 or by calling 1-202-551-8090. In additiore Becurities and Exchange Commission maintaingtanmlet website (http://www.sec.gov)
that contains reports, proxy statements and ottiermation that issuers are required to file etmuially.

Our Internet address is: http://www.osi-systems.cdfa make available, free-of-charge through ougrimét website, our annual report
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, catrreports on Form 8-K, amendments to those refiitatsor furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended and reports filed pursweStttion 16 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended. We do so as soon as i@aggracticable after electronically filing suclaterial with, or furnishing it to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Fluctuations in our operating results may cause ositock price to decline.

Given the nature of the markets in which we partiteé, we cannot always reliably predict future raas and profitability. Changes in
competitive, market and economic conditions mayseaus to adjust our operations. A high proportibouw costs are fixed, due in part to our
significant sales, research and development andifacturing costs. Thus, small declines in reverauddcdisproportionately affect our
operating results. Factors that may affect our &ty results and the market price of our CommamiSinclude:

» demand for and market acceptance of our products;
e competitive pressures resulting in lower sellinggs;

» adverse changes in the level of economic activityegions in which we do business;
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» low or fluctuating levels of political stability iregions in which we do business;

e adverse changes in industries, such as semicondwstd electronics, on which we are particularlyadalent;
» changes in the portions of our revenue represdnte@rious products and customers;

» delays or problems in the introduction of new preidu

» the announcement or introduction of new produ@syjises or technological innovations by our contpedi
e variations in our product mix;

» the timing and amount of our expenditures in ap#tibn of future sales;

» exchange rate fluctuations;

* increased costs of raw materials or supplies;

» changes in the volume or timing of product orders;

» timing of completion of acceptance testing of saheur products;

* natural disasters; and

» changes in general economic factors.

We face aggressive competition in many areas ofibess. If we do not compete effectively, our busisevill be harmed.

We encounter aggressive competition from numerougpetitors in many areas of our business. In thargg and inspection and
patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiology and ahesia systems markets, competition is based piyr@risuch factors as product
performance, functionality and quality, cost, pgoistomer relationships, technological capabilititthe product, price, certification by
government authorities, local market presence aeddbth of sales and service organization. In theedpctronic devices and electronics
manufacturing markets competition is based primanil factors such as expertise in the design awdloement of optoelectronic devices,
product quality, timeliness of delivery, price, taraer technical support and on the ability to pdeviully-integrated services from applicati
development and design through volume subsysteduption. We may not be able to compete effectivéth all of our competitors. To
remain competitive, we must develop new productsearhance our existing products and servicesimelyt manner. We anticipate that we
may have to adjust prices of many of our produztstay competitive. In addition, new competitorsyraenerge, and entire product lines or
service offerings may be threatened by new teclyiedoor market trends that reduce the value oktpesduct lines or service offerings.

The September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks and theation of the U.S. Department of Homeland Seculflittve increased financial
expectations that may not materialize.

The September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks and theesuent creation of the U.S. Department of Honte&ecurity have created
increased interest in our security and inspectystesns. However, we are not certain whether thel lefz7demand will continue to be as high
as it is now. We do not know what solutions wilhtiaue to be adopted by the U.S. Department of HanteSecurity and whether our
products will be a part of those solutions. Addititly, should our products be considered as agfdite future security solutions, it is unclear
what the level may be and how quickly funding togmase our products may be made available. Thesardamay adversely impact us and
create unpredictability in revenues and operatasgilts.
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If operators of our security and inspection systefad to detect weapons, explosives or other devitdet are used to commit a
terrorist act, we could be exposed to product liadhiand related claims for which we may not havdexjuate insurance coverage.

Our business exposes us to potential product ifigloisks that are inherent in the development, nfacturing, sale and service of
security inspection systems as well as in the giomitraining of our customers in the use and deraf such systems. Our customers use
our security and inspection systems to help thetmatiéems that could be used in performing testatts or other crimes. Some of our
security and inspection systems require that anabpeinterpret an image of suspicious items withinag, parcel, container or other vessel.
Others signal to the operator that further invedian is required. In either case, the traininjabélity and competence of the customer’s
operator are crucial to the detection of suspicitemss.

Security inspection systems that signal to the afpethat further investigation is required are stmes referred to in the security
industry as “automatic” detection systems. Suclesys utilize software algorithms to interpret dataduced by the system and to signal to
the operator when a dangerous object may be preSach algorithms are probabilistic in nature aredadso subject to significant technical
limitations. Nevertheless, if such a system werfaildo signal to an operator when an explosivetber contraband was in fact present,
resulting in significant damage, we could becongesibject of significant product liability claims.

Furthermore, security inspection by technologicebms is always circumstance and application-sgetifiaddition, our security and
inspection systems are not designed to work uritleireumstances. We test the reliability of oucsety and inspection systems during both
their development and manufacturing phases. Wepsdgorm such tests if we are requested to perfostallation, warranty or post-warranty
servicing. However, our security inspection systemesadvanced mechanical and electronic devicethanefore can malfunction. In
addition, there are also many other factors beyandontrol that could lead to liability claims std an act of terrorism occur. The
September 11, 2001 and 1993 World Trade Center imgnatitacks, and the potential for future attatiesse caused commercial insurance for
such threats to become extremely difficult to aftdtiis very likely that, should we be found lieldbllowing a major act of terrorism, the
insurance we currently have in place would notfathver the claims for damages.

Our patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiology anchasthesia systems could give rise to product lipitlaims that could
materially and adversely affect our financial cortéhn and results of operations.

The development, manufacturing and sale of mediegices expose us to significant risk of produaility claims and, sometimes,
product failure claims. We face an inherent busimesk of financial exposure to product liabilithaizns if the use of our medical devices
results in personal injury or death. Substantiatipct liability litigation currently exists withithe medical device industry. Some of our
patient monitoring, diagnostic cardiology and ahesia systems businesses have, in the past, bieieatsio product liability claims and/or
product recalls. To date, no such claim or recadl had a significant impact on our operations. feytwoduct liability claims may exceed the
limits of our insurance coverages or such insuranag not continue to be available to us on comraélycieasonable terms, or at
all. Consequently, a product liability claim or etfclaim with respect to uninsured liabilities,imexcess of insured liabilities, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition, operating results and cash flows.

Our revenues are dependent on orders of securitd amspection systems and patient monitoring, diagtio cardiology and
anesthesia systems, which may have lengthy and edpmtable sales cycles.

Sales of security and inspection systems oftenritéppon the decision of governmental agencies ¢page or expand existing airports,
border crossing inspection sites, seaport inspesites and other security installations. Salesidatof the United States of our patient
monitoring, diagnostic cardiology and anesthessesyis depend in significant part on the decisiogosernmental agencies to build new
medical facilities or to expand or update existimgdical facilities. Accordingly, a significant pmm of our sales of security and inspection
systems and our patient monitoring, diagnosticiclsdy and anesthesia systems is often subject to
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delays associated with the lengthy approval presessat typically accompany such capital expenetuburing these approval periods, we
expend significant financial and management ressuirt anticipation of future orders that may natuwcIf we fail to receive an order after
expending such resources, such failure could hawmatarial adverse effect on our business, finargatition and results of operations.

If we do not introduce new products in a timely maer, our products could become obsolete and ourragiag results would
suffer.

We sell many of our products in industries chamdmdel by rapid technological changes, frequent peyduct and service introductions
and evolving industry standards and customer n&#dkout the timely introduction of new productsdaenhancements, our products could
become technologically obsolete over time, in witiake our revenue and operating results wouldrsUffe success of our new product
offerings will depend upon several factors, inchgdour ability to:

e accurately anticipate customer needs;

» innovate and develop new technologies and appdicsti

» successfully commercialize new technologies imely manner;

» price our products competitively and manufacture deliver our products in sufficient volumes andtiome; and

» differentiate our offerings from our competitor$fayings.

Some of our products are used by our customersuelop, test and manufacture their products. Wieetbee must anticipate industry
trends and develop products in advance of the caomiatization of our customers’ products. In devétgpany new product, we may be
required to make a substantial investment beforeamedetermine the commercial viability of the neneduct. If we fail to accurately foresee
our customers’ needs and future activities, we magst heavily in research and development of petedthat do not lead to significant
revenues.

Interruptions in our ability to purchase raw matesls and components may adversely affect our prdfitity.

We purchase certain raw materials and subcompofrentsthird parties pursuant to purchase ordersgaldrom time to time. Purchase
order terms range from three months to one yefixeat costs, but we do not have guaranteed long-&mply arrangements with our
suppliers. Any material interruption in our ability purchase necessary raw materials or subcomfmoeuld have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and resultepsrations.

We may not be able to successfully implement ouysitions strategy, integrate acquired businesges our existing business or
make acquired businesses profitable.

One of our strategies is to supplement our integnalvth by acquiring businesses and technologigisdbimplement or augment our
existing product lines. This growth has placed, ar&y continue to place, significant demands onnsaimagement, working capital and
financial resources. We may be unable to identifgyamplete promising acquisitions for many reasorguding:

e competition among buyers;
» the need for regulatory approvals, including ansitrapprovals; and

» the high valuations of businesses.
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Some of the businesses we may seek to acquire enmalginally profitable or unprofitable. For thesmuired businesses to achieve
acceptable levels of profitability, we must imprdheir management, operations, products and maskedtration. We may not be successful
in this regard and may encounter other difficultremtegrating acquired businesses into our exgstiperations.

To finance our acquisitions, we may have to radgsiteonal funds, through either public or privabeahncings. We may be unable to
obtain such funds or may be able to do so onlyrdaworable terms.
Our acquisition and alliance activities could dispt our ongoing business.

We intend to continue to make investments in congsaiproducts and technologies, either throughiaitmuns, investments or
alliances. Acquisition and alliance activities offavolve risks, including: (i) difficulty in assiitating the acquired operations and employees;
(i) difficulty in managing product co-developmeatttivities with our alliance partners; (iii) diffitty in retaining the key employees of the
acquired operation; (iv) disruption of our ongoimgsiness; (v) inability to successfully integrdte aicquired technologies and operations into
our businesses and maintain uniform standardsralenpolicies and procedures; and (vi) lackingéRperience necessary to enter into new
product or technology markets successfully. In @oldj from time to time, our competitors acquiresater into exclusive arrangements with
companies with whom we do business or may do bssimethe future. Reductions in the number of masgtnvith whom we may do business
in a particular context may reduce our ability tdeg into critical alliances on attractive termsapall, and the termination of an existing
alliance by a business partner may disrupt ouraijers.

Economic, political and other risks associated wititernational sales and operations could adversaffect our sales.

In fiscal 2005, revenues from shipments made oatsfdhe United States accounted for approximatép of our revenues, 42% in
fiscal 2006 and 47% in fiscal 2007. Of the revergrserated during fiscal 2007 from shipments madristomers outside of the United
States, 20% represented sales made by subsidiaises in United States to foreign customers, amth@ttance represented sales generated by
foreign subsidiaries. Since we sell certain of praducts worldwide, our businesses are subjedsks associated with doing business
internationally. We anticipate that revenues froetinational operations will continue to represestbstantial portion of our total revenue
addition, many of our manufacturing facilities, ahdrefore employees, suppliers, real propertyit@bgquipment, cash and other assets are
located outside the United States. Accordingly,fature results could be harmed by a variety ofdes; including:

» changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

« changes in a country’s or region’s political or eemic conditions, particularly in developing or egiag markets;
» longer payment cycles of foreign customers andadiltfy of collecting receivables in foreign juristions;

» trade protection measures and import or expoméite requirements;

» differing legal and court systems;

« differing tax laws and changes in those laws;

» difficulty in staffing and managing widespread ag@mns;

» differing labor laws and changes in those laws;

» differing protection of intellectual property andanges in that protection; and

« differing regulatory requirements and changes as¢hrequirements.
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Others may allege that our products infringe on thétellectual property rights, and resulting clais against us could be costly
and prevent us from making or selling certain procis.

Third parties may seek to claim that our produots @perations infringe their patent or other iretiial property rights. In addition, we
may find it necessary to initiate litigation in erdo protect our patent or other intellectual @my rights. Under either circumstance, we may
incur significant expenses. In addition, claimstofd parties against us could result in awardsulifstantial damages or court orders that ¢
effectively prevent us from making, using or seajliour products in the United States or abroad.

Our competitors may seek to challenge the intelledtproperty rights on which some of our new and reqgoromising products are
based.

As we introduce any new and potentially promisingdact, companies possessing competing technolagigsbe motivated to assert
infringement claims in order to delay or diminishigntial sales and challenge our right to markehsaroduct. Lengthy and costly litigation
may be necessary in order to defend against thasesc

Our ongoing success is dependent upon the continaedilability of certain key employees.

We are dependent in our operations on the contiauadability of the services of our employees, snahwhom are individually key to
our current and future success, and the availalifinew employees to implement our growth plangadrticular, we are dependent upon the
services of Deepak Chopra, our Chairman of the do&Directors, President and Chief Executive @ffioVe entered into a 5-year
employment agreement with Mr. Chopra, which expingly 18, 2010 and we maintain a $13.0 million pplf key man life insurance on the
life of Mr. Chopra. The market for skilled emplogee highly competitive, especially for employeedéachnical fields. While our
compensation programs are intended to attractetathrthe employees required for it to be succésgtimately, we may not be able to ret
the services of all of our key employees or a sigfit number to execute on our plans. In additie@may not be able to continue to attract
new employees as required.

Substantial government regulation in the United $a and abroad may restrict our ability to sell opatient monitoring,
diagnostic cardiology and anesthesia systems.

The FDA and comparable regulatory authorities meifyn countries extensively and rigorously regutate patient monitoring,
diagnostic cardiology and anesthesia systems,dirdurelated development activities and manufaetuprocesses. In the United States, the
FDA regulates the introduction of medical devicesvall as the manufacturing, labeling and recorelpkeg procedures for such products. We
are required to:

» obtain clearance before we can market and sellcakdeévices;
» satisfy content requirements applicable to ourllagesales and promotional materials;
« comply with manufacturing and reporting requirenseand

* undergo rigorous inspections.

Our future products may not obtain FDA clearancea ¢imely basis, or at all. Our patient monitorid@gnostic cardiology and
anesthesia systems must also comply with the laasegulations of foreign countries in which we elep, manufacture and market such
products. In general, the extent and complexitynetlical device regulation is increasing worldwitlkis trend is likely to continue and the
cost and time required to obtain marketing cleaganany given country may increase as a result.ptaducts may not obtain any necessary
foreign clearances on a timely basis, or at all.

Once any of our patient monitoring, diagnostic aaladyy and anesthesia systems is cleared for ssdelatory authorities may still limit
the use of such product, prevent its sale or matwfa or require a recall or
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withdrawal of such product from the marketplacdldvaing initial clearance from regulatory authoeii, we continue to be subject to
extensive regulatory requirements. Government aitige® can withdraw marketing clearance due tofailure to comply with regulatory
standards or due to the occurrence of unforeseamssigms following initial clearance. Ongoing regolgtrequirements are wide-ranging and
govern, among other things:

« annual inspections to retain a CE mark for salgroflucts in the European Union;
» product manufacturing;

e supplier substitution;

» product changes;

e process modifications;

» medical device reporting; and

e product sales and distribution.

Ouir failure to comply with environmental regulatiamay create significant environmental liabilitiead force us to modify our
manufacturing processes.

We are subject to various foreign and U.S. fedstate and local environmental laws, ordinancesragdlations relating to the use,
storage, handling and disposal of certain hazardohstances and wastes used or generated in thdaotaming and assembly of our
products. Under such laws, we may become liabl¢hi®icosts of removal or remediation of certainandaus substances or wastes that have
been or are being disposed of offsite as wastésaphave been or are being released on or inamilities. Such laws may impose liability
without regard to whether we knew of, or caused rédfease of such hazardous substances or wastg$ailure by us to comply with present
or future regulations could subject us to the inipms of substantial fines, suspension of produtt@mteration of manufacturing processes, or
cessation of operations, any of which could haweaterial adverse effect on our business, finamgatlition and results of operations.

We may be exposed to potential risks relating t@ miernal controls over financial reporting and auability to have our
independent registered public accounting firm attés these controls.

As directed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Sheurities and Exchange Commission adopted ruipsrieg public companies to
include in their annual reports an assessmenteoétiectiveness of the company’s internal contoelsr financial reporting. In addition, the
independent registered public accounting firm anglia public company’s financial statements mustsato and report on management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of the companygmial controls over financial reporting, as wallthe operating effectiveness of the
company'’s internal controls over financial repagtiliVe evaluate our internal controls over finanogglorting in order to allow our
management to report on, and our independent eegispublic accounting firm to attest to, our intdrcontrols.

We expect to continue to expend significant resesiin complying with the documentation and tesgimgcedures required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. However, there will aman ongoing risk that we will not comply with af its requirements.

If our independent registered public accountingfdiffers from us in its interpretation of the régunents imposed on us by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or if it is not sagfiwith our internal controls over financial refrogtor with the level at which such controls
are documented, operated or reviewed, we may lagekbin filing reports with the Securities and Exgge Commission, our independent
registered public accounting firm may decline testtto our management’s assessment or it may é&sgualified report. In addition, if our
independent registered public accounting firm ighle to rely on our internal controls over finahecéporting in connection with its audit of
our financial statements and if it is unable toigewalternative procedures in order to satisfyifiseto the material accuracy of our financial
statements and related disclosures, it is postiblawe could receive a qualified or adverse aojiition in connection with those financial
statements.
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Accordingly, we may not receive a favorable refiann our independent registered public accounting fegarding our internal
controls over financial reporting and the operagffgctiveness of our internal controls over finahoeporting. If we identify material
weaknesses in our internal controls over finanm&pbrting that we cannot remediate in a timely nearar if we receive an adverse report
from our independent registered public accounting fvith respect to our internal controls over fig&l reporting, investors and others may
lose confidence in the reliability of our financg&htements and the market for our Common Stockddmuadversely affected.

Our operations are subject to certain risks and @ntainties associated with the listing in the Unité&ingdom of common stock of
Spacelabs Healthcare

Since October 2005, a minority interest in Spaceldbalthcare, a holding company composed of thiméss operations of our
Healthcare division, has been listed on the AIMhef London Stock Exchange (Ticker: SLAB). The vadfighese shares, and consequently
the value of the shares in Spacelabs Healthcateviheetained following the placing, is subjecstock price fluctuations as well as
fluctuations in the British pound, the currencyihich the shares trade. A downturn in the perforreanf equity markets in the
United Kingdom generally, or on the AIM specifigalcould depress the value of the Spacelabs Heatttghares that we own.

We receive significant amounts of research and depenent funding for our security and inspection ggss from government
grants and contracts, but we may not continue teeeze comparable levels of funding in the futu

The U.S. government currently plays an importatd o funding the development of certain of ouris@g and inspection systems and
sponsoring their deployment at airports, ports laomdler crossings. However, in the future, additioesearch and development funds from
the government may not be available to us. If hegnment fails to continue to sponsor our techgiel®we may have to expend more
resources on product development or cease develdpheertain technologies, which could adversélga our business. In addition, any
future grants to our competitors may improve tlditity to develop and market competing productd eause our customers to delay
purchase decisions, which could harm our abilitynerket our products.

Our Articles of Incorporation and other agreement®ntain provisions that could discourage a takeover

Our Articles of Incorporation authorize our Boafddirectors to issue up to 10,000,000 shares dfelred Stock in one or more series,
to fix the rights, preferences, privileges andriesbns granted to or imposed upon any wholly sued shares of Preferred Stock, to fix the
number of shares constituting any such series@fig the designation of any such series, withautHer vote or action by shareholders. The
terms of any series of Preferred Stock, which majude priority claims to assets and dividends spetial voting rights, could adversely
affect the rights of the holders of our Common Etaed thereby reduce the value of our Common Stkhave no present plans to issue
shares of Preferred Stock. The issuance of Pref&tack, coupled with the concentration of owngrshithe directors and executive officers,
could discourage certain types of transactionsluig an actual or potential change in control of oompany, including transactions in
which the holders of Common Stock might otherwiseeive a premium for their shares over then cupegoes, otherwise dilute the rights of
holders of Common Stock and may limit the abilifysoch shareholders to cause or approve transaatibith they may deem to be in their
best interests, all of which could have a matexiblerse effect on the market price of our CommaiciStWe have in place a stockholder
rights plan, adopted in 2000, under which our dhalders are entitled to purchase shares of Pref@&taeck under certain circumstances. The
stockholder rights plan may have the effect of idipg or preventing certain types of transaction®iving a change in control of our
company that could be beneficial to the sharehslder
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Our Articles of Incorporation limit the liability d our directors, which may limit the remedies we our shareholders have
available.

Our Articles of Incorporation provide that, purstitmthe California Corporations Code, the lialilif our directors for monetary
damages shall be eliminated to the fullest extentnssible under California law. This is intendedetiminate the personal liability of a
director for monetary damages in an action brobghis, or in our right for breach of a directorigids to us or our shareholders and may
limit the remedies available to us or our sharetddThis provision does not eliminate the diretbduciary duty and does not apply to
liabilities for: (i) acts or omissions that involirgentional misconduct or a knowing and culpabt#ation of law; (ii) acts or omissions that a
director believes to be contrary to the best irstisref our company or our shareholders or thatlirevthe absence of good faith on the part of
the director; (iii) any transaction from which aetitor derived an improper personal benefit; (stsar omissions that show a reckless
disregard for the director’s duty to the our companour shareholders in circumstances in whichdihector was aware, or should have been
aware, in the ordinary course of performing a dogs duties, of a risk of serious injury to oumepany or our shareholders; (v) acts or
omissions that constitute an unexcused pattematfantion that amounts to an abdication of theadar’'s duty to our company or our
shareholders; (vi) certain transactions or the @ydrof transactions in which a director has a m@ténancial interest; and (vii) expressly
imposed by statute for approval of certain impragistributions to shareholders or certain loanguarantees.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of June 30, 2007, we owned five facilities. Teheze located in Hawthorne, California (combingmhraximately 88,000 square feet)
and are primarily used by our Optoelectronics arshiacturing division for administrative, manufaatg, engineering, sales and marketing
functions. They also constitute our corporate haaders. We also own one building in Salfords, Bndl(approximately 59,000 square feet),
which is used by our Security and Healthcare divisifor manufacturing, engineering, sales and ntiagéunctions. Additionally we own a
facility in Ocean Springs, Mississippi (approxinmut&9,000 square feet), which is used by our Sgcand Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing divisions for manufacturing, engiriegr sales and marketing functions.
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As of June 30, 2007, we leased all of our otheilifi@s. The following table lists our principal pical properties (e., facilities greate
than 50,000 square feet):

Approximate
Location Description of Facility Square Footag Expiration

Camarillo, California Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketing 60,00( 201C
and service for our Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing divisior

Torrance, California Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketing 91,90( 201z
and service for our Security divisit

North Andover, Massachuse Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketing 71,71; 201C
and service for our Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing divisior

Issaquah, Washington (1) Manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketing 202,60( 201¢
and service for our Healthcare divisi

Hyderabad, India (2) Manufacturing and engineering for our Security, 52,10( 200¢
Healthcare and Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing division:

Johor Bahru, Malaysia (3) Manufacturing, engineering sales and service for 93,00( 2007
our Security and Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing division:

(1) The lease of the 202,600 square foot facility satpiah, Washington is composed of two leases isaime facility. One is a 107,000
square foot facility lease and the other is a 9% $&fuare foot facility lease. Both leases expirBésember 201«

(2) The lease of the 52,100 square foot facility in eldbad, India is composed of four leases in theesamm nearby facilities: (i) a 19,800
square foot facility lease that expires in 2009;i19,600 square foot facility lease that expine2009; (iii) a 6,400 square foot facility
lease that expires in 2009; (iv) and a 6,300 sqioefacility that expires in 200!

(3) The lease of the 93,000 square foot facility inafdBahru, Malaysia is composed of two leases imetacilities: (i) a 76,000 square
foot facility lease that expires in December 206d i) a 17,000 square foot facility lease thgpieas in January 2008. We expect that
both the 76,000 square foot facility and 17,000asquoot facility leases will be renewed on simtlerms.

We believe that our facilities are in good conditand are adequate to support our operations éoiotieseeable future. We currently
anticipate that we will be able to renew the ledbasare scheduled to expire in the next few yearterms that are substantially the same as
those currently in effect. However, even if we weot able to renew one or more of the leases, \Weveethat suitable substitute space is
available to relocate any of the facilities. Acdagly, we do not believe that our failure to renamy of the leases that are scheduled to expire
in the next few years will have a material advexfect on our operations.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In November 2002, L-3 Communications Corporationught suit against us in the District Court for 8authern District of New York
seeking a declaratory judgment that L-3 CommuroeetiCorporation had not breached its obligationsstooncerning the acquisition of
PerkinElmer’s Security Detection Systems Busing#s.asserted counterclaims against L-3 Communica@arporation for, among other
things, fraud and breach of fiduciary duty. On Mealy 2006, the jury in the case returned a verdicur favor and awarded us $125 millior
damages. The jury found that L-3 Communicationgp@ration had breached its fiduciary duty to us bad committed fraud. The jury
awarded us $33 million in compensatory damagess@&dnillion in punitive damages. In addition, theyj also found that we had breached a
confidentiality agreement and awarded L-3 Commuitoa Corporation nominal damages of one dollaraFHudgment has been entered and
the judgment is currently under appeal.

We have previously disclosed a lawsuit, filed inrffa2004 in the 285th Judicial District Court inXae County, Texas by certain
individuals, naming us and our Spacelabs Medichsisliary, as well as a hospital located in Bexani@p, Texas, in a petition, claiming that
the individuals suffered injuries in March 2003 sad, in part, by a defective monitoring system nfactured by Spacelabs Medical. We h
also previously disclosed a lawsuit, filed in Aj2004 in the 21st Judicial District Court, Pari§iTangipahoa, Louisiana by certain
individuals, naming our Spacelabs Medical subsydias well as several other defendants, in a petthiat alleges, among other things, that a
product possibly manufactured by Spacelabs Meddlald to properly monitor a hospital patient tHareontributing to the patient’s death in
November 2001. We do not presently consider eithénese legal proceedings to be material to osirtass and therefore will no long
disclose information about them in the reports thafile with the Securities and Exchange Commissio

We are also involved in various other claims aml@roceedings arising out of the ordinary cowfseusiness which have not been
previously disclosed in our quarterly and annupbrés. In our opinion after consultation with legalunsel, the ultimate disposition of such
proceedings will not have a material adverse eff@cbur financial position, future results of ogemas, or cash flows.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accountandards (SFAS) No. 5, “Accounting for Contingjes,” we have not accrued
for loss contingencies relating to the above matbecause we believe that, although unfavorableomes in the proceedings may be
possible, they are not considered by managemdre fwobable or reasonably estimable. If one or mbthese matters are resolved in a
manner adverse to us, the impact on our resuttpefations, financial position and/or liquidity ¢die material.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

28



Table of Contents

PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Stock Market and Other Information
Our Common Stock is traded on The NASDAQ Global kéaunder the symbol “OSIS.”
The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices of a share of our Common Stock as reptwstethe NASDAQ Global Market

on a quarterly basis for the fiscal years ende@ By 2006 and June 30, 2007. The prices showectéfiter-dealer prices, without retail
markup, markdown or commission and may not necigsapresent actual transactions.

2006: High Low

Quarter ended September 30, 2! $18.44 $14.41
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $19.3¢ $14.6(
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $23.3¢ $18.1:
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $21.3¢ $16.6(
2007: High Low

Quarter ended September 30, 2 $19.9¢ $17.01
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $21.7¢ $18.5:
Quarter ended March 31, 20 $27.91 $20.0¢
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $29.8( $25.5¢

As of September 10, 2007, there were approxim&elgolders of record of our Common Stock. This nendpes not include benefic
owners holding shares through nominees or in “stresme.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends since the comstion of our initial public offering in 1997 aaafticipate that we will retain any
available funds for use in the operation of ourifiess. We do not currently intend to pay any casgidends in the foreseeable future. Our
Board of Directors will determine the payment aiufie cash dividends, if any. Certain of our curdesatk credit facilities restrict the payment
of cash dividends and future borrowings may consaimlar restrictions.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In March 1999, our Board of Directors authorizest@ck repurchase program for the repurchase ab @mtillion shares of our
Common Stock. In September 2004, we increaseduimdar of shares available for repurchase undesttiek repurchase program by
1 million shares. At June 30, 2007, 1,330,973 shasre available for repurchase under the progidra following table summarizes the
stock repurchase activity for the three months drildme 30, 2007:

Maximum Number
of Shares
Total Number of Sharet That May Yet Be
Purchased as Part of Purchased under
Total Number of Average Price Publicly Announced the Plans or
Period Shares Purchase Paid per Share Plans or Programs Programs

April 1, 2007 to April 30, 200 — — — 1,330,92.
May 1, 2007 to May 31, 20C — — — 1,330,97.
June 1, 2007 to June 30, 2C — — — 1,330,97.

Total — — — 1,330,97.
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Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information concernimgr equity compensation plans as of June 30, 2007.

Number of securities tc

be issued upon exercis

of outstanding options
Plan category warrants and rights

@)

Equity compensation plans

approved by security

holders (1) 1,332,12!
Equity participation plans not

approved by security

holders —

Total 1,332,12

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options

warrants and rights
(b)

$ 18.6¢

$ 18.6¢

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding securitie
reflected in column (a))

©

552,96!

552,96:

(1) Includes shares of our Common Stock issuable ugertise of options from our 2006 Equity ParticipatPlan.
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Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tedaler return for the period beginning on the madtese on the last trading day
before the beginning our fifth preceding fiscal y#aough and including the end of our last congaldiscal year, with (a) The NASDAQ
Global Market Index and (b) a peer group of pulgtithded issuers with which we have generally cdethe

The peer group includes the following companiesefioan Science & Engineering (AMEX Symbol: ASE),adgic Corporation
(NASDAQ Symbol: ALOG), Criticare Systems, Inc. (AMESymbol: CMD) and Datascope Corporation (NASDAQriypl: DSCP).

The graph assumes that $100.00 was invested or3, 2002 in (a) our Common Stock, (b) The NASDA®RaAI Market Index and
(c) the companies comprising the peer group desgrdbove (weighted according to each respectiveissstock market capitalization at the
beginning of each period for which a return is @adéd). The graph assumes that all dividends ve#neested. Historical stock price
performance is not necessarily indicative of futstierk price performance.

Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
June 2002 through June 2007
Among OSI Systems, Inc.,
The NASDAQ Composite Index And A Peer Group
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The following table provides the same informatioridbular form as of June 30,:

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
OSI Systems, Inc 100.0( 79.07 100.5( 79.6¢ 89.61 137.9:
The NASDAQ Composite Inde 100.0( 108.2¢ 139.8: 140.7( 151.5¢ 183.1(
Peer Grouy 100.0( 98.37 111.4: 132.0: 134.8: 174.6¢
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected cortatld financial data as of and for each of thefis@al years ended June 30, 2007 and
is derived from our Consolidated Financial Statetsiefihe Consolidated Financial Statements as &f 3002006 and 2007, and for each of
the years in the three-year period ended June(®, &rre included elsewhere in this report. Thiefahg data should be read in conjunction
with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of FiciahCondition and Results of Operatiaarid the Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes thereto included elsewhere in this reg

Year Ended June 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
(in thousands, except earnings per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data(1

Revenue: $182,64.  $247,06¢  $385,04.  $452,68t $532,28:
Cost of goods sol 122,66: 163,71: 243,41! 276,02! 354,06
Gross profit 59,98: 83,357 141,62t 176,66: 178,21
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati 29,16( 54,16: 116,24! 138,42¢ 149,20:
Research and developmt 8,86¢ 14,63¢ 30,53 35,83¢ 44,44¢
Impairment, restructuring and other char — 1,061 — 80C 26,07
Other operating expens — 1,104 1,824 623 65€
Total operating expens 38,02t 70,96¢ 148,60t 175,69( 220,37¢
Income (loss) from operatiol 21,95¢ 12,39: (6,980 971 (42,159
Other income (expense
Other (274 12¢ (182) 824 15,76¢
Interest expens (380 (283) (807) (1,55% (4,549
Interest incom: 1,16¢ 862 19€ 267 47¢
Income (loss) before income taxes and minorityrést 22,47( 13,10: (7,77%) 504 (30,467)
Provision (benefit) for income tax 6,521 3,31¢ (5,309 1,09( (12,87¢)
Income (loss) before minority intere 15,94¢ 9,78¢ (2,469 (58¢€) (17,58¢)
Minority interest (15€) 17C 69 (1,772) (1,172
Net income (loss $ 15,79: $ 9,95¢ $ (2,395 $ (2,359  $(18,759
Net income (loss) available to common shareho—diluted $ 15,79: $ 9,95¢ $ (2502 $ (2,739 $(18,81H
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 12 $ 068 $ (015 $ (019 $ (1.1)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 1.0 $ 068 $ (015 $ (019 $ (119
Weighted average shares outstan—diluted 14,51 15,23¢ 16,22 16,517 16,84«

Year Ended June 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data(1):

Cash and cash equivalel $ 94,24¢ $ 39,87¢ $ 14,62: $ 13,79¢ $ 15,98(
Working capital 141,91¢ 147,54: 130,37! 162,15¢ 158,74:
Total asset 229,53¢ 331,80: 347,12 403,49¢ 451,48:
Long-term deb 1,83¢ 32 4,852 5,48: 25,70¢
Total debt 4,46: 2,55¢ 21,10: 17,59: 48,22¢
Total shareholde’ equity 180,39¢ 227,48: 223,62 248,94 247,21

(1) Results of operations for the fiscal years 2004uh 2007, and our financial position as of Juneg2804, 2005, 2006 and 2007
incorporate the effect of several acquisitionsluding that of Spacelabs Medic
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATION

Overview

We are a vertically integrated designer and marnufac of specialized electronic systems and compisrfer critical applications. We
sell our products in diversified markets, includimgmeland security, healthcare, defense and aarespée have three operating divisions:
(a) Security, providing security and inspectionteyss; (b) Healthcare, providing patient monitoridggnostic cardiology and anesthesia
systems; and (c) Optoelectronics and Manufactupngyiding specialized electronic components fditiafed end-products divisions, as well
as for applications in the defense and aerospadeetsaamong others.

Security Division. Through our Security division, we design, maatiire and market security and inspection systeonklwide for
sale primarily to U.S. and foreign government agescThese products are used to inspect baggagm, e@hicles and other objects for
weapons, explosives, drugs and other contrabaneigs to screen people. Revenues from our Sgalikitsion accounted for 35% of our
total consolidated revenues for fiscal 2007.

Following the September 11, 2001 terrorist attatkS,. Government spending for the development agdisition of security and
inspection systems increased in response to thekatand has continued at high levels during @bajlwar on terrorism. This spending has
had a favorable impact on our business. Howevarrduevels of such spending could decrease asudt i changing budgetary priorities or
could shift to products that we do not provide. Aiddally, competition for contracts has become enitense in recent years as new
competitors and technologies have entered this ehark

Healthcare Division. Through our Healthcare division, we design, afacture and market patient monitoring, diagnostiiology
and anesthesia systems for sale primarily to halspgind medical centers. Our products monitor petim critical, emergency and
perioperative care areas of the hospital and peosicth information, through wired and wireless ek, to physicians and nurses who may
be at the patient’s bedside, in another area ofitispital or even outside the hospital. Revenums four Healthcare division accounted for
44% of our total consolidated revenues for fis€2

The healthcare markets in which we operate ardyhigimpetitive. We believe that our customers cleam®ong competing patient
monitoring, diagnostic cardiology and anesthestalpcts on the basis of product performance, funatity, value and service. We also
believe that price has become an important facttiospital purchasing decisions because of presslueg are facing to cut costs.

Optoelectronics and Manufacturing Division. Through our Optoelectronics and Manufacturing diviswe design, manufacture and
market optoelectronic devices and value-added naatwing services worldwide for use in a broad eaofjapplications, including aerospace
and defense electronics, security and inspectisterys, medical imaging and diagnostics, CT, filpgics, telecommunications, gaming,
office automation, computer peripherals and indaistutomation. We also provide our optoelectratéwices and value-added manufacturing
services to our own Security and Healthcare dinsidRevenues from our Optoelectronics and Manufiacfwivision accounted for
approximately 21% of our total consolidated revenioe fiscal 2007.

Despite the overall growth in revenues that we ggpeed, our operating losses for fiscal 2007 greaomparison to the prior year
period, primarily as a result of: (i) a $21.5 nafli charge associated with the impairment of ceitaangible and fixed assets; (ii) $10.3
million of inventory charges following a review ofir product portfolio; (iii) $4.5 million of restoturing charges primarily related to the
consolidation of several manufacturing processesfacilities among each of our three operatingsidris and corporate; (iv) a $0.6 million
charge for in-process research and developmeredeia our acquisition of Del Mar Reynolds; (v) lewsales of patient monitors in North
America by our Healthcare division (such monitoesgrally carry a higher gross margin than manyuofather products); and (vi) cost
overruns in certain long-term contracts for weapsimalation systems sold by our Optoelectronics fadufacturing division.
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During fiscal 2007, we undertook a review of ouwtfl operations as part of our on-going effortmtegrate recent acquisitions and
rationalize our overall cost structure. The reviesulted in the implementation of cost-cutting nuees during the second half of fiscal 2007
resulting in approximately $17 million of pre-taraualized cost savings, including a reduction gdragimately 8% of our global workforce
and the consolidation of multiple facilities. Thdlfyear beneficial impact of these cost savingsxigected to be realized in fiscal 2008.

Acquisitions.  An active acquisition program is an importaengent of our corporate strategy. In the last tlisgal years, we have
invested approximately $35 million, in the aggregab acquire companies, product lines, and teciyies. We believe that our acquisition
program supports our long-term strategic directgrengthens our competitive position, expandscastomer base and provides greater scale
to increase our investment in research and devedopto accelerate innovation, grow our earningsiacgtase stockholder value. We expect
to continue to acquire companies, products, ses\acel technologies. See Note 2 of our Notes to @ioiaded Financial Statements for
additional information related to our recent acijiass.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, we acquire@&e Medical, a global manufacturer and distribot@nesthesia delivery systems,
ventilators and vaporizers. In the first quartefigfal 2007, we acquired Del Mar Reynolds, a glebanufacturer and distributor of cardiac
monitoring systems, as well as an operation thatiges contract manufacturing services. The actiiisof businesses affects the
comparability of financial results between fiscatipds. As a result, we have quantified, where aate, the impact of the businesses that
we have recently acquired.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caoditand results of operations is based on our Gmtated Financial Statements, which
have been prepared in conformity with accountiriggiples generally accepted in the United States.eparation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements requires us to make judgnemdsestimates that affect the reported amountsssta and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effittencial statements and the reported amountsvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. We base our estimates on historical expeei@nd on various other assumptions that we leetiebe reasonable under the
circumstances. As a result, actual results magdifbm such estimates. Our senior managementeasared these critical accounting
policies and related disclosures with the Audit @uttee of our Board of Directors. The following semarizes our critical accounting polici
and significant estimates used in preparing oursGhdated Financial Statements:

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenue upon shipment of products vitlerand risk of loss passes, and when termsixed
and collection is probable. In accordance withtdrens of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “RevenRecognition” and Emerging Issues
Task Force 00-21 “Revenue Arrangements with Mwtipeliverables,” where installation services, ibyided, are essential to the
functionality of the equipment, we defer the partaf revenue for the sale attributable to instadlauntil we have completed the installation.
When terms of sale include subjective customer@aoee criteria, we defer revenue until the aceeggariteria are met. Concurrent with the
shipment of the product, we accrue estimated pitaghigrn reserves and warranty expenses. Criticijipents made by management related
to revenue recognition include the determinatiowbéther or not customer acceptance criteria arfepetory or inconsequential. The
determination of whether or not the customer a@regg terms are perfunctory or inconsequential inspghe amount and timing of the
revenue that we recognize. Critical judgments aistude estimates of warranty reserves, which atabdished based on historical experience
and knowledge of the product.

We undertake projects that include the design, ldpweent and manufacture or fabrication of largenplex cargo and vehicle
inspection systems that are specially customizeait@ustomers’ specifications or that involve &x&te construction. We record sales under
such contracts under the percentage-of-completiethod in accordance with Statement of Position8lel “Accounting for Performance of
Construction-Type
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and Certain Production-Type Contracts.” We recarstand estimated revenues as we perform workllmsthe percentage that incurred
costs bear to estimated total costs, utilizingrttost recent estimates of costs. If our currentreshestimate indicates a loss, we make a
provision for the total anticipated loss in theremt period. Critical estimates made by managemedated to revenue recognition under the
percentage-of-completion method include the estonaif costs at completion and the determinatiothefoverall margin rate on the specific
project.

We recognize revenues from separate service maintencontracts ratably over the term of the agra&snEor other services, we
recognize service revenues as we perform the sanvideferred revenue for services arises from amvpayments received from customers
for services not yet performed. We record billepgimg and handling fees as revenue and the assdaasts as cost of goods sold.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts  The allowance for doubtful accounts involveneates based on management’s judgment, review
of individual receivables and analysis of historicad debts. We monitor collections and paymemsfour customers and we maintain
allowances for doubtful accounts for estimateddeggsulting from the inability of our customersriake required payments. If the financial
condition of our customers were to deteriorateyltésy in an impairment of their ability to makeywaents, additional allowances could be
required.

Inventory. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or markitst is determined on the first-in, first-out methWe write down
inventory for slow-moving and obsolete inventorngdad on assessments of future demands, market icorsdiind customers who may be
experiencing financial difficulties. If these fatsovere to become less favorable than those peajeatiditional inventory write-downs could
be required.

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance We record a valuation allowance to reduce our defietax assets when it is more likely
than not, based upon currently available evidenceather factors, that we will not realize sometiporor all of our deferred tax assets. We
base our determination of the need for a valuatltwmwance on an on-going evaluation of past andecirevidence, including, among other
things, historical earnings, estimates of futunmiegs, the backlog of customer orders and the @rgeiming of deferred tax asset reversals.
We charge or credit adjustments to the valuatitowance to income tax expense in the period in Wwhie make these determinations. If we
determine that we will be able to realize our deféitax assets in the future in excess of itseminded amount, then we make an adjustment
to our deferred tax assets to increase net incartteeiperiod that we make this determination. Lilsewif we determine that we will not be
able to realize all or part of our net deferreddagets in the future, then we establish a valualiowance for the deferred tax asset and
reduce net income in the period that we make thisrchination.

Business Combinations. In accordance with business combination accountiregallocate the purchase price of acquired congsa
the tangible and intangible assets acquired abdilias assumed as well as to in-process reseandidevelopment based on their estimated
fair values. We engage third-party appraisal fitmassist management in determining the fair vatdiegrtain assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in material transactions. Such valuatieqgire management to make significant estimatesaasdmptions, especially with respect
to intangible assets. Management makes estimafes #ilue based upon assumptions believed te@asonable. These estimates are based
on historical experience and information obtaineanfthe management of the acquired companies antlésently uncertain.

Other significant estimates associated with th@asting for acquisitions include restructuring sofestructuring costs are primarily
composed of severance costs, costs of consolidiailifies and contract termination costs. Redtrting expenses are based upon plans that
have been committed to by management, but whickwgect to refinement. Estimated restructuringeeges may change as management
executes the plan. Decreases to the cost estimidaecuting the plans associated with pre-merggvities of the companies we acquire are
recorded as an adjustment to goodwill indefinitefaereas increases to the estimates are recordedajustment to goodwill during the
purchase price allocation period (generally withie year of the acquisition date) and as operatxpgnses thereafter.
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For a given acquisition, we may identify certaie4aicquisition contingencies. If, during the purehpsce allocation period, we are able
to determine the fair value of a paequisition contingency, we will include that ambimthe purchase price allocation. If, as of thd ef the
purchase price allocation period, we are unabtietermine the fair value of a pagquisition contingency, we will evaluate wheth@irtclude
an amount in the purchase price allocation basedtmther it is probable that a liability had beeaurred and whether an amount can be
reasonably estimated. With the exception of unvegbtax matters, after the end of the purchase adlocation period, any adjustment to
amounts recorded for a pre-acquisition contingemithbe included in our operating results in theipd in which the adjustment is
determined.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We test goodwill for impairment at the reportingtdevel at least annually and more frequently
upon the occurrence of certain events. For purpoktsting for goodwill impairment, we have detéred that we have five reporting units,
consisting of the Security division, the Optoelentcs and Manufacturing division and three repgrtinits within the Healthcare division.
We test goodwill for impairment annually during thecond fiscal quarter using a two-step processt, kve determine if the carrying amount
of any of the reporting units exceeds its fair ealWe use a discounted cash flows method to mage¢termination for our Security and
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing divisions anduse a market value method for our Healthcare dimigbased on the market price of the
Healthcare division’s publicly traded stock). Ie#e methods indicate a potential impairment of gdlbdssociated with the respective
reporting unit, we then compare the implied failueaof the goodwill associated with the respectgorting unit to its carrying amount to
determine if there is an impairment loss. We pante this annual impairment test for goodwill durthg second quarter of fiscal 2007 and
concluded that there was no impairment of goodwill.

We evaluate long-lived assets, including intangédsets other than goodwill, for impairment whenewents or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying valuencisset may not be recoverable. An impairmentnsidered to exist if the total estimated
future cash flows on an undiscounted basis areth@ssthe carrying amount of the assets. If an impant does exist, we measure the
impairment loss and record it based on discounséthated future cash flows. In estimating futurshcfiows, we group assets at the lowest
level for which there are identifiable cash flowsattare largely independent of cash flows from o#sset groups. Our estimate of future cash
flows is based upon, among other things, certasnraptions about expected future operating perfoomagrowth rates and other factors.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we recmghnon-cash impairment charges totaling $21.5anilelating to software
development costs, core technology, developed t#oby, customer relationships/backlog and fixecetsOf the $21.5 million impairment
charge, $21.3 million was recognized within the By division and $0.2 million was recognized viitihe Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing division. See Note 8 to the Consdéda-inancial Statements for additional informatidiout these impairment charges.

Stock-Based Compensation ExpenseEffective July 1, 2005, we adopted SFAS 123(R) di®hBased Payment” (SFAS 123(R)),
using the modified prospective approach and thezdiave not restated results for prior periods.ddikdis approach, awards that are granted,
modified or settled after July 1, 2005 have beehwitl be measured and accounted for in accordanteSFAS 123(R). Unvested awards
that were granted prior to July 1, 2005 will contirto be accounted for in accordance with SFAS128, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (SFAS 123), as amended by SFAS N&.“Becounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Traosiand Disclosure—an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 123" (SFAS 148)epkthat compensation cost will be recognizeduinresults of operations. Pursuant
to the provisions of SFAS 123(R), we record stoakdal compensation as a charge to earnings net ektimated impact of forfeited awards.
As such, we recognize stock-based compensatiorootstor those stock-based awards that are estiintat ultimately vest over their
requisite service period, based on the vestingigians of the individual grants.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), we accoulitedtock-based compensation using the intrinsioevanethod prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accdimg for Stock Issued to
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Employees,” and related interpretations and choselbpt the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS H3amended by SFAS 148. Under this
approach, we disclosed the cost of stock optiontgrand discounts offered under our Employee Sagkhase Plan based on the vesting
provisions of the individual grants, but did notofe it to expense.

The process of estimating the fair value of stoakdsl compensation awards and recognizing stocldltasepensation cost over their
requisite service period involves significant asptions and judgments. We estimate the fair valugt@ék option awards on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-valuation model Wwhiequires that we make certain assumptions reggir¢i) the expected volatility in the
market price of our common stock; (ii) dividend Iglig(iii) risk-free interest rates; and (iv) therfmal of time employees are expected to hold
the award prior to exercise (referred to as thesetqal holding period). In addition, SFAS 123(R)uiegs us to estimate the expected impact
of forfeited awards and recognize stock-based cosgien cost only for those awards expected ta Viesttual forfeiture rates differ
materially from our estimates, stock-based comp@rsaxpense could differ significantly from the @anmts we have recorded in the current
period. We periodically review actual forfeiturepexience and revise our estimates, as necessariedtignize the cumulative effect on
current and prior periods of a change in the eséthforfeiture rate as compensation cost in eaminghe period of the revision. As a result,
if we revise our assumptions and estimates, oukgbased compensation expense could change mbtémigthe future. See Note 10 (Stock-
based Compensation) to the Consolidated Finantaé¢i®ents for a further discussion of stock-basedpensation.

Legal and Other Contingencies. We are currently involved in various claims anddlggroceedings. Each fiscal quarter, we review the
status of each significant legal dispute to whiehare a party and assess our potential financpdsxe, if any. If the potential financial
exposure from any claim or legal proceeding is wred probable and the amount can be reasondirtya¢sd, we accrue a liability for the
estimated loss. Significant judgment is requiretiath the determination of probability and the deieation as to whether an exposure is
reasonably estimable. Because of uncertaintieterbta these matters, accruals are based onlyeoetst information available at the time.
additional information becomes available, we resss$iee potential liability related to our pendidgims and litigation and revise our
estimates accordingly. Such revisions in the esémaf the potential liabilities could have a mileimpact on our results of operations and
financial position.

Net Revenues

The table below and the discussion that followsbased upon the way we analyze our business. Sieeldo the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information atblousiness segments.

20052006 20062007
% of % of % of
2005 Net Sale: 2006 Net Sale: 2007 Net Sale: % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Security $123.2 32% $135.1 30% $186.€ 35% 10% 38%
Healthcare 195.7 51% 220.¢ 4% 233.2 44% 13% 6%
Optoelectronics /

Manufacturing 84.¢ 22% 125.¢ 28% 150.5 28% 49% 20%
Intercompany Revent (18.5 (5)% (28.9 (M% (38.0 (7)% 57% 31%
Total Sales $385.( $452.7 $532.¢ 18% 18%

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006 Net revenues for fiscal 2007, increased $79.6 oni)lor 18%, to $532.3 million from
$452.7 million for the comparable prior-year period

Revenues for the Security division for fiscal 20itreased $51.5 million, or 38%, to $186.6 millitnrom $135.1 million for the
comparable prior-year period. The increase wasaiiynattributable to a $28.1 million, or 26%, ieaise in sales of baggage and parcel
inspection and people screening systems, and 4 $#8ion, or 81%, increase in sales of cargo aeliele inspection systems.
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Revenues for the Healthcare division for fiscal 20@creased $12.6 million, or 6%, to $233.2 miilitcrom $220.6 million for the
comparable prior-year period. The increase wasanilynattributable to the inclusion of $28.4 milli@f revenues from Del Mar Reynolds, a
business that we acquired in July 2006, partidiiyed by a decline in patient monitoring sales 8% million and a decline in anesthesia
delivery sales of approximately $0.8 million.

Revenues for the Optoelectronics and Manufactutiagion for fiscal 2007, increased $15.5 milliam,16%, to $112.5 million, from
$97.0 million for the comparable prior-year periodt of intercompany eliminations. The increase prawarily attributable to an increase in
commercial optoelectronic sales of $6.9 million amdincrease in contract manufacturing sales & #6llion due primarily to the inclusion
of revenues from a small acquisition in July 20@6addition, for fiscal 2007, the division recordetercompany sales of $38.0 million,
compared to $28.9 million in the comparable prieafyperiod. Such sales, which are made to the Beand Healthcare divisions, are
eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal 2006 Compared with Fiscal 2005 Net revenues for fiscal 2006, increased $67llfom or 18%, to $452.7 million from
$385.0 million for the comparable prior-year period

Revenues for the Security division for fiscal 20b@reased $11.9 million, or 10%, to $135.1 millifnrom $123.2 million for the
comparable prior-year period. The increase wasaiiynattributable to an $11.5 million, or 12%, iease in revenues in our baggage, parcel
inspection and people screening product lines,za®@d.4 million, or 1%, increase in revenues fromc¢hrgo and vehicle inspection product
lines.

Revenues for the Healthcare division for fiscal@0fcreased $24.9 million, or 13%, to $220.6 miilfrom $195.7 million for the
comparable priogear period. The increase was primarily attribugablhigher patient monitoring sales as well ahéoinclusion of a full yet
of revenues from Blease, a company we acquire@imifary 2005. The increase in revenues was pgrtieiiet by a decline in sales of pulse
oximetry products.

Revenues for the Optoelectronics and Manufactutimigion for fiscal 2006 increased $30.9 milliom,4¥%, to $97.0 million, from
$66.1 million for the comparable prior-year periwet of intercompany eliminations. The increase prawarily attributable to higher contract
manufacturing and commercial optoelectronic sglagjally offset by a decline in sales of defenptelectronics. In addition, during fiscal
20086, the division recorded intercompany sales28f$ million, compared to $18.4 million in the coanable prior-year period.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit is affected by a number of fagtarsluding product mix, unit volumes, pricing, cpetition, new product introductions,
capacity utilization, new manufacturing progranmyeintory obsolescence and the expansion and cdatioh of manufacturing facilities. As
a result, our gross profit varies from period toige: The following table provides a summary of guoss profit:

% of % of % of
2005 Net Sale: 2006 Net Sale: 2007 Net Sale:
(Dollars in millions)
Gross profit $141.€ 36.€%  $176.¢ 39.% $178.c 33.5%

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006 Gross profit increased $1.6 million, or 1%, to $Z7&illion for fiscal 2007, from $176.6
million for the comparable prior-year period. Thegs margin decreased to 33.5%, from 39.0% ovesdhee period. This decrease was
partially attributable to the recording of $10.3lmn of inventory charges during fiscal 2007, fslling a global review of operations during
which we determined that certain finished goodemury values, primarily associated with cargo eeldicle inspection products developed
by our Security division, were impaired. These imeey charges reduced our gross margin by 1.9% .dEleéne in gross margin was also
attributable to: (i) lower gross margins within &ecurity division due to

38



Table of Contents

an increase in sales of cargo and vehicle inspegtioducts that were sold at lower gross margias thur baggage and parcel inspection and
people screening systems, but which we expectlitatdeigher gross margins when future repeat saeglt in greater operating efficiencies;
(i) reduced patient monitoring systems sales hyttealthcare division (such sales generally caighér gross margins than many of our
other products); (iii) growth in sales of contratanufacturing services and commercial optoeleatrproducts by our Optoelectronic and
Manufacturing division (such products and servigeserally carry lower gross margins than the prtsland services of the other divisions);
and (iv) cost overruns incurred during the perfamoeof certain long-term contracts for the develeptrand manufacture of weapons
simulation systems by our Optoelectronics and Mactwfing division.

Fiscal 2006 Compared with Fiscal 2005 Our gross profit increased $35.0 million, o250 $176.6 million for fiscal 2006, from
$141.6 million for the comparable prior-year peri@ir gross margin increased to 39.0%, from 36.8%eé comparable prior-year period.
The increase in gross margin was primarily attabig to: (i) improved gross margins in the Secutitysion due to favorable changes in the
product mix and increased sales; and (ii) increasées of patient monitoring systems by our Healthdivision, which resulted in improved
gross margins as the division was able to leveitadixed cost structure coupled with successfgtadeduction initiatives.

Operating Expenses

% of % of % of 20052006 20062007
2005 Net Sale: 2006 Net Sale: 2007 Net Sale: % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Selling, general and administrati $116.2 30.2% $138. 30.€% $149.2 28.(% 19% 8%
Research and developmt 30.€ 7.% 35.¢ 7.€% 44 4 8.4% 17% 24%
Impairment, restructuring and other char — — 0.8 0.2% 26.1 4.9% NM% NM %
Other operating expens 1.8 0.5% 0.€ 0.2% 0.7 0.1% (67)% — %
Total operating expens $148.¢ 38.€% $175.7 38.¢% $220.< 41.4% 18% 25%

Selling, general and administrative

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006 Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) exges consisted primarily of compensation
paid to sales, marketing and administrative pershmmofessional service fees and marketing expeis® fiscal 2007, SG&A expenses
increased by $10.8 million, or 8%, to $149.2 millivom $138.4 million for the comparable prior-ygeriod. As a percentage of revenues,
SG&A expenses for fiscal 2007 decreased to 28.08 80.6% in the comparable prigear period. The increase in SG&A expenses in 2
over the comparable prior-year period, was primgaitributable to: (i) approximately $13.5 milli@mincreased Healthcare division spending
primarily due to spending in support of Del Mar Relds, a business that we acquired in July 2006 (&nan increase of $4.3 million to
support the growth in the Optoelectronic and Maatwfang division. This increase in SG&A expenses \partially offset by a $5.7 million
reduction in legal expenses as we concluded dtisngl 2007 certain litigation matters involvingi&tce Applications International
Corporation and the General Electric Corporatioweal as reductions in the level of litigation attly associated with an ongoing lawsuit v
L-3 Communications Corporation.

Fiscal 2006 Compared with Fiscal 2005. For fiscal 2006, SG&A expenses increased byZafllion, or 19%, to $138.4 million frot
$116.2 million for the comparable prior-year periéd a percentage of revenues, SG&A expensesdal {06 increased to 30.6%, from
30.2% in the comparable prior-year period. Thednse in SG&A expenses in fiscal 2006 over the coafyba prioryear period was primari
attributable to: (i) a $5.1 million increase in sdig on legal fees primarily in support of ongolitgation with L-3 Communications
Corporation and with Science Applications Interoa#l Corporation; (ii) a $3.3 million increase iorporate administrative spending to
support the overall growth of our businesses; diifpreign
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currency exchange loss of $1.8 million, compared foreign currency exchange loss of $0.2 millionthe comparable prior-year period;

(iv) the recognition of $4.5 million in stock comation expense under SFAS 123(R) which was adaptddly 1, 2005 related to employee
stock options and employee stock purchases; (2)@&fillion increase due to the inclusion of the€&8Gexpenses of Blease for a full year;
and (vi) and an increase of approximately $6.9ianilin general sales and administrative supportsdmssupport the growth in all three of «
business segments. The increase in SG&A expensepavtally offset by the impact of a net decreasthe amount of bad debt expense
recorded for a previously disclosed internatioeakivable for our cargo and vehicle inspection pobtine of approximately $1.7 million as
compared with an amount expensed in fiscal 2005.

Research and development

Our Security and Healthcare divisions have histdiyanvested substantial amounts in research aveldpment. We intend to continue
this trend in future years; although, specific peags may or not may not continue to be funded andifhg levels may fluctuate.

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006 Research and development expenses includercasetated to new product development
and product enhancement expenditures. For fisddl ,20uch expenses increased by $8.5 million, or,2d%44.4 million, from $35.9 million
for the comparable prior-year period. As a peragaiaf revenues, research and development expersesBw% fiscal 2007, compared to
7.9% for the comparable prior-year period. Theaase in research and development expenses wagipyiattibutable to: (i) incremental
spending of approximately $6.6 million by our Heaklre division primarily incurred in connection vgupport of Del Mar Reynolds (a
business acquired in July 2006) and in supporeaf generation patient monitoring products; andificreased investment by our Security
division of $3.0 million, primarily to support nelold (checked) baggage screening products. Theseases were partially offset by a $1.0
million reduction in Optoelectronic and Manufachgidivision spending.

Fiscal 2006 Compared with Fiscal 2005 For fiscal 2006, research and development esqeimcreased by $5.3 million, or 17%, to
$35.9 million, from $30.6 million for the comparahprior-year period. As a percentage of reven@ssarch and development expenses were
7.9% in fiscal 2006, compared to 7.9% in the coraplar prior-year period. The increase in researchdavelopment expenses was primarily
attributable to: (i) incremental spending of appnoately $2.5 million by our Healthcare divisionreamp up for the development of next
generation patient monitoring products; (ii) $2.dlion in increased spending by our Security dieisprimarily to support the developmen
hold (checked) baggage screening products; andh@irecognition of $0.5 million in stock competisa expense under SFAS 123(R) rele
to employee stock options and employee stock psehavhich we adopted on July 1, 2005.

Impairment, Restructuring, and Other Charges

In fiscal 2007, we initiated a series of restruictgractivities, which were intended to realign global capacity and infrastructure with
demand by our customers and thereby improve ouatipeal efficiency. These activities included reihg excess workforce and capacity,
consolidating and relocating certain manufactufagilities and reviewing the value of certain teclugies and product lines. Impairment,
restructuring and other charges primarily includgkyee severance, costs related to facilitiesahano longer in use and the impairment of
certain intangible and fixed assets. The overglidnt of the restructuring activities is that we éwosts and better utilize our overall existing
manufacturing capacity. This enhances our abiityrtprove operating margins and to retain and eagadisting relationships with customers
and attract new business. We may utilize similaasnees in the future to realign our operationsitther increase our operating efficiency,
which may materially affect our results of operation the future.
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Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006 During fiscal 2007, as part of a global reviefwour operations, we assessed the value of
certain technologies and product lines. As a rasfithis assessment, we recorded charges of $31li8rmThis amount consists of (i) $21.5
million of asset impairment of certain identifiatitgangible and fixed assets, and (ii) $10.3 okimory charges, primarily related to finished
goods inventory. Of the $21.5 million of impairmeiarges related to intangible and fixed assetb.3%2illion was recorded within our
Security division and $0.2 million was recordedhiitour Optoelectronics and Manufacturing divisi@di.the $10.3 million of impairment
charges related to inventory, $9.9 million was rded within our Security division and $0.4 milliaras recorded within our Optoelectronics
and Manufacturing division. We have reflected sinstentory charges in cost of goods sold in our ©@tidated Financial Statements.
Additionally, we incurred $4.5 million of restructng charges related to headcount reductions,efflosures, and similar termination issues.
Of the $4.5 million of restructuring costs, $1.8lion was recorded within our Healthcare divisi®d,9 million within our Security division,
$0.6 million within our Optoelectronics and Manufaing division and $0.2 million within the corpeessegment. In fiscal 2006, restructul
charges totaled $0.8 million associated with thesotidation of certain facilities.

Other Operating Expenses

In July 2006, our Healthcare division completeddbquisition of the Del Mar Reynolds Cardiac diersof Ferraris Group PLC. In
connection with this acquisition, our Healthcareiglon entered into retention bonus agreements kathpersonnel and recognized
approximately $0.6 million of other operating expes during fiscal 2007. In March 2004, we complébedacquisition of Spacelabs. As a
result of the acquisition, we assumed manageméertitien bonus agreements for key personnel of $plaseThese retention bonuses vested
over a two year period. We recorded retention esperi $1.8 million and $0.6 million for the yearsled June 30, 2005 and 2006,
respectively. As of June 30, 2007, we had no furtiidigations under these retention bonus agreesment

Other Income and Expenses

% of % of % of 20052006 20062007
2005 Net Sale: 2006 Net Sale: 2007 Net Sale: % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Other income — — % 0.8 0.1% 15.¢ 3.C% NM% NM%

Write down of equity investmen (0.2 (0.1)% — — % — — % NM% NM%

Interest incom 0.2 0.1% 0.3 — % 0.5 0.1% 36% 67%

Interest expens (0.9 0.29% (1.6 (0.9% (4.6 (0.9% 93% 18&%
Total non-operating

income (expense $(0.8) (0.29% $(0.5 (0.29% $11.7 2.2% NM % NM%

Other Income

In fiscal 2007, we received $15.0 million from GealeElectric Corporation in settlement of a dispassociated with our acquisition in
fiscal 2004 of Spacelabs Medical, and a $0.8 nmilpayment in settlement of a dispute with a contetif our Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing division.

In fiscal 2006, we entered into a $25.4 milliongign currency forward contract to buy British posiial anticipation of the Del Mar
Reynolds acquisition. Consistent with SFAS 133, ¢dunting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgingi®ites,” we concluded that this
contract did not qualify for hedge accounting teat and should be booked as an unrealized gahase 30, 2006. The amount of the
unrealized gain was $0.5 million. In July 2006, Bl Mar Reynolds acquisition was completed anddheign currency forward contract
settled, resulting in a fiscal 2007 loss of $0.1liom. In fiscal 2005, no other income was recoguiz
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Interest Expense

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006. In fiscal 2007, we incurred interest expens&46 million, compared to $1.6 million in fiscal
2006. The increase was primarily attributable tréases in borrowings used to fund our acquisitioDel Mar Reynolds in July 2006 and to
fund working capital requirements.

Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005 In fiscal 2006, we incurred interest expensg1o6 million, compared to $0.8 million in fiscal
2005. The increase in expense was primarily atidle to an increase in borrowings in fiscal 20@6upport our working capital
requirements and rising interest rates.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

The effective tax rate for a particular period eardepending on the mix of income earned in variaxgurisdictions that apply a broad
range of income tax rates, income tax credits, geauiin previously established valuation allowarfoesleferred tax assets based upon our
current analysis of the realizability of these defd tax assets, the level of ndaductible expenses as well as tax holidays graotedrtain ¢
our international subsidiaries.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006 In fiscal 2007, we recorded an income tax Eeo&$12.9 million or 42.3% of our preax loss
compared to $1.1 million of income tax expensel®.2% of pre-tax income in fiscal 2006. The chaingthe effective tax rate was primarily
attributable to (i) additional research and develept tax credits in fiscal 2007 and (ii) the rejaditon of dividend income from certain of our
foreign subsidiaries in fiscal 2006, which did ootur in fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005 In fiscal 2006, we recorded income tax expenseldf #illion, or 216.3% of pre-tax income,
compared to $5.3 million of income tax benefit(®8.3%) of pre-tax loss in fiscal 2005. The inceeasthe effective tax rate was primarily
attributable to (i) the inclusion of incentive dtaaptions expense in total compensation expenseddiie adoption of SFAS 123(R) in fiscal
2006, which does not qualify for a tax deductiosuténg in a 146.4% increase to our effective @e rand (ii) the repatriation of dividend
income from Malaysia which qualified for an 85% mmion from federal income taxes which resulted ifil.3% increase to our effective
rate.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

To date, we have financed our operations primanilgugh cash flow from operations, proceeds fromitgdssuances and our credit
facilities. Cash and cash equivalents totaled $&6l@n at June 30, 2007, an increase of $ 2.2ionifrom $13.8 million at June 30, 2006.
The changes in our working capital and cash anld egaivalent balances are described below.

20052006 20062007
2005 2006 2007 % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Working capital $130.4 $162.2 $158.7 24% -2%
Cash and cash equivalel 14.€ 13.¢ 16.C -5% 16%
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Working Capital

The decrease in working capital in fiscal 2007 wasiarily due to increases in customer advancadgtpayables and borrowings under
lines of credit, which were partially offset by grh in our accounts receivable as a result of tang sales in the fourth quarter. The incre
in working capital in fiscal 2006 was primarily dteethe $26.3 million of cash received from theiaipublic offering in October 2005 of a
minority interest in Spacelabs Healthcare and ¢éaitisreases in accounts receivable and inventosypport our growth, which was partially
offset by increased trade payables.

20052006 20062007
2005 2006 2007 % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Cash used in operating activiti $(12.9) $(12.2) $ (2.3 -5% -81%
Cash used in investing activiti (29.6) (16.9) (30.2) -45% 85%
Cash provided by financing activiti 16.C 26.7 35.¢ 67% 34%

Cash Used in Operating Activities.

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctusignificantly from period to period as net incons§), tax timing differences, and
other items can significantly impact cash flowsr @ugest source of operating cash flows is cadleaoons from our customers following t
sale of our products and services. Our primary ofeash for operating activities are for purchgsimventory in support of the products that
we sell, personnel related expenditures, facilitiests and payments for general operating matters.

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006 Cash used in operating activities decrease@i®élion in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal
2006, primarily as a result of reduced growth incamts receivables and inventory due to the additiemphasis placed upon working car
management. This improvement in working capital aggment was partially offset by lower net incomfieenon-cash charges.

Fiscal 2006 Compared with Fiscal 2005. Cash used in operating activities decreased®dlion in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal
2005. Non-cash expenses for depreciation and aratidh and stock based compensation increasech$Bi@n but were partially offset by
the increased use of cash to support operatingsaase liabilities in connection with our 18% reuergrowth in fiscal 2006.

Cash Used in Investing Activities

The changes in cash flows from investing activipamarily relate to acquisitions as well as toitalexpenditures and other assets to
support our growth.

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006. Cash flows used in investing activities inceeh$13.9 million in fiscal 2007 primarily due
to (i) increases in acquisitions of $22.8 milliarnparily associated with the Del Mar Reynolds tiaaton in July 2006 and (ii) the buyback of
subsidiary stock of $4.5 million. Such changes vpaially offset by a $15.0 million payment frone@eral Electric Corporation in
settlement of a dispute associated with our adipisof Spacelabs Medical in fiscal 2004 as welh&.8 million reduction in capital
expenditures in the normal course of business.

Fiscal 2006 Compared with Fiscal 2005. Cash flows used in investing activities deceeld13.3 million in fiscal 2006 compared to
fiscal 2005 primarily due to the change in acgigsitctivity in fiscal 2006, as compared to fis28D5, when we acquired Blease Medical
Holding Limited for approximately $9.3 million (nef cash acquired). In addition, capital expendisuaind intangible and other assets
purchases decreased approximately $1.8 milliohémbrmal course of business.
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Cash Provided by Financing Activities

The changes in cash flows from financing activipesnarily relate to borrowings and payments urdigst obligations to the issuance
and/or repurchase of our stock and to the exeeaieity in our stock options warrants and emplogtk purchase plan.

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006 Cash flows provided by financing activitiesrieased $9.1 million in fiscal 2007 primarily
due to (i) an increase in long-term debt of $19idion which was primarily utilized to fund the agigition of Del Mar Reynolds, (ii) an
increase in borrowings under bank lines of crefi#1®.8 million to support working capital requirents and (iii) an increase in proceeds
from the exercise of stock options, warrants angleyee stock purchase plan of $3.5 million primarélated to the exercise of stock optit
This increase in cash flows from financing acteastin fiscal 2007 was partially offset by cash pexts of $26.3 million received from the
initial public offering of a minority interest ingacelabs Healthcare in fiscal 2006 as compared guoh public offering in fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2006 Compared with Fiscal 2005 Cash provided by financing activities increa$&@.7 million in fiscal 2006 primarily drive
by (i) the $26.3 million of cash received from th&ial public offering in fiscal 2006 of a minoyitinterest in Spacelabs Healthcare, (i) there
were no stock repurchases in fiscal 2006 compar&3.8 million in fiscal 2005, and (iii) a $2.0 #ivh increase in proceeds from the exercise
of stock options, warrants and employee stock mselplan. These increases were partially offset feduction in net borrowings of
approximately $21.4 million in fiscal 2006 as aulesf the cash received from the issuance of Sphsestock.

Borrowings

In July 2007, we entered into a Credit Agreemeitih WWachovia Bank, N.A., as administrative agentsieveral lending banks and other
financial institutions. This credit agreement po®s us with (a) a $44.75 million revolving loarclirding letter-of-credit and swingline loan
subfacilities and (b) a $44.75 million term loanighis repayable over the term of the agreemenrg.t&€hm of the agreement expires on
July 26, 2012. Interest on borrowings under theitegreement varies, depending on factors suduasonsolidated leverage ratio and
compliance with certain financial covenants, but agcrue at either (a) the London interbank offierate, plus between 2% and 2.5% or
(b) the bank’s prime rate, plus between 1% and 1138tler the credit agreement, our accessible bangavailability may be limited,
depending, at various times during the term ofatpieement, on our accounts receivable, finishedgowentory, raw materials inventory
and indebtedness incurred by our foreign-baseddiabies. Accessible borrowing availability is alsabject to our compliance with certain
customary covenants, including financial covenddtsler the credit agreement, we may also haveliigyao increase the size of the
combined facility to up to $100 million and, up@payment of the entire term loan, to increase iteeaf the revolving loan to up to $100
million assuming that we are able to find a leng#ling to finance such incremental amounts. Ouligdiions under the credit agreement are
secured by all of our U.S. assets, including athefequity that we hold in our U.S.-based subsikaplus 65% of the equity that we hold in
certain of our significant foreign subsidiaries aldition, our U.S.-based subsidiaries guarantyobligations under the credit agreement.

Prior to our entry into this credit agreement wittachovia Bank, we had previously maintained a tr&glieement with Bank of the
West. Our credit agreement with Bank of the West/joled us with a $35 million senior revolving linécredit, including a letter of credit a
foreign exchange facility, each of which was sedubrg substantially all of our U.S. assets, inclgdour stock ownership of Spacelabs
Healthcare. Prior to our entry into the credit agnent with Wachovia Bank, our Healthcare divisittoamaintained a credit agreement with
Bank of the West, which provided for a $10 millisenior revolving line of credit, including a lettei-credit and foreign exchange facility,
and a $27.4 million loan to fund the purchase efikel Mar Reynolds cardiology division of Ferra@soup PLC. As of June 30, 2007, $7.5
million was outstanding under the revolving lineenédit of our credit agreement with Bank of thedtvand $8.6 million was issued and
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outstanding under the letter-of-credit facilityafr credit agreement with Bank of the West. In &ddj as of June 30, 2007, our Healthcare
division had $9.3 million outstanding under itsaking line-of-credit and $21.8 million outstandingder its term loan with Bank of the
West.

Simultaneous with our entry into the credit agrestwéth Wachovia Bank, we terminated our creditegnent with Bank of the West
and our Healthcare division also terminated itglitr@greement with Bank of the West. As a resultamounts are outstanding under either
agreement.

As of June 30, 2007, several of our foreign subsies maintained bank lines-of-credit, denominatddcal currencies, to meet short-
term working capital requirements and for the iss@aof letters of credit. The total amount of thessalit facilities was $36.3 million with a
total cash borrowing sub limit of $10.8 million, which nothing was outstanding at June 30, 200@.Whighted average interest rate of these
facilities was 7.1% at June 30, 2007. We have gueea a portion of these credit facilities.

We believe that cash from operations, existing @ahlines of credit will be sufficient to meet aash requirements for the next twe
months.

Other Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Under the terms and conditions of the purchaseeageats associated with the following acquisitiams,may be obligated to make
additional payments:

In August 2002, we purchased a minority equityreséin CXR Limited, a United Kingdom based reshaned development company
that develops real time tomography systems. In 2004, we increased our equity interest in CXRppraximately 75% and in December
2004 we acquired the remaining 25%. As compensadidine selling shareholders for this remainingiiest we have agreed, for a period of
18 years, to make certain royalty payments baseshles of CXR’s products. As of June 30, 2007, ayalty payments had been earned.

In November 2002, we acquired all of the outstagdiapital stock of Ancore Corporation (since rendrRapiscan Systems Neutronics
and Advanced Technologies Corporation), a SanteaCalifornia based company. During the five ydallewing the acquisition, continge
consideration is payable based on the sales @inant its products. The contingent considerat®napped at $34.0 million. As of June 30,
2007, no earn-out payments had been earned.

In January 2004, we completed the acquisition ofakted Research & Applications Corp. (since renaReguiscan Systems High
Energy Inspection Corporation), a privately helthpany located in Sunnyvale, California. During sieen years following the acquisition,
contingent consideration is payable based on itsavenues, provided certain requirements are Tinet.contingent consideration is capped at
$30.0 million. As of June 30, 2007, no earn outrpegts had been earned.

In February 2005, we completed the acquisition letBe. During the three years following the acdjoisj contingent consideration is
payable based on Blease’s net revenues, providérceequirements are met. The contingent conatater is capped at £6.25 million
(approximately $12.5 million as of June 30, 20@%.of June 30, 2007, no earn-out payments had éaered.
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The following is a summary of our contractual obtigns and commitments at June 30, 2007 (in thasan

Payments Due by Period

Less thar
After

Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years 5 years
Total debt (excluding capital lease obligations) $ 44,89: $21,11: $ 8,51€¢ $11,44¢ $ 3,81¢
Capital lease obligatior $ 333 $140¢ $1216 $ 71C $ —
Operating lease $ 55,79¢  $12,07¢ $18,80¢ $13,13¢ $11,78:
Purchase obligatior $ 68,97¢ $61,20( $ 7,77 % 4 $ —
Defined benefit plan obligatia $ 4177 $ 286 $ 34 $ 97 $ 2,57(
Total contractual obligatior $177,18(  $96,07¢  $36,86:  $26,27¢  $18,16¢
Other Commercial Commitmer—letters of credi $ 21,006 $12,91¢ $6,98 $104: $ 60

(1) We have presented the outstanding balance of $4@i8n on bank lines of credit at June 30, 2005 dae within less than one year in
order to conform to the classification in the acpamying Consolidated Financial Statements. In aidibur total debt obligations
exclude interest costs due to their variable na

Stock Repurchase Program

Our Board of Directors has authorized a stock refpase program under which we may repurchase u®@®®00 shares of our
Common Stock. During fiscal 2007, we did not repiase any shares under this program. As of Jun2080J, 1,330,973 shares were
available for additional repurchase under the mogiWe retire the treasury shares as they arealeased and record them as a reduction in
the number of shares of Common Stock issued arsiamating in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of June 30, 2007, we had no off balance sheahgements other than those previously disclosetgfized in Item 303(a)(4) of
Regulation S-K.

New Accounting Pronouncements

For information with respect to new accounting amcements and the impact of these pronouncemerdsraConsolidated Financial
Statements, see Note 1 to Consolidated Financiéi®ents.

Related-Party Transactions

In 1994, we, together with an unrelated compamméal ECIL-Rapiscan Security Products Limited, atj@enture organized under the
laws of India. We own a 36% interest in the joiahture, our chairman and chief executive officensw 10.5% interest, and the president of
Rapiscan Systems owns a 4.5% ownership interestinal investment was $0.1 million. For the ye@nded June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007
our equity earnings in the joint venture amounte#Q.2 million, $0.4 million and $0.3 million, resgtively. We, our chairman and chief
executive officer, and the president of Rapiscast&ys collectively control less than 50% of therba# directors voting power in the joint
venture. As a result, we account for the investrueidier the equity method of accounting. The joeriture was formed for the purpose of the
manufacture, assembly, service and testing of #ga@urd inspection systems and other products. Sufroer subsidiaries are suppliers to the
joint venture partner, which in turn manufactured aells the resulting products. Sales to the jémture partner for the fiscal years en
June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were approximateB/@dlion, $0.1 million and $0.5 million, respeatiy.

We have contracted with entities owned by membeosinBoard of Directors to provide messenger sew, auto rental and printing
services. Included in cost of sales and sellingegal and administrative expenses for the fiscatyended June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007, ar
approximately $60,000, $60,000 and $50,000, resmbgt for messenger service and auto rental; &8j0P0, $80,000 and $50,000,
respectively, for printing services.
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UNAUDITED QUARTERLY RESULTS

The following tables present unaudited quarteraficial information for the four quarters endedel86, 2006 and 2007 (in thousands,

except per share data):

Quarter Ended

September 3C

December 31

March 31, June 30,
2005 2005 2006 2006
(Unaudited)
Revenue: $ 101,87 $ 117,13 $108,09: $125,58t¢
Costs of goods sol 64,91’ 71,99¢ 65,01¢ 74,09(
Gross profit 36,95: 45,13¢ 43,07: 51,49¢
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrative exper 33,41¢ 33,51¢ 33,80¢ 37,69:
Research and developmt 8,731 8,70( 8,851 9,557
Impairment, restructuring and other char 80C — — —
Other operating expens 521 51 51 —
Total operating expens 43,46 42,26¢ 42,70" 47,25(
Income (loss) from operatiol (6,519 2,87: 36€ 4,24¢
Other income — 34¢ — 475
Interest income (expen—net (537) (330 (145) (289
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes amority interes (7,04%) 2,892 221 4,43¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax (2,856 1,861 (820 2,90t
Minority interest — (94¢€) (30) (796
Net income (loss $ (4,189 $ 85 $ 1,017 $ 73E
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ (0.26) $ 0.01 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.04
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ (0.26) $ 0.0C $ 0.0€ $ 0.04

Quarter Ended

September 3C

December 31

March 31, June 30,
2006 2006 2007 2007
(Unaudited)

Revenue: $ 115,52 $ 137,45 $126,49¢ $152,79¢
Costs of goods sol 77,03: 98,17% 82,56 96,29¢

Gross profit 38,49’ 39,28 43,93¢ 56,50:
Operating expense

Selling, general and administrative exper 36,37( 37,96. 36,19¢ 38,67:

Research and developmt 10,81¢ 11,21¢ 11,39( 11,02:

Impairment, restructuring and other char — 21,54 2,22¢ 2,30z

Other operating expens 21¢ 32¢ 11C —
Total operating expens 47,40¢ 71,04¢ 49,92¢ 51,99¢
Income (loss) from operatiol (8,917 (31,767 (5,989 4,50¢
Other income (loss (74) 74 15,77: (6)
Interest expen—net (873) (1,172) (1,159 (870
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes amgority interes (9,85¢) (32,865 8,62¢ 3,632
Provision (benefit) for income tax (3,179 (12,106 3,67¢ (1,269
Minority interest 63€ 14¢€ (1,339 (618
Net income (loss $  (6,04)) $ (20,619 $ 3,612 $ 4,28t
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ (0.36) $ (1.29 $ 0.21 $ 0.2t
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ (0.3¢6) $ (1.2 $ 0.21] $ 0.24
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSUR ES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market Risk

We are exposed to certain market risks, whichrarerent in our financial instruments and arise ftoansactions entered into in the
normal course of business. We may enter into digvivdinancial instrument transactions in ordentanage or reduce market risk in
connection with specific foreign-currency-denométhtransactions. We do not enter into derivatimaricial instrument transactions for
speculative purposes.

We are subject to interest rate risk on our stertitborrowings under our bank lines of credit. Barings under these lines of credit do
not give rise to significant interest rate risk &ese these borrowings have short maturities andarewed at variable interest rates.
Historically, we have not experienced material gainlosses due to interest rate changes.

Foreign Currency

We maintain the accounts of our operations in edi¢he following countries in the following curraes: Singapore (Singapore dollars),
Malaysia (Malaysian ringgits), United Kingdom (U.pounds), Norway (Norwegian kroners), India (Indiapees), Indonesia (Indonesian
rupiah), Hong Kong (Hong Kong dollars), China (G¥se renminbi), Canada (Canadian dollars), Aust(Alisstralian dollars) and Cyprus
(Cypriot pounds). We maintain the accounts of querations in Finland, France, Germany, ltaly anee@e in euros. Foreign currency
financial statements are translated into U.S. doba fiscal year end rates, with the exceptioresénues, costs and expenses, which are
translated at average rates during the reportinggeé/Ne include gains and losses resulting froreifph currency transactions in income,
while we exclude those resulting from translatiéfimancial statements from income and include thkeesa component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (AOCI). Transaction gainslassies which were included in our consolidateceatant of operations amounted to a
loss of approximately $0.2 million, a loss of appnoately $1.8 million and a gain of approximately.4 million, for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Use of Derivatives

We may, from time to time, purchase foreign exclaogntracts, in order to attempt to reduce foreigrhange transaction gains and
losses, or enter into interest rate swaps. As 0é B0, 2006, we had a $25.4 million foreign curyefocward contract outstanding to buy U.K.
pounds in anticipation of the Del Mar Reynolds asiion. Transaction gains during the year endate R0, 2006 included a $0.5 million g
related to this contract. In July 2006, we commldtee Del Mar Reynolds acquisition and the foraigrrency forward contract settled,
resulting in a fiscal 2007 loss of $0.1 millionatdd to this contract. There were no foreign exgharontracts or interest rate swaps
outstanding as of June 30, 2007.

Importance of International Markets

International markets provide us with significanbwth opportunities. However, the following everdsjong others, could adversely
affect our financial results in subsequent perig@siodic economic downturns in different regiofshe world, changes in trade policies or
tariffs, civil or military conflict and other polital instability. For fiscal 2007, overall foreigumrrency fluctuations relative to the U.S. dollar
had an immaterial effect on our consolidated reesrand results of operations. Despite changes netary policy in Malaysia, including the
de-pegging of the Malaysian ringgit to the U.Slalglwe believe that our foreign currency exposarilalaysia will not be significant in the
foreseeable future. We continue to perform ongairglit evaluations of our customers’ financial céind and, if deemed necessary, we
require advance payments for sales. We monitora@oanand currency conditions around the world taleate whether there may be any
significant effect on our international sales im fhiture. Due to our overseas investments andabessity of dealing with local currencies in
our foreign business transactions, we are at rigk Mspect to foreign currency fluctuations.
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Inflation
We do not believe that inflation has had a matémglact on our results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk

All highly liquid investments with maturity of theemonths or less are classified as cash equivaentsecorded in the balance sheet at
fair value. Short-term investments are comprisedigii-quality marketable securities.

The principal maturity and estimated value of aung-term debt exposure as of June 30, 2006 amlaw$ (in thousands):

Maturity
2012 and Fair
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 thereafter Total Value
Secured long term loan and capital lease obliga  $1,251 $62¢ $654 $402 $26¢ $ 3,53 $6,73¢ $6,734
Average interest ral 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1%

The principal maturity and estimated value of aung-term debt exposure as of June 30, 2007 amlaw$ (in thousands):

Maturity
2013 and Fair
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 thereafter Total Value
Secured long term loans and capital leas
obligations $5,74¢4 $5,181 $4,551 $4,63( $7,52¢ $ 3,81¢ $31,45: $31,45:
Average interest rai 8.C% 8.C% 8.C% 8.(% 8.(% 8.(% 8.C%

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

We make reference here to the Index to Consolidaig@hcial Statements that appears on page FHisfdport. The Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm fidetoitte & Touche LLP, the Report of IndependengReered Public Accounting Firm
from Moss Adams LLP, the Consolidated FinanciateSteents and the Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents listed in the Index to
Consolidated Financial Statements, which appeanbeg on page F-2 of this report, are incorpordigdeference into this Item 8.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of June 30, 2007, the end of the period covbyettis report, our management, including our CEe¢cutive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer, reviewed and evaluated the affeness of our disclosure controls and proced(asslefined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aledh Such disclosure controls and proceduresesigmked to ensure that material
information we must disclose in this report is melaal, processed, summarized and filed or submittea timely basis. Based upon that
evaluation our management, Chief Executive Offaredt Chief Financial Officer, concluded that ourctbsure controls and procedures were
effective as of June 30, 2007.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under thpesvision and with the participation of managememiuding the Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, we condedtan evaluation of the effectiveness of our irgkecontrol over financial reporting based
on the framework itnternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on that evaluation, manageconcluded that our internal control over ficiahreporting was effective as of
June 30, 2007.

Moss Adams LLP, an independent registered pubtowating firm that audited the financial statementsuded in this report, has
issued its attestation report, which appears betomgur management’s assessment of our intern&latemver financial reporting.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

As reported in Item 9A of our Annual Report on Fat6iK for fiscal 2006, we determined that the fallog material weaknesses in
internal control over financial reporting existesiat June 30, 2006:

1) In our testing of information technology congolve determined that controls over systems charegegement, program
development, end-user computing, and systems aaces®lated monitoring were inadequately desigmetimplemented. In assessing
these control deficiencies, we determined thattheas an incomplete adoption of recognized industagdards resulting in the lack ¢
comprehensive internal control framework over infation technology; a lack of adequate oversighttperienced managers
knowledgeable and fully engaged with the designiempdementation of effective information technologgntrols; a lack of a
comprehensive training program related to inforovatechnology controls supporting our internal colstover financial reporting; and
that the evaluation and testing of information tealbgy controls was insufficient and was condudiggersonnel who lacked the
competency needed to fully evaluate this area.

2) In our overall testing of internal controls, determined that there was a weakness in the morgtand oversight component
our control environment. We found that there wasifficient and inappropriate verification of therfpemance of certain review contr
and inadequacies in the documentation supportiogeticontrols. Although we did not identify an eiirofinancial reporting as a result
of these observations, we determined that a mateeakness in our monitoring and oversight conti®ksvident. Therefore, we
determined that the design and operation of outrabanvironment did not sufficiently promote effiee internal control over financial
reporting.

During fiscal 2007, we dedicated substantial resesito strengthen our internal controls, includipgrading the talent and technical
capabilities of individuals within the finance aimfiormation technology functions by hiring credaied professionals from outside of our
company. In addition, we took the actions describeldw to address such material weaknesses. Thdeasalso serve as additional
procedures and analyses to ensure that our coatadifinancial statements are prepared in accoedaith accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. We implementedali@ifing measures:

« Evaluated the adequacy of our personnel overséaiognation technology controls and the testinghafse controls;
» Developed a training program for our personnel s&eing information technology controls and theirigsbf those controls;

» Adopted a widely-recognized standard for informatiechnology controls to supplement our existirtgrimal control framework
and evaluated and enhanced our existing proceadesoatrols in adopting that standa
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» Evaluated and improved our information technologligies and procedures, specifically with regardystems change
management, program development,-user computing, and access controls and relatedoniog;

» Developed and implemented a global information netbgy strategic plan; and

» Implemented additional monitoring and oversightogaures over the compilation of journal entries famancial reporting.

Other than the changes discussed above, therebeaweno changes in our internal control over fingreporting that occurred that
have materially affected or are reasonably likelynaterially affect our internal control over fir@a reporting. Our management has
discussed these issues and remediation effortstail dvith the Audit Committee of our Board of Ddters.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Q8t&ns, Inc.:
Hawthorne, California

We have audited management’s assessment, inclndbed accompanying Management’s Report on Inteéoatrol over Financial
Reporting that OSI Systems, Inc. and subsidiatbs, “Company”)maintained effective internal control over finaregporting as of June &
2007, based on criteria set forth by the Commitfe®ponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimis@COSO) in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework. The Compasiyhanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and ifis
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting. Our responsibility isé¢gpress an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectivene$® adpitalize company’s internal control over ficiahreporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahgaéiag the design and operating effectivenessteirnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesaaonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantteagicounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. A comjgimgernal control over financial reporting inckeslthose policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thate@sonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions of the assets o
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurancertireactions are recorded as necessary to perepiaation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplies; and that receipts and expenditures of tiepamy are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (3) provide reasonasdeirance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of the company’s assets that coalkeha material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that O8EB¥g, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effectiterinal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2007, is fairly statedilimaterial respects, based on criteria set foytthe Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Calrtrintegrated Framework. Also in our opinion, O§k&ms, Inc. and subsidiaries
maintained, in all material respects, effectiveinal control over financial reporting as of Jule 2007, based on criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO) in Internal Control—Integrafgdmework.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated financial statements and financiakstant schedule of OSI Systems, Inc. and subsédias of and for the year ended June 30,
2007, and our report dated September 11, 2007 ssguiean unqualified opinion on those consolidatehtial statements and financial
statement schedule.

MOSS ADAMS LLI

Los Angeles, California
September 11, 2007
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Entry into Material Definitive Agreements

On September 10, 2007, we entered into changesdfalagreements with each of Deepak Chopra, cesiéent and Chief Executive
Officer, Ajay Mehra, our Executive Vice Presidentiahe President of our Security Division and Vicae, our Executive Vice President
General Counsel. Under the terms of each of sueatents, if the employee is not retained or leavegompany for good reason followi
a change-of-control event involving our companyg, émployee would be entitled to receive an amoguakto 12 months of his then-current
base salary, plus an amount equal to 50% of anydtrat he received during the prior year. In aoidjtany previously granted, but unvested
stock options held by such employee would be deduoidvested and exercisable by such employeehBsuch agreements is set forth in
its entirety as exhibits 10.23, 10.24 and 10.28f Report.

PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORP ORATE GOVERNANCE

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&tstement relating to the 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Statenieanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2007.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&tstement relating to the 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Statenieanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2007.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&tstement relating to the 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Statenieanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2007.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&tstement relating to the 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Statenieanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2007.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for by this item is herebgarporated by reference from our definitive Pr&tstement relating to the 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Proxy Statenieanticipated to be filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission within 120
days of June 30, 2007.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE S
(@ The following documents are filed as parthi$ report:

1. Financial Statements Please see the accompanying Index to Consetidénancial Statements, which appears on pageffF-1
the report. The Report of Independent Registerdai®Accounting Firm, the Consolidated Financiat®ments and the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements listed in thexitd Consolidated Financial Statements, which appeginning on page F-2 of this
report, are incorporated by reference into Itenb@va.

2. Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule ll—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

No other financial statement schedules are prederst¢he required information is either not apjtlieaor included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits. The exhibits listed on the accompanying ExHimdex immediately following the signature page filed as part of, or
are incorporated by reference into, this report.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules Reference is made to Item 15(a)(2) above.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Q8t&ns, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of OSI Systems, Inc. and Subsidiarie$ &ime 30, 2006 and 2007, and
the related consolidated statements of operatghraseholders’ equity and cash flows for the twayemded June 30, 2006 and 2007. Our
audits also included the financial statement scleeliited in the index at Item 15 in Schedule heSe financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the@amy’s management. Our responsibility is to expesopinion on these financial
statements and financial statement schedule basedraaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheotieolidated financial statements are
of material misstatement. An audit includes exangnbn a test basis, evidence supporting the ara@ntt disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptas used and significant estimates made by neanagt, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial
position of OSI Systems, Inc. and Subsidiariesfalune 30, 2006 and 2007, and the consolidatedtseasflits operations and cash flows for
the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, in cortfowith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States of America. Also, in
our opinion, such financial statement schedule,mdansidered in relation to the basic consolidéitezhcial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the infation set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated fireratatements, the Company adopted Statement ahé&ial Accounting Standard No.
158 “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pe@arsand Other Postretirement Plans—an AmendmeRA&B Statements No. 87, 88,
106 and 132(R),” which changed the Company’s metifatcounting for pension and postretirement bieha$ of June 30, 2007.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
effectiveness of OSI Systems, Inc. and Subsidian&snal control over financial reporting as eing 30, 2007, based on criteria established
in Internal Control-ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiod, @ur repol
dated September 11, 2007 expressed an unqualiegbn on management’s assessment of the effeetsgeaf the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting and an unqualifagginion on the effectiveness of the Company’sritdecontrol over financial reporting.

MOSS ADAMS LLP
Los Angeles, Californii
September 11, 20(
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Q8t&ns, Inc.:
Hawthorne, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatits of operation, shareholders’ equity and clastsfof OSI Systems, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) for the year endedeJs®, 2005. Our audit also included the finandiaiesnent schedule listed in the index at
Item 15. These financial statements and finant&éement schedule are the responsibility of the @om’'s management. Our responsibilit
to express an opinion on these financial statenm@mddinancial statement schedule based on out.audi

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by maregeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all matieréspects, the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year ended June 30, #006nformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statnt schedule, when considered in relation to #sickconsolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all mategapects, the information set forth therein.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Los Angeles, California
September 28, 2005
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivabl
Other receivable
Inventories
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS * EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Bank lines of credi
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued payroll and related expen:
Deferred income taxe
Advances from custome
Accrued warrantie
Deferred revenu
Other accrued expenses and current liabil
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred ren
Accrued pensiol
Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Minority interest
Commitment and contingencies (Note
Shareholder Equity:

Preferred stock, no par va—authorized, 10,000,000 shares; no shares issusatgtanding
Common stock, no par value—authorized, 100,000sb@0es; issued and outstanding, 16,598,361 an8d,2&D

shares at June 30,2006 and 2007, respeci
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Total shareholde’ equity
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financaéti®ents.
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June 30,

2006 2007
$ 13,79¢ $ 15,98(
119,41¢ 140,48
4,49t 5,77(C
120,60: 120,17
13,752 20,26¢
11,65t 11,96,
283,72« 314,63¢
42,52 48,05!
29,06¢ 50,28¢
44,04¢ 28,47¢
4,141 10,03:
$403,49¢ $451,48:
$ 10,857 $ 16,77¢
1,251 5,744
54,28 60,52/
14,24« 15,93}
2,18¢ 1,96¢
2,961 16,73¢
7,22¢ 7,44:
9,31¢ 7,54¢
19,24¢ 23,22t
121,56¢ 155,89¢
5,48: 25,70¢
5,37¢ 5,17¢
2,28( 1,83¢
7,50¢ 4,09:
2,60€ 2,74¢€
144,82( 195,45¢
9,731 8,81%
193,69¢ 207,26(
50,20¢ 31,45(
5,041 8,50z
248,94° 247,21
$403,49¢ $451,48:
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REVENUES

COST OF GOODS SOLI
GROSS PROFI
OPERATING EXPENSES

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except earnings per share data)

Selling, general and administrative exper

Research and developmt

Impairment, restructuring, and other char

Other operating expens
Total operating expens

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATION:!

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Other income (expens
Interest incom
Interest expens

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES ANDINORITY INTEREST
PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXE!

MINORITY INTEREST
NET LOSS

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

SHARES USED IN PER SHARE CALCULATIONM

Basic
Diluted

Year Ended June 30,

2005

2006

2007

$385,04.  $452,68(  $532,28
24341F 276,02 354,06
141,62 176,66 178,21°
116,24! 138,42t 149,20:
30,53’ 35,83¢ 44, 44¢
— 80C 26,07
1,824 622 65¢
148,60¢ 175,69  220,37¢
(6,980) 971 (42,159
(182) 824 15,76¢
19€ 267 47E
(807) (1,556 (4,544)
(7,779 504 (30,467)
(5,309) 1,09( (12,876)
69 (1,779) (1,179

$ (2,399 $ (2,356 $(18,759
$ (015 $ (019 $ (1.11)
$ (015 $ (0.17) $ (119
16,22: 16,51 16,84+
16,22: 16,51 16,84+

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financaéti®ents.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007
(in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Common Other
Number of Retained Comprehensive  Comprehensive
Shares Amount Earnings (Loss) Income (Loss) Income Total
BALANCE—June 30, 200 16,213,42 $170,12¢ $54,96. $ 239 % —  $22748.
Exercise of stock optior 201,89¢ 1,492 — — — 1,492
Tax benefit of stock options exercis — 90t — — — 90t
Shares purchased under employee stock purchase
program 42,43¢ 701 — — — 701
Stock repurchased and retir (264,52)) (3,82)) — — — (3,82))
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — (2,395 — (2,395 (2,395
Other comprehensive income—translation
adjustmen — — — (660) (660) (660)
Unrealized gain on securit—net of tax — — — 10¢ 10¢ 10¢
Minimum pension liability adjustme—net of tax — — — (185) (185) (185)
Comprehensive los $ (3,139
BALANCE—June 30, 200 16,193,23 169,40¢ 52,56¢ 1,65k — 223,62
Exercise of stock optior 246,02! 1,652 — — — 1,652
Tax benefit of stock options exercis — 13z — — — 13z
Shares purchased under employee stock purchase
program 74,25( 1,22¢ — — — 1,22¢
Exercise of stock warran 84,84 1,27: — — — 1,27:
Stock buy back of subsidia — (20 — — — (20
Stock compensation exper — 5,35¢ — — — 5,35¢4
Issuance of subsidiary sto — 18,71¢ — — — 18,71¢
Deferred tax on issuance of subsidiary st — (4,059 — — — (4,059
Comprehensive incom
Net loss — — (2,35¢) — (2,35¢) (2,359
Other comprehensive lc—translation adjustmel — — — 3,352 3,352 3,352
Reclassification of unrealized gain on securitiegtn
of tax — — — (108) (108) (108
Minimum pension liability adjustme—net of tax — — — 142 142 142
Comprehensive incorr $ 1,02¢
BALANCE—June 30, 200 16,598,36 193,69¢ 50,20¢ 5,041 — 248,94°
Exercise of stock optior 411,15° 6,271 — — — 6,271
Tax benefit of stock options exercis — 844 — — — 844
Shares purchased under employee stock purchase
program 77,471 1,17¢ — — — 1,17¢
Stock compensation exper — 5,26¢ — — — 5,26¢
Comprehensive los
Net loss — — (18,75%) — (18,759 (18,759
Other comprehensive income—translation
adjustmen — — — 4,40¢ 4,40¢ 4,40¢
Impact from implementation of SFAS 158 and
minimum pension liability adjustme—net of tax — — — (944) (944) (944)
Comprehensive los $ (15,29)
BALANCE—June 30, 200 17,086,98 $207,26( $31,45( $ 8,50z $247,21:

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financaéti®ents.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegperating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Settlement of Spacelabs purchase dis
Stock based compensation expense
Provision for losses on accounts receivable
Minority interest in net income (loss) of subsigiar
Equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated iats
Tax effect of stock option benefit
Deferred income taxes
Impairment, restructuring and other char
Impairment of equity investments
Other

Changes in operating assets and liabi—net of business acquisitior

Accounts receivable

Other receivables

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related expen:

Advances from customers

Accrued warranties

Deferred revenue

Other current and loi-term liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the sale of marketable securities
Purchases of marketable securities
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipr
Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of businesses—net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sale of minority inter
Settlement of Spacelabs purchase dispute
Buyback of subsidiary stock
Acquisition of intangible and other ass
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds (payments) from bank lines of credit
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on lor-term debit
Net Proceeds (payments) on capital lease obligation

(in thousands)

Proceeds from exercise of stock options, warramtiseanployee stock purchase plan

Purchase of treasury sto
Proceeds from issuance of subsidiary stock
Net cash provided by financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—END OF YEAR
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest
Income taxe:
Equipment purchased under capital lease obligations

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financaéti®ents.
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Year Ended June 30,

2005 2006 2007
$ (2,395  $ (2,359  $(18,759
10,63¢ 14,19( 17,82¢
= = (15,000

— 5,35¢ 5,26¢
4,00¢ 2,79: 1,86:
(69) 1,771 82t
(213 (432) 11
905 132 844
(3,368 (3,709 (22,689
— 80C 22,16¢
182 — —
12) (161) 327
(5,452 (31,679 (15,60%)
2,12¢ (4,269 42
(8,635) (13,687 6,25(
(5,861) 3,451 6,94¢
4,83¢ 9,07¢ 1,74¢
327 647 77€
(9,600) 397 11,45¢
(2,99¢) 497 (779
3,64¢ 3,207 (2,968
(917) 1,76¢ (2,835
(12,859 (12,197 (2,277
— 921 491

= (719 =

58 43 147
(16,82) (16,020 (15,25
(11,45() (311) (23,10
— 18¢ —

— — 15,00(

= = (4,450)
(1,404) (430 (3,030
(29,61) (16,32 (30,200
14,99: (4,928 5,88¢
4,74 2,00¢ 25,41%
(1,799 (484 (4,502
(260) (299 1,30:
2,19: 4,15; 7,651
(3,821) — —
= 26,28( =
16,04¢ 26,73: 35,76(
1,17¢ 95€ (1,096)
(25,25¢) (824) 2,181
39,87¢ 14,62: 13,79¢
$14,62.  $13,79¢ $ 15,98(
$ 595  $ 1,43¢ $ 3,991
$ 379¢ $ 3,00 $ 3,447
$ 73C = $ 2,49:
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business—OSI Systems, Inc. (Company) is a vertically intggd designer and manufacturer of specializedrelgict
systems and components for critical applicatiod® Tompany'’s divisions sell products in diversifiadrkets, including homeland security,
healthcare, defense and aerospace.

The Company has three operating divisions: (a) ®gcproviding security inspection systems; (b)atthcare, providing patient
monitoring, diagnostic cardiology and anesthesgtesys; and (c) Optoelectronics and Manufacturingyiding specialized electronic
components for affiliated end-products divisiorsweell as for external clients in the defense ardspace markets, among others.

The Company’s Security division designs, manufasand markets security and inspection systemalwinlé to end users under the
“Rapiscan Systems” trade name. Rapiscan Systendsigiare used to inspect baggage, cargo, velsintesther objects for weapons,
explosives, drugs and other contraband and tosgreeple. These products are also used for theaadarate and efficient verification of
cargo manifests for the purpose of assessing daiésnonitoring the export and import of controltedterials. Rapiscan Systems products
fall into four categories: baggage and parcel inpe, cargo and vehicle inspection, hold (checkejgage screening and people screening.

The Company’s Healthcare division designs, manufastand markets patient monitoring, diagnostidiodmgy and anesthesia systems
worldwide to end users, primarily under the “SpabslHealthcare” trade name. These products arebyseare providers in critical care,
emergency and perioperative areas within hospasisell as physicians offices, medical clinics antbulatory surgery centers. The
Company'’s Healthcare division also offers centelizardiac safety core lab services in connectiitim elinical trails by or on behalf of
pharmaceutical companies and clinical researchnizgtions. In October 2005, Spacelabs Healthcasabaidiary comprising the business
operations of the Company’s Healthcare divisiompleted an initial public offering of approximatel®% of Spacelabs Healthcare’s total
issued and outstanding common stock and receive@$2illion, net of expenses. The newly issued 8lzdoxs Healthcare shares trade under
the ticker symbol “SLAB” on the Alternative Investémt Market (AIM), a market administered by the Londtock Exchange. As a result of
the initial public offering, the Company recordedhority interest in Spacelabs Healthcare of $7.Bioni. The Company treated the initial
public offering as a capital transaction in accomawith SAB 51, “Accounting For Sales Of Stock By A Subsidiafyuring fiscal 2007, the
Company repurchased shares of Spacelabs Healticamost of $4.5 million, resulting in additiomglodwill of $2.4 million. As of June 30,
2007 the Company owned approximately 84% of Sphsdtealthcare.

The Company’s Optoelectronics and Manufacturingstbw designs, manufactures and markets optoetactdevices and value-added
manufacturing services worldwide for use in a breatye of applications, including aerospace andrief electronics, security and inspec
systems, medical imaging and diagnostics, computedgraphy (CT), fiber optics, telecommunicatiomeapons simulation systems,
gaming, office automation, computer peripherals iaddstrial automation. The Company sells optoeteit devices under the “OSI
Optoelectronics” trade name and performs value-éad@nufacturing services under the “OSI Electrénicede name. The Company also
designs, manufactures and markets weapons sinuktgiems under the “OSI Defense Systems” tradesntth and traffic management
systems under the “OSI LaserScan” trade name anyheeal bone densitometers and ultrasound bonenseters under the “Osteometer”
trade name. This division provides products andises to original equipment manufacturers, as aglio the Company’s own Security and
Healthcare divisions.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Consolidation—The Consolidated Financial Statements includeatmmunts of OSI Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaFesfiscal 2005,
2006, and 2007, the Consolidated Financial Stat&readude the accounts and operating results dfEtronics Pte Ltd, less that portion
of income or loss allocated to minority interesir kscal 2006 and 2007, the Consolidated Finarfgiatements also include the accounts and
operating results of Spacelabs Healthcare and Sg@hsors Hong Kong Limited, less that portion obme or loss allocated to a minority
interest. All significant intercompany accounts arahsactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conigriwith accounting principles generally acceptedhe United
States of America requires management to make agtinand assumptions that affect the reported amotiassets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the reda@imounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could diffesrh those estimates.

Reclassifications—Certain reclassifications have been made to gear amounts to conform to the current year’'s priegion.

Cash Equivalents—The Company considers all highly liquid investnggptirchased with maturities of three months or dessf the
acquisition date, to be cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—The allowance for doubtful accounts involves eaties based on management’s judgment, review
of individual receivables and analysis of historicad debts. The Company adjusts customer creuiiislibbased upon each custonsguaymer
history and current credit worthiness, as deterthimecredit information available at that time. T®empany monitors collections and
payments from its customers and maintains allowafaredoubtful accounts for estimated losses reguftom the inability of its customers
to make required payments. If the financial cooditbf the Company’s customers were to deterioratjlting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances rbayequired.

Inventories—Inventories are generally stated at the lowerost ¢first-in, first-out) or market. The Companyites down inventory for
slow-moving and obsolete inventory based on assassnof future demands, market conditions and custe who may be experiencing
financial difficulties. If these factors are lessérable than those projected, additional inventariye-downs may be required. As part of a
global review of its operations, the Company ass#se value of certain technologies and produesli As a result of this assessment, the
Company impaired inventory by $10.3 million in #@007. See Note 8 for additional information attbis write-down.

Property and Equipmert—Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation and amortization. Depreaiaiod
amortization are computed using the straight-ling accelerated methods over the estimated useéd 6f the assets. Amortization of
leasehold improvements is calculated on the sttdilgd basis over the shorter of the useful lifdref asset or the lease term. Leased capital
assets are included in property and equipment. Anadion of property and equipment under capitasés is included with depreciation
expense.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and Valuatiai Long-Lived Assets—Goodwill represents the excess purchase pricetf n
tangible and intangible assets acquired in busic@swinations over their estimated fair value. Guitlds allocated to the Company’s
segments based on the nature of the product littreecdicquired entity. In accordance with StateroéRinancial Accounting Standards
No. 141,"Business Combinations” (SFAS 141) and Statemefimdncial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwaiid Other
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142), goodwill is tested impairment on an annual basis and earlier ifeth& an indicator of impairment.
Furthermore, SFAS 142 requires purchased intangisets other than goodwill to be amortized oveir thseful lives unless these lives are
determined to be indefinite. SFAS 142 requiresqulici evaluations for impairment of goodwill balaac&he Company performs its goodwill
impairment tests annually during the second quaftés fiscal year and earlier if an event or uitstance indicates that impairment has
occurred. There was no goodwill impairment for fikeal years 2005, 2006 and 2007.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for thgairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” (SFA44) the Company
evaluates long-lived assets, including intangilsieess other than goodwill, for impairment wheneaxents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset nwbe recoverable. An impairment is considereeiist if the total estimated future cash
flows on an undiscounted basis are less than tingicg amount of the assets. If impairment doestexie Company measures the impairr
loss and records it based on the discounted estiafdtiture cash flows. In estimating future casté, the Company groups assets at the
lowest level for which there are identifiable céishws that are largely independent of cash flovesrfrother asset groups. The Company’s
estimate of future cash flows is based upon, anodingr things, certain assumptions about expectedgwperating performance, growth
rates and other factors.

During fiscal 2007, the Company recognized non-gagfairment charges totaling $21.5 million relatiogsoftware development costs,
core technology, developed technology, customaticgiships/backlog and fixed assets. Of the $21llfomimpairment charge, the Compe
recognized $21.3 million within the Security divisiand $0.2 million within the Optoelectronics avidnufacturing division. See Note 8 for
additional information about these impairment cleargrhere were no such impairments in fiscal yeaded June 30, 2005 and 2006.

Income Taxes—Deferred income taxes are provided for temporé#fgrénces between the financial statement andnmectax basis of
the Company’s assets and liabilities, based onteddax rates. A valuation allowance is providecgwit is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred income tax assetbnuit be realized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The Company’s financial instruments consist pritgaf cash, marketable securities, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and debt instrum&hescarrying values of financial instruments, ottemn debt instruments, are representative
of their fair values due to their short-term mdias. The carrying values of the Company’s longntelebt instruments are considered to
approximate their fair values because the intestst of these instruments are variable or comjmtalzurrent rates offered to the Company.

Derivative Instruments—The Company may, from time to time, purchase fpreixchange contracts, in order to attempt to reduc
foreign exchange transaction gains and lossegter mto interest rate swaps. As of June 30, 26G6Company had a $25.4 million foreign
currency forward contract outstanding to buy Bhiimunds in anticipation of the acquisition of Mar Reynolds, a global manufacture and
distributor of cardiac monitoring systems. Trangacgains during fiscal 2006 included a $0.5 milligain related to this contract. In July
2006, The Company completed the Del Mar Reynoldsiaition and the foreign currency forward contreettled, resulting in a fiscal 2007
loss of $0.1 million related to this contract. AsJane 30, 2007, no such foreign exchange conteaissed.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Revenue Recognitior-The Company recognizes revenue upon shipmentaofusts when title and risk of loss passes, and wérens
are fixed and collection is probable. In accordanith the terms of Staff Accounting Bulletin No.4,0'Revenue Recognitiongnd Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 00-21, “Revexuangements with Multiple Deliverables,” wheretalation services, if provided, are
essential to the functionality of the equipmeng, plortion of revenue for the sale attributablentiallation is deferred and recognized when
the installation service is provided. In an instamthere terms of sale include subjective custoroeg@ance criteria, revenue is deferred until
the acceptance criteria are met. Concurrent wighstipment of the product, the Company accruesiattd product return reserves and
warranty expenses. Critical judgments made by mamagt related to revenue recognition include therdenation of whether or not
customer acceptance criteria are perfunctory arisequential. The determination of whether or hetdustomer acceptance terms are
perfunctory or inconsequential impacts the amoudttaning of revenue recognized. Critical judgmeadto include estimates of warranty
reserves, which are established based on histexgedrience and knowledge of the product.

The Company undertakes projects that include tsydedevelopment and manufacture or fabricatiolafe complex cargo and
vehicle inspection systems that are specially coted to customer’s specifications or that invdixed site construction. Sales under such
contracts are recorded under the percentage-ofdetiorpmethod in accordance with Statement of RosiNo. 81-1 “Accounting for
Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Prodn€lype Contracts.” Costs and estimated reveauvesecorded as work is performed
based on the percentage that incurred costs beatitoated total costs utilizing the most recetinegtes of costs. If the current contract
estimate indicates a loss, provision is made fertdhal anticipated loss in the current periodti€al estimates made by management relat
revenue recognition under the percentage-of-comopletethod include the estimation of costs at cetigh and the determination of the
overall margin rate on the specific project. AsJohe 30, 2007, provisions for anticipated lossedirtracts amounting to $0.8 million have
been recorded. As of June 30, 2006, no such pomssiere recorded.

Revenues from separate service maintenance canhfngetecognized ratably over the term of the awes¢s. For other services, service
revenues are recognized as the services are pedobDeferred revenue for services arises from atbvpaayments received from customers
for services not yet performed.

Freight —The Company records shipping and handling fedsatges to its customers as revenue and relatesl @®sbst of goods so

Research and Development CostsResearch and development costs are those caostisdéd the development of a new product,
process or service, or significant improvementrt@xzisting product, process or service. Such argt€harged to operations as incurred.
Grants for research and development are recordexl/asue in the period earned, and the related emstclassified in cost of goods sold.

Stock-Based Compensatier-Effective July 1, 2005, the Company adopted tlwigions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Pat/r(SFAS 123R) using the modified-prospectiversition method. Under this
method, share-based compensation cost is meadutesigrant date based on the estimated fair \@ltiee award and is recognized as
expense over the employee’s requisite service gdoioall share-based awards granted, modifiechacelled as of July 1, 2005. Prior to
July 1, 2005, the Company accounted for its shased awards under the recognition and measuremiraiptes of APB 25 “Accounting for
Stock issued to Employees” (APB 25) and its reléméelpretations and adopted the disclosure ordyipion of SFAS 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS 123). Accordinfglyfiscal years ending prior to July 1, 2005, monpensation cost was recognized for
the employee stock option plan or employee stockhmse plan under the fair value recognition piowis of SFAS 123. See Employee St
Plans at Note 10 to the Consolidated FinanciakStants.
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OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Restructuring charges—The Company periodically consolidates processddauailities of its subsidiaries. The Company reisothe
associated charges as restructuring charges andatak them in the Consolidated Financial Statésnieraccordance with SFAS No. 144,
and SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Exit or Dispogditivities.” In fiscal years 2006 and 2007, the Gumamy consolidated manufacturing
processes and facilities of certain businessesselbensolidations resulted in pre-tax restructucimgrges of $0.8 million and $4.5 million,
respectively. See Note 8 for additional informataiyout these restructuring charges.

Concentrations of Credit Risk—Financial instruments that are potentially subjeatoncentrations of credit risk consist primanfy
cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities @alats receivable. The Company restricts investsriarcash equivalents to financial
institutions with high credit standing. Credit risk accounts receivable is minimized as a resuti@farge and diverse nature of the
Company’s worldwide customer base. No individuatomer accounted for more than 10% of accountsvaltie as of June 30, 2006 and
2007 or revenues for the years ended June 30, 2008, or 2007. The Company performs ongoing cedituations of its customers’
financial condition and maintains allowances fotgmial credit losses. For cost, control and edficly reasons, the Company generally
purchases raw materials and subcomponents frongéesiendor though it generally qualifies seconarses for most of its raw materials and
critical components or have identified alternaterses of supply.

Foreign Currency Translation—The Company transacts business in various foraigrencies. In general, the functional currencg of
foreign operation is the local country’s curren@pnsequently, revenues and expenses of operatitsisi® the United States are translated
into United States dollars using average exchaatgs while assets and liabilities of operationsidetthe United States are translated into
United States dollars using year-end exchange.rateseffects of foreign currency translation atijients are included in stockholders’
equity as a component of accumulated other compedeincome (AOCI) in the accompanying consoliddialance sheets. Transaction
gains (losses) of approximately ($0.2 million), @nillion) and $0.4 million, were included in thensolidated statement of operations for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005, 2006 and, 28§7ectively.

Earnings (Loss) per Share—Basic earnings per share is computed by dividieigmcome available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstaddiring the period. Diluted earnings per shaisputed by dividing net income
available to common shareholders by the sum ofisighted average number of common and dilutiverg@kecommon shares outstanding.
Potential common shares consist of the shareshiEsupon the exercise of stock options or warrantter the treasury stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per share for the figeats ended June 30 (in thousands,
except earnings per share data):

2005 2006 2007
Net loss $(2,395) $(2,35¢) $(18,759)
Effect of dilutive interest in subsidiary sto (107) (380 (57)
Loss available to common sharehold $(2,507) $(2,73¢) $(18,81%)
Weighted average shares outstan—basic 16,22 16,517 16,84«
Dilutive effect of stock options and warra — — —

Weighted average of shares outstan—diluted 16,22 16,511 16,84«
Basic loss per sha $ (0.1%) $ (0.19 $ (1.1
Diluted loss per shai $ (0.1%) $ (0.19) $ (1.19
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As of June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007, approximatdlyr8llion, 3.0 million and 2.6 million, respectiye of potentially dilutive shares
associated with stock options and stock warraotteatively, were not included in diluted earninger common share calculations because to
do so would have been antidilutive.

Provision for Warranties—The Company offers its customers warranties ont maslucts sold to them. These warranties typically
provide for repairs and maintenance for a specifieé period. Concurrent with the sale of produatprovision for estimated warranty
expenses is recorded with a corresponding incrieasest of goods sold. This provision is adjustedgically based on historical and
anticipated experience. Actual expenses of repaider warranty, including parts and labor are cbautg this provision when incurred.

Provision for

Warranties
(in thousands’
Balance on June 30, 20 $  9,19(
Additions 5,55¢
Increase as a result of acquisitic 464
Revisions to prior estimatt (2,149
Reductions for warranty repair co: (6,429
Balance on June 30, 20 6,641
Additions 6,60¢

Increase as a result of acquisitic —
Reductions for warranty repair co: (6,026)
Balance on June 30, 20 7,224
Additions 3,79¢
Increase as a result of acquisitic 43¢
Reductions for warranty repair co: (4,019
Balance on June 30, 20 $ 7,44

New Accounting Pronouncements-On June 30, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS Nq."E&&loyers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Planapsandment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 aB(R)3(SFAS 158). Refer to
Note 15 for additional information regarding thepiet of this standard on the Comp’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretatian K8, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxeBhis Interpretation clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes gaized in financial statements in accordance wilSB Statement No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” This Interpretation is effectfee fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2806 will be adopted by the Company in
the first quarter of fiscal 2008. The Company hasyet determined the impact that this interpretatiill have on its Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Falue Measurements.” This statement defines fdirejaestablishes a framework
for measuring fair value and expands disclosuresitafair value measurements. It is effective fecél years beginning after November 15,
2007. The Company has not yet determined the inthatthis statement will have on its Consolidaéfathncial Statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢"“Fhir Value Option for Financial Assets and Finandabilities- including an
amendment of SFAS No. 115,” (SFAS 159). SFAS N@. 4fows companies
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to elect to measure many financial assets anddiahbliabilities at fair value. Unrealized gainsthlosses on items for which the fair value
option has been chosen are reported in earningsS $fe. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginnafter November 15, 2007. The Company
has not yet determined the impact, if any, that shdtement will have on its Consolidated Finarstatements.

2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Fiscal 2007 Acquisitions—In July 2006, the Company’s Healthcare divisiompteted the acquisition of the Del Mar Reynoldsicee
division of Ferraris Group PLC. This acquisitiorpards the portfolio of products that the Compamieéslthcare division offers to the
hospital market with the addition of cardiac moriitg systems. Del Mar Reynolds also maintainedra taboratory business that provides
clinical trial services to pharmaceutical comparsed to clinical research organizations.

Pursuant to the terms of the acquisition agreeiten€Company’s Healthcare division made an initedlrcpayment of $25.9 million,
subject to a working capital adjustment and todjnsiment of plus or minus $1.9 million based upevenue and earnings results for Del
Reynolds for the 13-month period ending SeptembeB806. In September 2006, Ferraris Group PLC paak $1.7 million in connection
with a purchase price adjustment related to workmgital adjustment and in November 2006, it paicdditional $1.9 million as a result of
the failure of Del Mar Reynolds to meet certainenewe and earnings results for the 13-month perodihg September 30, 2006.

The results of operations for Del Mar Reynolds hlasen included in the Consolidated Financial Statgmas of the date of acquisitir
The total cost of the acquisition, excluding théeptial earn-out, was as follows (in thousands):

Cash paid for common stock, net of cash acqt $24,91:
Less refund pursuant to working capital adjustn (1,699
Less receivable pursuant to-month revenue and earnings adjustn (1,872
Direct costs 794

Total purchase pric $22,13¢

As of June 30, 2007, the final purchase price atioo was as follows (in thousands):

In-process research and development costs acc $ 561
Identifiable intangible assets acquil 7,567
Goodwill 17,20¢
Net liabilities acquiret 3,197

$22,13¢

A history of operating margins and profitabilitysttong scientific employee base and operatiommiattractive market niche were
among the factors that contributed to a purchaise pesulting in the recognition of goodwill. Ingmess research and development costs
acquired were expensed during fiscal 2007, anihaheded in other operating expenses. Projectsdhalify as in-process research and
development represent those that have not yet eéaelchnological feasibility and which have noralédive future use.
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During fiscal 2007, the Company paid $1.2 millianconnection with severance charges, relocatiots @l rent obligations as part of
the integration of these business operations addreg 30, 2007, had $2.4 million accrued for addal payments of such amounts. This
amount is included in accrued expenses and othiegrdudiabilities in the Consolidated Balance Skeet

During fiscal 2007, the Company completed anotlguasition that was not material to the overall €alidated Financial Statements
and the results of the operations have been indlidthe accompanying Consolidated Financial Statemfrom the date of the acquisition.

Fiscal 2006 and Prior Acquisitions—In February 2005, the Company acquired all ofattstanding capital stock of Blease Medical
Holdings Limited for approximately $9.3 million zash (net of cash acquired), including acquisitiosts. The Company recorded the excess
purchase price of $4.3 million as goodwill, nonenfich is tax deductible. The determination of fa®e price in connection with the
acquisition cost was finalized in fiscal year 2008is resulted in no change from the preliminatgation done in fiscal year 2005.
Furthermore, during the three years following theuasition, contingent consideration is payablecblasn Blease’s net revenues, provided
certain requirements are met. The contingent censiobn is capped at £6.25 million (approximatel $ million as of June 30, 2007). The
results of operations of Blease have been inclidéade Company’s Healthcare segment since the aitigui date. As of June 30, 2007, no
contingent consideration has been earned. Thenwmitptable shows the allocation of the purchaseepfin thousands):

Fair value of assets (net of cash) acqu $6,13¢
Goodwill 4,25(
Customer relationshiy 75C
Tradename 1,20(
Developed technolog 2,50(
In process research and developn 30C
Liabilities assumei (4,96¢)
Net deferred income tax (887)

Total $9,27¢

Acquired in-process research and development wargetl to expense as of the acquisition date inrdance with FASB Interpretation
No. 4.

Supplemental, unaudited, pro-forma disclosure efrésults of operations for the fiscal years enhlett 30, 2005, as though the Blease
acquisition had been completed as of July 1, 2i30ds follows (in thousands except per share ansyunt

Revenue: $ 395,611
Net loss before taxe $ (9,076
Net loss $ (3,306
Net loss available to sharehold $ (3,419
Diluted loss per share ( $ (0.2

(1) Earnings per share is calculated based on 16,22 2j@8ed share

In March 2004, the Company completed the acquisitiom Instrumentarium Corporation, a subsidiargeieral Electric Company
(GE), of certain capital stock and assets consiggubstantially all of the business operationSdicelabs Medical. The acquisition
price was approximately $47.9 million in cash
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(net of cash acquired), including acquisition coktdviarch 2007, the Company settled a dispute Bithregarding the purchase and
received $15 million. The receipt of this amouinfr GE has been recorded as Other Income in theoGdaied Statement of
Operations for the fiscal ended June 30, 2007. #atdilly, pursuant to the terms of the purchaseagent, the Company assumed
management retention bonus agreements for keynreesof Spacelabs Medical, which were fully paidfisgal year end June 30, 20
as summarized in the following table (in thousands)

Balance on June 30, 20 $ 2,60
Accruals 1,82¢
Payment: 2,375

Balance on June 30, 20 2,052
Accruals 625
Payment: 2,675

Balance on June 30, 20 $ —

In fiscal 2000, the Company formed RapiTec, In@gRec), a majoritypwned subsidiary. In January 2004, the minorityshalders o
RapiTec accepted an offer by the Company to puechishares of RapiTec common stock held by thamapproximately $1.1 million of
which $0.8 million was paid in fiscal 2004 and $t#lion was paid in fiscal 2005. As a result oéttransaction, the Company wholly owns
RapiTec. The Company recorded the excess purchizsegh approximately $0.8 million as goodwill, r@of which is tax deductible.

3. JOINT VENTURES AND EQUITY INVESTMENTS

In August 2002, the Company invested approxim&bély million to purchase a minority equity interessCXR Limited, a UK-based
research and development company that developsimeatomography systems. The investment was a¢eduor under the equity method
accounting. As a result of adopting FASB InterpiietaNo. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interestties,” the Company began
consolidating this investment during fiscal 200#June 2004, the Company invested an addition8l®dlion in CXR. The Company later
purchased shares held by third parties for a aftapproximately $0.6 million and thereby increagsdnterest in CXR to 75%. In December
2004, the Company acquired the remaining 25% istefes compensation to the selling shareholderghisiremaining interest, the Company
agreed, for a period of 18 years, to make royaynpents based on sales of CXR'’s products. There m@isuch sales during the three years
ended June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007. As a restilesé transactions, CXR is a wholly-owned subsjdifthe Company.

In fiscal 2005, the fair value of the Company’séstment in certain equity securities decreasedctordance with SFAS No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg$ecurities” (SFAS 115), the Company concludeat in other-thatemporary declin
in the value had occurred and recorded a write-dof$0.2 million in its consolidated statement®pérations as other non-operating
expense. As of June 30, 2005, the market pricedf shares had recovered and the Company deterthatthe value of such shares had
risen by $154,000, which represents the unrealigéuls subsequent to the write-down of such investmeMarch 31, 2005. In accordance
with SFAS 115, this recovery was recorded as a corapt of other comprehensive income. The Compalayssh shares in fiscal 2006. Net
proceeds from the sale were $0.8 million and the ga the sale was $0.2 million, before tax, whintiuded the realization of $0.1 million
previously unrealized gain in AOCI. During fisc&ldb, the cash and shares held in escrow were egléashe Company, resulting in the
recognition of an additional gain of $0.2 million.
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4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable consisted of the followingtfinusands):

June 30,
2006 2007

Trade receivable $118,11¢ $138,96(
Receivables related to long term contracts—unbitiests and accrued profit on progress

completec 4,28¢ 3,52¢
Total 122,41! 142,48!
Less: allowance for doubtful accoul (2,996 (2,002
Accounts receivable, n $119,41¢ $140,48:

The unbilled costs and accrued profit at June 807 2re expected to be entirely billed and colkbchering fiscal 2008.

5. INVENTORIES
Net Inventory consisted of the following (in thonda):

June 30,
2006 2007
Raw materials $ 63,78t $ 64,65:
Work-in-process 29,96 25,30«
Finished good 26,85¢ 30,21¢
Total $120,60: $120,17:
6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consisted of the followinglousands):
E%g?&?d June 30,
Lives 2006 2007
Land N/A  $ 5,89¢ $ 6,277
Buildings and leasehold improvements 3-
20 year 14,43¢ 16,59¢
Equipment and tooling 3-
8 year 40,43 44,22¢
Furniture and fixtures 8-
10 year 4,14( 5,20z
Computer equipment 3-4
year: 15,61¢ 23,47(
Computer softwar 10 year 2,45¢ 2,524
Total 82,98¢ 98,29:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (40,46%) (50,247)
Property and equipment, r $ 42,52: $ 48,05

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005, 28062807, depreciation expense was approximately id@lion, $10.6 million and
$13.6 million, respectively. Included in computgu@gment and equipment and tooling are approximai@l7 million and $3.3 million of
assets under capital leases as of fiscal yearsiehae 30, 2006 and 2007, respectively.
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7. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfa fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and 200/&dmdlaws (in thousands):

Optoelectronics

Security Healthcare Manu?:cciuring
Group Group Group Consolidatec
Balance as of June 30, 20 $16,49: $ 5,861 $ 6,34 $ 28,697
Foreign currency translation adjustm 24C 12¢ — 36¢
Balance as of June 30, 20 $16,73: $ 5,99( $ 6,34 $ 29,06¢
Gooduwill acquired during the peric — 20,10¢ 507 20,60"
Foreign currency translation adjustm 253 358 7 613
Balance as of June 30, 20 $16,98¢ $ 26,44 $ 6,85¢ $ 50,28¢
Intangible assets subject to amortization consistede following (in thousands):
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007
Weighted Gross Accumulated Intangibles Gross Accumulated Intangibles
Average Carrying Carrying
Lives Value Amortization Net Value Amortization Net
Amortizable asset:
Software development cos 3year $3271 $ 1,48 $ 1,791 $4177 $ 2,11 $ 2,062
Patent: 10 year 42C 21t 20E 42% 25€ 164
Core technolog 10 year 9,28¢ 1,15¢ 8,13( 2,701 64¢ 2,05z
Developed technolog 12 year 27,57 4,58¢ 22,98 15,06¢ 3,80¢ 11,25¢
Customer relationships/ backl 5 year 5,462 1,64¢€ 3,81¢ 8,14¢ 2,42¢ 5,71
Total amortizable asse 46,01°¢ 9,08¢ 36,92¢ 30,51¢ 9,26( 21,25¢
Non-amortizable asset
Trademarks 7,12( — 7,12( 7,221 — 7,221
Total intangible asse $53,13t $ 9,08¢ $44,04¢ $37,73¢ $ 9,26( $28,47¢

Amortization expense for the fiscal years ended R6) 2005, 2006 and 2007 was $4.0 million, $3l6aniand $4.2 million,
respectively. Future acquisitions could cause tlh@seunts to increase. In addition, if impairmergrgg occur, they could accelerate the

timing of purchased intangible asset charges. AeB0, 2007, estimated future amortization expénas follows (in thousands):

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013 and thereaftt
Total
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Software development costs for software productsetbcensed to others, incurred before establisténhnological feasibility, are
charged to operations. Software development costsried after establishing technological feasip#ihd purchased software costs are
capitalized on a product-by-product basis untilghgduct is available for general release to custsrat which time amortization begins.
Annual amortization, charged to cost of saledésgreater of: (i) the amount computed using tkie that current gross revenues for a pro
bear to the total current and anticipated futumsgirevenues for that product or (ii) the straigig-method over the remaining estimated
economic life of the product. During the fiscal yg@anded June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Conuaguitalized software development
costs in the amount of $1.4 million, $0.2 millionda$0.4 million, respectively.

8. IMPAIRMENT, RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES

During fiscal 2007, as part of a global reviewtsfaperations, the Company assessed the valuetairceechnologies and product lines.
As a result of this assessment, the Company reddadal charges of $31.8 million. These chargesisbof $21.5 million of impairment of
certain identifiable intangible and fixed assets] 410.3 of inventory charges, primarily relatedimished goods inventory. Of the $21.5
million of impairment charges, $21.3 million wagoeded within the Company’s Security division ai@d2million was recorded within the
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division. Of $169.3 million of inventory charges, $9.9 million sveecorded within the Company’s
Security division and $0.4 million was recordedhinitthe Optoelectronics and Manufacturing divisiSaoch inventory charges are reflecte
cost of goods sold in the Consolidated Financiateédhents. Asset impairments were calculated inrdeoge with SFAS No. 144 as discus
in Note 1.

The following table summarizes the impairment,megtiring and other charges (in thousands):

Year Ended
June 30,
2006 2007

Impairment of intangible asse

Software development cos $— $ 16¢
Core technolog — 5,87¢
Developed technolog — 14,46:
Customer relationships/backl — 28C
Impairment of fixed asse — 757
Restructuring charge _80C 4,52¢
Total impairment and restructuring char _80C 26,07:
Inventory charge e 10,30:
Total charge: $80C  $36,37:
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In fiscal 2007, the Company initiated a seriesestructuring activities which were intended to igrathe Company’s global capacity
and infrastructure with demand by its customerstheceby improve operational efficiencies. Thedévdies included reducing excess
workforce and capacity, and consolidating and riog certain manufacturing facilities. These atitg resulted in restructuring charges of
$4.5 million. The following table analyzes the kesymponents of these restructuring activities itetain 2007:

Optoelectronics

and
Security Healthcare Manufacturing
Division Division Division Corporate Consolidatec
Expensed during the ye
Facility closure $1,83i $ 82 $ 19z $ — $ 211:
Unamortized loan cos — 41C — 21z 622
Employee termination cos 121 1,30¢ 37C — 1,79t
Total expensed during ye 1,95¢ 1,79¢ 563 212 4,52¢
Paid during the ye: 1,30¢ 1,59¢ 392 212 3,50z
Accrued balance as of June 30, 2 $ 654 $ 201 $ 171 $ — $ 1,02¢

9. LINE-OF-CREDIT BORROWINGS AND DEBT

On July 27, 2007, the Company entered into a ceggitement with Wachovia Bank allowing for borrogsrof up to $89.5 million. Th
new credit agreement replaces the pre-existingeageats with Bank of the West (described below) civiwiere repaid and terminated
simultaneously with the close of the agreement Witichovia Bank. The facility consists of a $44.78iom five-year revolving credit
facility, including a $35 million sub-limit for l&rs of credit, and a $44.75 million five-year tdoan. Borrowings under this facility bear
interest at LIBOR plus margins that range from 200 2.50% or the bank’s prime rate plus margimas$ tange from 1.00% to 1.50%. The
margins are determined by the Company’s consolidateerage ratio. The facility is guaranteed byssabtially all of the Company'’s direct
and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries and are sstby substantially all of the Company’s and itbsidiary guarantors’ assets. The
agreement contains various representations, wasatfirmative, negative and financial covenaatyj conditions of default customary for
financing of this type.

In July 2006, the Company replaced its second aptkadd restated credit agreement with Bank of tketWy entering into a third
amended and restated credit agreement with BatliediVest. Concurrently, Spacelabs Healthcare, dghubraded, whollyewned subsidial
of the Company, entered into a credit agreement Bénk of the West.

The third amended and restated credit agreemenidg for a $35 million senior revolving line-ofedlit, including a letter-of-credit
and foreign exchange facility. This facility wasseed by substantially all of the Company’s U.Seas, including its ownership interest in
Spacelabs Healthcare. Interest on the revolvingsegas based, at the Company’s option, on eitleebéimk’s prime rate plus up to 0.5%, or
LIBOR plus up to 2.5%. The agreement containedovsrirepresentations, warranties, affirmative, negand financial covenants, and
conditions of default customary for financing oisttype. As of June 30, 2007, $7.5 million was tanding under the revolving line-of-credit
and $8.6 million of standby letters of credit wessued and outstanding under the letter-of-creditify.
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The Spacelabs Healthcare agreement provided f0 arfilion senior revolving line-of-credit, includy a letter-of-credit and foreign
exchange facility, and a $27.4 million term loarfuod the purchase of the Del Mar Reynolds cardjpldivision of Ferraris Group PLC. The
agreement was secured by substantially all of $iseta of the U.S. subsidiaries of the Compahigalthcare division. Interest on the revol
loans was based, at Spacelabs Healthcare’s optiogither the bank’s prime rate, plus up to 0.58@roLIBOR plus up to 2.5%. The
agreement contained various representations, wagsaaffirmative, negative and financial covenaatsl conditions of default customary for
financing of this type. As of June 30, 2007, $9i8iom was outstanding under the revolving lineavédit and $21.8 million was outstanding
under the term loan.

As a result of terminating the aforementioned Bahthe West credit agreements, $0.6 million of uogimed loan costs were impaired
as of June 30, 2007.

As of June 30, 2007, several of the Company’s fpreubsidiaries maintained bank lines-of-credihateinated in local currencies, to
meet short-term working capital requirements amdHe issuance of letters of credit. The total amtai these credit facilities was $36.3
million with a total cash borrowing sub limit of B million, of which nothing was outstanding ahdB0, 2007. The weighted average
interest rate of these facilities was 7.1% at Bhe2007.

In December 2004, the Company entered into a bzark &f $5.3 million to fund the acquisition of laadd buildings in England. The
loan is payable over a 20 year period, with quiriestallments of £34,500 (approximately $70,080m&June 30, 2007). The loan bears
interest at LIBOR plus 1.2%, payable on a quartedsis. As of June 30, 2007, $4.8 million remaiaetstanding under this loan.

In December 2006, the Company entered into a feesy$2.3 million capital lease to finance the pase of manufacturing equipment.
The lease bears interest at an 8.22% annual pageerdte. Lease payments of approximately $47,60payable monthly. As of June 30,
2007, $2.0 million remained outstanding on thede&s addition, the Company has entered into séoeghar capital leases to finance the
purchase of manufacturing equipment.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at Jufgi thousands):

2006 2007
Five-year term loan due in 20: $ — $21,78:
Twenty-year term loan due in 20: 4,721 4,84¢
Capital lease 24¢ 3,33¢
Other 1,768 1,491
6,73¢ 31,45

Less current portion of lo-term debt 1,25] 5,744
Long-term portion of dek $5,48: $25,70¢
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Fiscal year principal payments of long-term debbvfadune 30, 2007 are as follows (in thousands):

2008 $ 5,74
2009 5,181
2010 4,551
2011 4,63(
2012 7,52¢
2013 and thereaftt 3,81¢
Total 31,45:

10. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As of June 30, 2007, the Company maintained tHeviig three significant stock option plans: (a@ 2006 Equity Participation Plan
OSl Systems, Inc. (OSI Plan), (b) the 2005 EquéstiBipation Plan of Spacelabs Healthcare, Inca¢8fabs Healthcare Plan) and (c) the
2006 Equity Participation Plan of Rapiscan Systeloklings, Inc. (Rapiscan Systems Plan).

Stock-based compensation expense has been redoriifedconsolidated statement of operations foydars ended June 30, 2006 and
2007 as follows (in thousands):

2006 2007
Cost of goods sol $ 41¢ $ 30€
Selling, general and administrati 4,46: 4,63¢
Research and developmt 472 323
Stock based compensation expense before 5,35¢ 5,26¢
Related income tax bene 1,268 1,38¢
Stock based compensation expense, net of estirates $4,08¢ $3,87¢

As of June 30, 2007, total unrecognized compensatst related to non-vested share-based compensatangements granted
amounted to: $2.0 million under the OSI Plan, $tillion under the Spacelabs Healthcare Plan and $#llion under the Rapiscan Systems
Plan. The Company expects to recognize these gustsa weighted-average period of 1.5 years wispeet to the OSI Plan, 1.7 years with
respect to the Spacelabs Healthcare Plan and ar$ yith respect to the Rapiscan Systems Plan.

Cash received from option exercises under all shased payment arrangements amounted to $2.2 miihA million and $7.5 millio
for the three years ended June 30, 2005, 2006 @did, Pespectively. The benefit realized in conmectith tax deductions associated with
option exercises under all share-based paymentgenaents totaled $0.9 million, $0.1 million and8illion for the three years ended
June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an employee stock purchase plar winkreby eligible employees may purchase a lanitember of shares of
common stock at a discount of up to 15% of the miavklue of such stock at pre-determined, mlafined dates. During the three years er
June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007, employees purch@s48% 74,250 and 77,471 shares, respectivelyf Bare 30, 2007, there were 198,334
shares of the Company’s common stock availablésgurance under the plan.
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Stock Option Plans

OSI Plan—Under the OSI Plan, the Company is authorized aotgup to 3,350,000 shares of common stock indha bf incentive
and nonqualified options or restricted stock talitectors and employees, including those of itssgliaries. Under the plan, the exercise p
of nonqualified options may not be less than 85%effair market value of the Company’s commonlstt the date of grant. The exercise
price of incentive stock options may not be lesmtthe fair market value of the Company’s commoulstt the date of grant. The exercise
price of incentive stock options granted to indixats who own more than 10% of the Company’s vositogk may not be less than 110% of
the fair market value of the Company’s common stckhe date of grant. Restricted stock may beest such price, if any, and may be
made subject to such conditions (including timetimgsor satisfaction of performance milestonesinay be determined by the administrator
of the OSI Plan. Restricted stock may be repurahasé/or cancelled by the Company if such condstidm not materialize. In general,
restricted stock may not be sold, or otherwise kiypcated or transferred, until the vesting restrist applicable to such shares are remowv
expire.

SAB 107 provides the views of the Securities andiange Commission regarding valuation of shareebpagments pursuant to SFAS
123(R). With respect to volatility, SAB 107 claéfi that no single method of estimating volatil#yproper under all circumstances and that to
the extent a company can derive implied volatitiased on the trading of its financial instrumemtsa@ublic market, it may be appropriate to
use both implied and historical volatility in itssumptions. The Company has certain financialunsénts that are publicly traded from wh
the Company can derive the implied volatility. Téfere, beginning in July 2005, the Company usedied@nd historical volatility for
valuing its stock options, whereas it had previpusied historical volatility exclusively as the reeee. The Company believes that implied
and historical volatility is a better indicator efpected volatility because it is generally refleebf both historical volatility and expectations
of how future volatility will differ from historichvolatility.

The Company determined the fair value of optiossesl during fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007 #seodiate of the grant, using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the followgiweighted average assumptions:

2005 2006 2007
Expected dividen: 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 3.4% 4.€% 4.5%
Expected volatility 58.2% 42.8% 42.2%
Expected life 3.7 year 3.8 year 4.0 year
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The following summarizes stock option activity fbe fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007:

Weighted- Weighted-Average
Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic Value
Options Price (in years) ($000)
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,652,88 $ 14.5i
Granted 377,00( 19.3¢
Exercisec (201,899 7.3¢
Expired or cance (52,840 14.31
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,775,14 16.41
Granted 354,00( 18.5¢
Exercisec (246,02Y 7.6€
Expired or cance (73,916 17.51
Converted out of Pla (30,529 20.2¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,778,67 17.9:
Granted 149,50( 18.2¢
Exercisec (411,15) 15.2¢
Expired or cance (184,899 19.0¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,332,12! $ 18.6¢ 2.4 $ 11,61¢
Exercisable at June 30, 20 996,96:. $ 18.5: 1.7 $ 6,651

The per-share weighted-average grant-date failevaflistock options granted under the OSI Plan v8a81$ $7.04 and $7.13 for the
fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.toted intrinsic value of options exercised durfiggal 2007 was $3.4 million. As of
June 30, 2007, there were 552,963 shares avaftabdgant.

In fiscal 2006, the Company converted 30,529 ogtiomder the OSI Plan into 1,065,680 options urfiee2004 Spacelab Medical Plan.
As a result of the conversion, additional compdoeatxpense of approximately $0.4 million was retngd in fiscal 2006.

2004 Spacelabs Medical Stock Option Plan The Company established the 2004 Spacelabs Meslicek Option Plan in April 2004
under which the Company authorized the grant abut??,500,000 shares of Spacelabs Medical comnoak &t the form of nonqualified
options.

The Company estimated the fair value of each stption award as of the date of grant, using a Blachkoles option pricing model that
uses assumptions detailed in the table below. Tdmepany based expected volatilities on the histbriokatilities of the publicly traded
common stock of a select peer group of compangsatte similar to Spacelabs Medical. The Compangrdened the 2006 expected term
assumption under the “Simplified Method” as defime@AB 107, as it lacks historical data and ishledo make reasonable expectations
regarding future exercise patterns. The risk-fede was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvéféateat the time of grant for periods
corresponding with the expected life of the option.

The Company determined the fair value of optiosseasl during the fiscal years 2005 and 2006 on &l af the grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following \ghted average assumptions:

2005 2006
Expected dividen: 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 3.2% 3.2%
Expected volatility 51.2% 51.(%
Expected life 3.6 year 3.6 year
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The following summarizes stock option activity feacal years 2005 and 2006:

Weighted- Weighted-Average
Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic Value
Options Price (in years) ($000)

Outstandin—June 30, 200. 4,887,50! 0.5¢

Granted 4,188,501 0.8C

Exercisec — —

Cancelec 1,152,501 0.5¢
Outstandin—June 30, 200 7,923,50I 0.7¢

Granted 739,00( 1.1C

Converted into Pla 1,065,68! 0.5¢

Exercisec — —

Cancelec (242,559 0.7¢

Converted out of Pla (9,485,62) 0.72

Outstandin—June 30, 200 — — _ _
Exercisable at June 30, 20 — — — _

The per-share weighted-average grant-date faievailstock options issued under the 2004 Spacélalécal Stock Option Plan was
$0.33 and $0.45 for the two years ended June 3h aAd 2006, respectively. No option-holders urtider2004 Spacelabs Medical Stock
Option Plan exercised their options during fisdc20&.

In fiscal 2006, 30,529 options were converted ftbmOSI Plan into 1,065,680 options of the 2004cBlzd Medical Stock Option Ple
As a result of the conversion, the Company recaghadditional compensation expense of $0.4 miliasrfiscal 2006.

On March 6, 2006, all 9,485,621 outstanding optiamder the 2004 Spacelabs Medical Stock Option Wkne converted into options
under the 2005 Spacelabs Healthcare Plan. As i ofghis conversion, no additional compensatigpense was required to be recognized
for fiscal 2006. The Company does not expect toaraly future grants under the 2004 Spacelabs Meslioak Option Plan.

2005 Spacelabs Healthcare PlarThe Company established the 2005 Spacelabs Hagdtitan in October 2005 under which it
authorized the grant of up to 10,000,000 shar&patelabs Healthcare common stock. Under the 2p88etabs Healthcare Plan, the
Company may grant to employees, including thosessubsidiaries, consultants and to the non-engaalirectors of Spacelabs Healthcare,
incentive or nonqualified options to purchase shafeSpacelabs Healthcare common stock. Stockrmpticanted under this plan may not be
exercised more than ten years after the date ot.gra

The Company estimates the fair value of each optiward as of the date of grant using a Black-Sehofition pricing model that uses
assumptions detailed in the table below. The Compased expected volatilities on the historicaktitities of the publicly traded common
stock of a select peer group of companies thasiardar to Spacelabs Healthcare. The Company détedrthe expected term assumption
under the “Simplified Methodas defined in SAB 107, as it lacks historical datd is unable to make reasonable expectationsdiegdaiuture

exercise patterns. The risk-free rate is baseth@ttS. Treasury yield curve in effect at the timhgrant for periods corresponding with the
expected life of the option.
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The Company determined the fair value of the optissued during fiscal 2006 and 2007 on the dateeofrant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following wbted average assumptions:

2006 2007
Expected dividen 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 4.€% 4.5%
Expected volatility 44.2% 37.&%
Expected life 3.6 year 3.6 year

The following table summarizes the 2005 SpaceladmtHcare Plas’ stock option activities for the years ended Bhe2006 and 200

Weighted-
Weighted-Average
Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic Value
Options Price (in years) ($000)
QOutstanding at June 30, 20 — —

Granted 390,00( $ 2.4¢
Converted into Pla 5,215,45; 1.2¢
Exercisec (2,549 1.0t
Expired or cance (128,790 1.14
Outstanding at June 30, 20 5,474,11 $ 1.37
Granted 997,20( 2.11
Exercisec (282,687) 1.1C
Expired or cance (327,08) 1.45

Outstanding at June 30, 20 5,861,55! $ 1.5C 2.7 $ 1,09¢

Exercisable at June 30, 20 3,294,54! $ 1.2: 2.1 $ 95E

The per-share weighted-average grant-date failevafistock options granted under the 2005 Spacélabithcare Plan was $1.00 and
$0.72 for the two year ended June 30, 2006 and,286@ectively. There were no options granted gadiscal 2006. This intrinsic value of

option exercises under the 2005 Spacelabs Headtlitan during fiscal 2007 was $0.3 million. As ohd 30, 2007 there were 3.9 million
shares available for grant.

2006 Rapiscan Systems PlanFhe Company established the 2006 Rapiscan SystmsrPJanuary 2006 under which it authorized
the grant of up to 10,000,000 shares of Rapiscate8ys Holdings common stock. Under the 2006 RapiSgatems Plan, the Company may
grant to employees, including those of its subsieléa consultants and to the non-employee directbRapiscan Systems Holdings, incentive

or nonqualified options to purchase shares of thgistan Systems Holdings common stock. Stock optjpanted under this plan may not be
exercised more than ten years after the date ot.gra

The Company estimated the fair value of each oigard as of the date of grant using a Black-Schoftion pricing model that uses
assumptions detailed in the table below. The Compased expected volatilities on the historicakhtitities of the publicly traded common
stock of a select peer group of companies thasiardar to Rapiscan Systems Holdings. The Compasydetermined the expected term
assumption under the “Simplified Method” as defime&AB 107, as it lacks historical data and ishledo make reasonable expectations
regarding future exercise patterns. The risk-fege is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvefaceat the time of grant for periods
corresponding with the expected life of the option.
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The Company determined the fair value of the optissued during the years ended June 30, 2006 dh the date of the grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model witk following weighted average assumptions:

2006 2007
Expected dividen 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rat 4.7% 4.7%
Expected volatility 43.1% 37.2%
Expected life 3.6 year 3.6 year

The following table summarizes the 2006 Rapiscastedys Plan’s stock option activities for fiscal 2006 and 2007:

Weighted-
Weighted-Average
Average Remaining Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic Value
Options Price (in years) ($000)
QOutstanding at June 30, 20 — —
Granted 5,048,001 $ 1.4z
Exercisec — —
Expired or cance — —
QOutstanding at June 30, 20 5,04800! 1.4z
Granted 2,913,001 1.5t
Exercisec — —
Expired or cance (198,750 1.4%
Outstanding at June 30, 20 7,762,25! $ 1.47 4.C $ 1,802
Exercisable at June 30, 20 1,255,75! $ 1.4: 3.7 $ 352

The per-share weighted-average grant-date faievafstock options granted under the 2006 RapiSgatems Plan was $0.43 and
$0.47 for fiscal years 2006 and 2007, respectivEiye Company made no grants under this plan dymiiog periods. There were no options
exercises under the 2006 Rapiscan Systems Plamgdigcal 2006. As of June 30, 2007 there werenlllon shares available for grant.

Pro forma SFAS 123 disclosure

Prior to July 1, 2005 and the adoption of SFAS R)3the Company accounted for employee stock optians by applying the intrins
value-based method of accounting prescribed by éuiiog Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Aeating for Stock Issued to
Employees,’and related interpretations (APB Opinion 25). Astsiprior to July 1, 2005, the Company applied AB@nion 25 in accountin
for substantially all of stock-based awards andpadingly, except for certain options issued to-eomployees, the Company recognized no
compensation cost using the intrinsic value mefoodtock-based compensation in the accompanyirantial statements.
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If the fair-value-based method had been appliedéasuring stock-based compensation expense unédé& BB, as amended by SFAS
148, the pro forma effect on net loss and lossspare for year ended June 30, 2005, would have d&ésilows (in thousands, except per

share amounts):

Net loss, as reporte

Add: Stocl-based employee compensation expense includedanteejnet incon-net of related tax effec
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense determmker the fair value-based method for all

award-net of related tax effec
Pro forma net los
Loss per share
Basic—as reportet
Basic—pro forma
Diluted—as reportel
Diluted—pro forma

11. Income Taxes

2005
$(2,399)

(4,266)
$(6,665)

$ (0.15)
$ (0.41)
$ (0.15)
$ (0.42)

The following is a geographical breakdown of incofiess) before the provision (benefit) for incoragés (in thousands):

2005

2006

2007

Pre-tax loss:
United State: $(12,517) $(6,537) $(40,787)
Foreign 4,73¢ ,03i 10,31¢
Total pre-tax income (loss $ (7,779 $ 504 $(30,467)
The Company'’s provision (benefit) for income tagessists of the following (in thousands):
2005 2006 2007
Current:
Federal $(4,567) $ 1,43 $ (4,920
State 694 504 (647)
Foreign 1,057 2,54¢ 5,88
Total current provision (benefi (2,810 4,48¢ 321
Tax effect of stock option benefi 90t 13z 844
Change in valuation allowan 60¢ 201 172
Deferred (4,019 (3,737 (13,86%)
Total provision (benefit) for income tax $(5,309) $ 1,09( $(12,87¢)

The Company does not provide for U.S. income taxethe undistributed earnings of the foreign subsiel, as it is the Company’s
intention to utilize those earnings in the foreaperations for an indefinite period of time. At &80, 2007, undistributed earnings of the
foreign subsidiaries amounted to approximately §illson. It is not practical to determine the ambohincome or withholding tax that

would be payable upon the remittance of these egsni

F-28




Table of Contents

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) consistethe following (in thousands):

June 30,
2006 2007
Deferred income tax asse
State income tax credit carryforwal $ 2,86¢ $ 2,971
Federal income tax credit carryforwal 1,31¢ 2,36¢
Net operating loss carryforwar 2,76t 5,61¢
Revitalization zone deductiol 967 967
Allowance for doubtful accoun 961 977
Inventory reservi 2,56¢ 6,802
Inventory capitalizatiol 4,03 2,841
Accrued liabilities 1,921 3,38¢
Other asset 7,84z 13,81¢
Total deferred income tax ass 25,24 39,74¢
Valuation allowanct (2,249 (2,41¢)
Net deferred income tax ass 22,99 37,33
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Depreciatior (2,240 2,779
State income taxe (1,410 (1,775
Amortization of intangible asse (9,837%) (8,470
Spacelabs minority intere (4,020 (4,276
Other liabilities (1,09€) (89¢)
Total deferred income tax liabilitie (18,609 (17,199
Net deferred tax ass $ 4,39: $ 20,13¢

As of June 30, 2007, the Company has federal reratipg loss carry forwards of approximately $7iliom and state net operating I¢
carry forwards of $0.7 million. The Company’s fealanet operating losses will begin to expire in tdve year ending June 30, 2018 and are
subject to limitations on their utilization. As &fine 30, 2007, the Company had federal credit darwards, including research and
development and foreign tax credits of approxinya$2.4 million and state credit carry forwards,liming research and development
revitalization zone credits, of approximately $gBlion. The Company'’s federal tax credits will iego expire in the tax year ending
June 30, 2015 and the state credit carry forwailld®gin to expire in the tax year ending June3m 1.

The Company has established a valuation allowaneedordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 1@&cbunting For Income
Taxes.” The valuation allowance relates to theopetrating loss of a subsidiary, subject to Sepakatern Limitation Year rules, an
unrealized capital loss related to a widigan of an equity investment, as well as an acquiapital loss carry forward. The Company revi
the adequacy of valuation allowances and rele&sesltowances when it is determined that it is nlikedy than not that the benefits will be
realized.
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The consolidated effective income tax rate diffeosn the federal statutory income tax rate due prity to the following:

June 30,

_2005 _2006_ 2007
Provision (benefit) for income taxes at federalgtary rate (35.0% 35.(% (35.0%
State income taxes and cre—net of federal benef (11.0 66.7 (3.5
Research and development tax cre (24.7) — (2.7
Subpart F incom 5.€ 44.¢ 1.C
Homeland Investment Act Divider — 327.¢ —
SFAS 123(R) stock options adjustm — 146.¢ (0.6)
Foreign income subject to tax at other than fedsteglitory ratt (2.6) (383.9 (7.9
Nondeductible expens: 5.€ 126.: 11
Other (4.8 (6.7 2.2
Change in valuation allowan: 7.8 39.¢ 2.C
Favorable determination of income tax contingen (9.9 (179.9 =
Effective income tax rat (68.9% 216.9% (42.9%

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Leases

The Company leases facilities and certain equipmedér various operating lease agreements. Cdetades provide for periodic rent
increases and may contain escalation clauses aad/at options. Future minimum lease payments usdehn leases as of June 30, 2007 are
as follows (in thousands):

2008 $ 12,07
2009 10,217
2010 8,587
2011 6,971
2012 6,16¢
Thereaftel 11,78:
Total $ 55,79¢

Rent expense totaled $8.1 million, $9.7 million &1d.6 million for the fiscal years ended JuneZM5, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

In October 2004, the Company amended two real prpfeases covering office and manufacturing féesi in Issaquah, Washington.
Under the amendments, the Company extended theofesoth leases by approximately two years andgelshed certain options it held to
terminate portions of such leases early. As a tethd leases expire in 2014. In consideration)ahdlord paid the Company $2.0 million in
cash which has been recorded as deferred rensdmarig amortized over the remaining term of tlasde The leases are accounted for as
operating leases.
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Commitments—Under the terms and conditions of the purchaseeagents associated with the following acquisititins,Company
may be obligated to make additional payments:

In August 2002, the Company purchased a minoritiitgdnterest in CXR, a U.K. based research anceiggment company that
develops real time tomography systems. In June, 28@4Company increased its equity interest in GXBRpproximately 75% and in
December 2004 the Company acquired the remainifig 25 compensation to the selling shareholderghisrremaining interest the
Company has agreed to make certain royalty payniastsd on sales of CXR’s products. As of June B07 2no royalty payments have been
earned or paid.

In November 2002, the Company acquired all thetanting capital stock of Ancore (since renamed &api Systems Neutronics and
Advanced Technologies Corporation). During the frears following the acquisition, contingent comsation of up to $34 million is payable
based on the sales of certain of its products.cbméingent consideration is capped at $34.0 milliss of June 30, 2007, no contingent
consideration has been earned or paid.

In January 2004, the Company completed the acouisif ARACOR (since renamed Rapiscan Systems Higgrgy Inspection
Corporation). During the seven years following #loguisition, contingent consideration of up to $30ion is payable based on its net
revenues, provided certain requirements are metf Aane 30, 2007, no contingent considerationbleas earned or paid.

In February 2005, the Company completed the adpnisdf Blease. During the three years following #itquisition, contingent
consideration is payable based on Blease’s nehuege provided certain requirements are met. Thérggent consideration is capped at
£6.25 million (approximately $12.5 million as ofn#u30, 2007). As of June 30, 2007, no contingensicieration has been earned or paid.

In July 2006, the Company completed another adipnsihat was not material to the overall ConsdkdaFinancial Statements. The
Company expects to make an approximately $ 0.3ami#arneut payment in fiscal 2008. Total contingent coaesation has been capped ¢
0.5 million.

Environmental Contingencies—The Company is subject to various federal, statklacal environmental laws, ordinances and
regulations relating to the use, storage, handlimgjdisposal of certain hazardous substances astésvwased or generated in the
manufacturing and assembly of the Company’s pradlnider such laws, the Company may become liablthé costs of removal or
remediation of certain hazardous substances tivati@en released on or in its facilities or thatehlaeen disposed of off-site as waste. Such
laws may impose liability without regard to whethiege Company knew of or caused the release oflsazairdous substances. The Company
has conducted Phase | environmental site assessfoeriach of its properties in the United Statestdach the Company manufactures
products. The purpose of each such report is tatifge as of the date of such report, potentialrses of contamination of the property from
past and present activities or from nearby opamatitn certain cases, the Company has conducttefuienvironmental assessments
consisting of soil and groundwater testing and oiiteestigations deemed appropriate by indepenelevitonmental consultants. The
Company believes that it is currently in compliamdth all material environmental regulations in oection with its manufacturing
operations, and that it has obtained all materisirenmental permits necessary to conduct business.

During one investigation, the Company discovereabasw groundwater contamination at its Hawthoi@alifornia facility. The
Company filed the requisite reports concerning phablem with the appropriate environmental autiesiin fiscal 2001. The Company has
not yet received any response to such reportshand
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agency action or litigation is presently pendingtoeatened. The Company also has notified the primers of the facility and the present
owners and tenants of adjacent properties conagthanproblem and has requested from such pagregments to toll of the statute of
limitations with respect to actions against suchigs with respect to the contamination in ordext the Company may focus its attention on
resolution of the contamination problem. The Conyansite was previously used for semiconductor nf@acturing similar to that presently
conducted on the site by the Company, and it ipredgently known who is responsible for the conteatibn and the remediation. The
groundwater contamination is a known regional peohlinot limited to the Company’s premises or itmiadiate surroundings.

The Company has also been informed of soil andrgleater remediation efforts at a facility thatfesrson Technologies subsidiary
previously leased in Ocean Springs, Mississippiséie Technologies occupied the facility until O&oB003. The Company believes that the
owner and previous occupants of the facility hasmnary responsibility for such remediation and hameagreement with the facility’s owner
under which the owner is responsible for remedmatibpre-existing conditions. However, the Companynable at this time to ascertain
whether Ferson Technologies bears any exposureruediation costs under applicable environmentallegions. In accordance with SFAS
No. 5,“Accounting for Contingencies,” the Company has aatrued for loss contingencies relating to thevalmvironmental matters
because it believes that, although unfavorableomgs may be possible, they are not considered Inpgement to be probable or reasonably
estimable. If one or more of these matters is wesbin a manner adverse to the Company, the ingrattte Company'’s results of operations,
financial position and/or liquidity could be magdri

Legal Proceedings—In November 2002, L-3 Communications Corporatioought suit against the Company in the District €or
the Southern District of New York seeking a dedlanajudgment that L3 Communications Corporation had not breachedbligations to us
concerning the acquisition of PerkinElmer’s Seguietection Systems Business. The Company assestederclaims against L-3
Communications Corporation for, among other thirfigayd and breach of fiduciary duty. On May 24, @0he jury in the case returned a
verdict in the Company'’s favor and awarded the Camyb125 million in damages. The jury found the® Gommunications Corporation h
breached its fiduciary duty to the Company and ¢@mdmitted fraud. The jury awarded the Company $8Bomin compensatory damages
and $92 million in punitive damages. In additidre fury also found that the Company had breachmzhfidentiality agreement and awarded
L-3 Communications Corporation nominal damagesnaf dollar. Final judgment has been entered anguttggment is currently under appeal.

The Company has previously disclosed a lawsuédfih March 2004 in the 285th Judicial District @dn Bexar County, Texas by
certain individuals, naming the Company and itscgfabs Medical subsidiary as well as a hospitatied in Bexar County, Texas, in a
petition claiming that the individuals sufferedurigs in March 2003 caused, in part, by a defeatiemitoring system manufactured by
Spacelabs Medical. The Company has also previalistyosed a lawsuit, filed in April 2004 in the 2Tsdicial District Court, Parish of
Tangipahoa, Louisiana by certain individuals, nagrtire Company’s Spacelabs Medical subsidiary akasedeveral other defendants, in a
petition that alleges, among other things, thatoalpct possibly manufactured by Spacelabs Medaibdd to properly monitor a hospital
patient thereby contributing to the patient’'s déatNovember 2001. The Company does not presentigider either of these legal
proceedings to be material to its business anefiwer will no longer disclose information aboutrthan the reports that it files with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Company is also involved in various other ckaand legal proceedings arising out of the ordimaryrse of business which have
been previously disclosed in its quarterly and ahneports. In the Company’s opinion after congidtawith legal counsel, the ultimate
disposition of such proceedings will not have aeriat adverse effect on its financial position ufigt results of operations, or cash flows.
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In accordance with SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for dogencies,” the Company has not accrued for lossimgencies relating to the
above matters because the Company believes ttraiugh unfavorable outcomes in the proceedingslmegyossible, they are not considered
by management to be probable or reasonably estimHitane or more of these matters are resolvedrimanner adverse to the Company, the
impact on the Company'’s results of operations i@ position and/or liquidity could be material.

13. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stock Repurchase Program

The Company’s Board of Directors has authorizedrees of common stock repurchase programs. Durauglf2005, the Company
repurchased 264,527 shares for $3.8 million. Dufiseal years 2006 and 2007, no shares were repsiechunder this program. At June 30,
2007, 1,330,973 shares were available for repuechader the stock repurchase program. The Compamgrally retires the treasury share
they are repurchased which are recorded as a reddicim common shares in the accompanying ConataiFinancial Statements.

Warrants

In December 2001, the Company issued and sold gregate of 2,070,000 shares of common stock ifvaterplacement to
institutional investors and received net procedd?38.3 million. As part of the transaction, ther@many issued warrants to purchase 621,000
additional shares of the Company’s common stoenaxercise price of $23.47 per share exercisataryatime, in full or part, no later than
December 10, 2008.

In October 2002, the Company issued and sold areggte of 1,250,000 shares of common stock invafariplacement to institutional
investors and received net proceeds of $20.5 mills part of the transaction, the Company issuadamts to purchase 281,250 additional
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exepcise of $21.22 per share exercisable at any timiiyll or part, no later than
October 21, 2009.

In June 2004, the Company issued and sold an aajgref 1,500,000 shares of common stock in a migktcement to institutional
investors and received net proceeds of $31 millkanpart of the transaction, the Company issuedamis to purchase 337,500 additional
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exepcice of $27.73 per share exercisable at any timiill or part, no later than June 1,
2011.

During fiscal year 2006, 84,847 warrants were d@gettresulting in net proceeds to the Company pf@pmately $1.3 million.

The following summarizes the warrants outstandmgfalune 30, 2007:

Warrants Outstanding

Number Remaining
Outstanding at Contractual Life
Exercise Prices June 30, 2007 (Years)
$23.47 621,00( 1.3¢€
$21.22 281,25( 2.31
$27.73 337,50( 3.9z
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14. Related-Party Transactions

In 1994, the Company, together with an unrelatbértompany, formed ECIL-Rapiscan Security Produirtsted, a joint venture
organized under the laws of India. The Company oavB6% interest in the joint venture, the Compauiairman and chief executive officer
owns a 10.5% interest, and the president of theg@oryis Security division owns a 4.5% ownershipriese The Company’s initial
investment was approximately $0.1 million. For ylears ended June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Gyrspjuity earnings in the joint
venture were approximately to $0.2 million, $0.4liom and $0.3 million, respectively. The Compaitg,chairman and chief executive offi
and the president of the Company’s Security divisiollectively control less than 50% of the boafdlicectors voting power in the joint
venture. As a result, the Company accounts fombestment under the equity method of accountifg jbint venture was formed for the
purpose of the manufacture, assembly, serviceestmhg of security and inspection systems and giteducts. Some of the Company’s
subsidiaries are suppliers to the joint ventureéngear which in turn manufactures and sells theltieguproducts. Sales to the joint venture
partner for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20086 2and 2007 were approximately $0.2 million, $@illion and $0.5 million, respectively.

The Company has contracted with entities ownedrbglated to directors of the Company to providesesager service, auto rental and
printing services. Such expenses for the fiscatsyeaded June 30, 2005, 2006 and 2007 were appatedyr$60,000, $60,000 and $50,000
for messenger services and auto rental and $70$800000 and $50,000 for printing services, respelgt

15. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a qualified employee retiremeribhgawplan. Participants can contribute certain ammto the plan and the Company
matches a certain portion of employee contributidiie Company contributed approximately $1.1 mil]i1.2 million and $1.3 million to
the plan for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20086 and 2007, respectively.

The Company sponsors a number of qualified and ualified pension plans for its employees. The Camypedopted SFAS 158 on
June 30, 2007. The new standard requires comptmnfally recognize the overfunded or underfundedust of each of its defined benefit p
as an asset or liability in the consolidated badasimeet. The asset or liability equals the diffeegmetween the fair value of the plan’s assets
and its benefit obligation. SFAS 158 has no impacthe amount of expense recognized in the coregelidstatement of income.

SFAS 158 is required to be adopted on a prospebtisis. Therefore, the Company’s June 30, 2006otidased balance sheet was not
restated. The adoption of SFAS 158 was recordedh asljustment to assets and liabilities to reflieetplans’ funded status (rather than a
prepaid asset or accrued liability), with a coragting decrease in AOCI, which is a component afaolders’ equity. The net-of-tax
decrease in AOCI at June 30, 2007 relating to tleption of SFAS 158 was $1.6 million. The impactdbption of SFAS 158 on individual
line items in the Company’s consolidated balaneesht June 30, 2007 (including related deferredbédances) was a decrease in the short-
term deferred income tax asset of $0.2 million andncrease in other long-term liabilities of $inBlion. The net total after-tax decrease in
AOCI in fiscal 2007 relating to defined benefit gam plans was $0.9 million.

In future years, unrecognized amounts included@CAat June 30, 2007 will be reclassified from AQE€letained earnings as the
amounts are recognized in the consolidated incdateraent pursuant to SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Aating for Pensions,” SFAS No. 88,
“Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtagms
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of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for TerminmaBenefits,” and SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accougtifor Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions.” As noted above, SFAS 158 doeshange the amount of net pension cost thathe recognized under SFAS Nos.
87, 88 and 106.

As required by SFAS 158, the liabilities associatéth underfunded plans are classified as nonctirestcept to the extent the fair val
of the plan’s assets is less than the plan’s egtignaenefit payments over the next 12 months. hjurwtion with the adoption of SFAS 158
on June 30, 2007, the Company made the requiredridutand noncurrent reclassifications in its coidstéd balance sheet.

The Company uses a June 30 measurement date penison plans

The following provides a reconciliation of the clgas in the plans’ benefit obligations and fair eatf assets for fiscal years 2006 and
2007, and a statement of the funded status asef3@, 2006 and 2007 (in thousands):

2006 2007

Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 7,07¢ $ 8,68(
Translation adjustmel 323 56E
Service cost 20z 35C
Interest cost 33C 42t
Plan participan’ contributions 15 4
Actuarial (loss) gait 974 (895)
Actuarial loss from settleme — (187)
Benefits paic (2417) (459)
Benefit obligation at end of ye 8,68( 8,48¢
Change in Plan Asset:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ 4,19: 4,88¢
Translation adjustmel 17¢€ 34¢€
Actual return on plan asse 284 13
Company contribution 45¢ 55C
Plan participan’ contributions 15 4
Benefits paic (247) (447)
Fair value of plan assets at end of y 4,88¢ 5,35(
Funded statu (3,795 (3,139
Unrecognized net actuarial lo 3,177 2,66:
Net amount recognize $ (615 $ (479
Amount recognized in balance sheets consis

Accumulated other comprehensive inca $ 98C $ (23€)

Accrued pension liabilit (1,599 (1,645

Net amount recognize $ (61f)  $(1,88))

The following table provides the net periodic béinafsts for each of the fiscal years ended Junéi®@ousands):
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2005 2006 2007
Net Periodic Benefit Costs
Service cost $ 187 $ 20< $ 35C
Interest cost 324 33C 42F
Expected return on plan ass (179 (21%) (325)
Amortization of prior service cos 40 42 91
Recognized actuarial lo: 11€ 121 90
Net periodic benefit cos $ 48¢ $ 481 $ 631
Plan Assumptions
200¢ 2007
Weighted average assumptions at -end:

Discount rate 4.$% 5.4%

Expected return on plan ass 6.2% 6.4%

Rate of compensation incree 3.€% 3.8%

The long term return on assets has been derivedtite weighted average of assumed returns on ddhk major asset categories. The
weighted average is based on the actual propasfieach major asset class held, rather than a beargtportfolio of assets. The expected
returns for each major asset class have been ddrivam a combination of both historical market regiand current market data as well as
views of a range of investment managers.

Plan Assets and Investment Policy

Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007
Proportion of Expected Rat¢ Proportion of Expected Rat¢
Fair Value of Return Fair Value of Return
Equity securitie: 42% 8% 48% 8%
Debt securitie! 49% 5% 43% 5%
Other 9% 4% 9% 5%
Combined 100.(% 6.2% 100.(% 6.4%

The defined benefit plangissets are invested in a range of pooled investiards that provide access to a diverse rangeset atasse
The investment objective is to maximize the invesitreturn over the long term without exposingftived to an unnecessary level of risk.
Within this objective, it is recognized that betefiill be secured by the purchase of annuitigheatime of employee retirement.

The benchmark is to hold assets broadly in thegatam of 50% equity securities and 50% debt se¢iesti This proportion is allowed to
fluctuate with market movements and is not formadlgalanced. The equity holdings are maintaindzhlanced funds under the control of
investment managers.
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Day-to-day equities selection decisions are detsbd investment managers, although these are onediaigainst performance and risk
targets. Due to the nature of the pooled fundsethee no significant holdings in any single comp@reater than 5% of the total assets). The
investment strategy is reviewed on a regular basised on the results of the liability studies.

Projected Benefit Payments

The following table reflects estimated benefitsipapts, based upon the same assumptions used tamnéaes benefit obligation and
net pension cost, as of June 30, 2007 (in thou3ands

Pension Benefit

July 1, 2007 to June 30, 20 $ 28¢€
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 20 124
July 1, 2009 to June 30, 20 21¢
July 1, 2010 to June 30, 20 13¢
July 1, 2011 to June 30, 20 83¢
July 1, 2012 to June 30, 20 2,57(

Company Contribution

Currently, the agreed Company’s weighted averagéibation rate is 16% of pensionable salarieghdéf Company contributions
continue at the current rate, the estimated totah@any contributions for fiscal 2008 will be approately $0.5 million.

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures al®agments of an Enterprise and Related Informa{iSFAS No. 131), the
Company has determined that it operates in threstifiable industry segments, (a) security and éegpn systems (Security division),
(b) medical monitoring and anesthesia systems (hieade division), and (c) optoelectronic deviced aranufacturing (Optoelectronics and
Manufacturing division). The Company also has gomate segment (Corporate) that includes execativgpensation and certain other
general and administrative expenses, expensesddtastock issuances and legal, audit and otleéegsional service fees not allocated to
product segments. Both the Security and Healthdiaisions comprise primarily end-product businesshsreas the businesses of the
Optoelectronics and Manufacturing division comsibasinesses that primarily supply components ahgystems to original equipment
manufacturers, including to businesses of the $igcamd Healthcare divisions. Sales between dinsiare at transfer prices that are
equivalent to market values. All other accountingqes of the segments are the same as descnbedte 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.
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The following tables present the operations andtiflable assets by industry segment (in thousands)

Revenues
External customer reveni
Revenue between product segme

Total revenue
Income (loss) from operatiol
Segments asse
Capital expenditure
Depreciatior

Revenues
External customer reveni
Revenue between product segme

Total revenue
Income (loss) from operatiol
Segment asse
Capital expenditure
Depreciatior

Revenues
External customer reveni
Revenue between product segme

Total revenue
Income (loss) from operatiol
Segment asse
Capital expenditure
Depreciatior

2005
Optoelectronics
and
Healthcare Manufacturing
Security
Division Division Division Corporate Eliminations Consolidatec
$123,19° $195,69¢ $ 66,14t $ — $ — $ 385,04:
_ —_ 18,41: — (18,419 —
$123,19° $195,69¢ $ 8455 $ — $ (18,415  $ 385,04:
$ (5439 $ 83% $  6,15¢ $15420 $ (675 $ (6,980
$143,16¢ $127,90¢ $ 57,44¢  $ 21,60 $ (3,009 & 347,12(
$ 11,41( $ 3,98: $ 258 $ (399 $ = $ 17,58¢
$ 2,78t $ 167¢ $ 182, $ 324 $ — $ 6,61(
2006
Optoelectronics
and
Healthcare Manufacturing
Security
Division Division Division Corporate Eliminations Consolidatec
$135,08¢ $220,62- $ 96,97 $ — $ — $ 452,68t
- - 28,89" - (28,89)) -
$135,08¢ $220,62- $ 12587( $ — $ (28,89)) $ 452,68¢
$ (640) $1466( $ 1250° $(24,780 $ (76§ $ 971
$169,19° $149,19¢ $ 74,02¢  $19,70¢ $ (8,637 $ 403,49¢
$ 5,63¢ $ 5,91: $ 3,46¢ $ 1,00f $ — $ 16,02(
$ 4,96¢ $ 3,05¢ $ 2,12¢ § 417 $ — $ 10,56¢
2007
Optoelectronics
and
Healthcare Manufacturing
Security
Division Division Division Corporate Eliminations Consolidatec
$186,57" $233,17¢ $ 11253 $ — $ — $ 532,28:
- - 37,97¢ - (37,976 -
$186,57! $233,17¢ $ 150500 $ — $ (37,976 $ 532,28
$(29,400 $ (4,717 $ 961 $(16,98) $ (679 $ (42,159
$170,88: $172,34( $ 87,48 $23,73¢ $ (2,959 $ 451,48:
$ 3,48¢ $ 5,83¢ $ 447C $ 1,462 $ — $ 15,257
$ 4,32¢ $ 4,93¢ $ 397 $ 392 $ — $ 13,62

F-38




Table of Contents

OSI SYSTEMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

The following tables present the revenues and ifiglole assets by geographical area (in thousands):

2005
North Total
America Europe Asia Eliminations Consolidatec
Revenues
External customer reven! $293,87. $ 69,61¢ $2155: % — $ 385,04
Revenue between product segme 7,67¢ — 10,73 (18,417) —
Total revenue $301,55( $ 69,61¢  $32,28¢ $ (18,41) $ 385,04:
Long-lived asset: $ 8153( $2542¢ $ 2,38 $ 109,33t
2006
North Total
America Europe Asia Eliminations Consolidatec
Revenues
External customer reven! $324,03. $105,55: $23,10: $ — $ 452,68¢
Revenue between product segme 16,45 — 12,44¢ (28,897 —
Total revenus $340,48.  $105,55. $35,54¢ $ (28,897) $ 452,68t
Long-lived asset: $ 84,76( $ 30,92( $ 3,768 $ 119,44:
2007
North Total
America Europe Asia Eliminations Consolidatec
Revenues
External customer reveni $333,90: $152,56! $45,817 % — $ 532,28
Revenue between product segme 20,81« — 17,16: (37,976 —
Total revenus $354,71¢  $152,56!  $62,97¢ $ (37,97¢ $ 532,28
Long-lived asset: $94,16( $ 29,95¢ $ 6,79i $ 130,91!
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Description

Balance for doubtful account
Year ended June 30, 20

Year ended June 30, 20
Year ended June 30, 20

Balance for warranty reser'
Year ended June 30, 20

Year ended June 30, 20
Year ended June 30, 20

(1) This amount includes a $2,148 change in estimatthéowarranty reserve in fiscal 20(

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(In thousands)

Additions
Balance a
Charged
Beginning Charged
to costs in other
of period and expense accounts
$ 774 $ 4,00¢ $ —
$ 4,682 $ 2,79 —
$ 2,99¢ $ 1,867 —
$ 9,19( $ 5,55¢ $ 464
$ 6,641 $ 6,60¢ $ —
$ 7,22¢ $ 3,79¢ $ 43¢

F-40

Deductions-

Write-offs

$ 97
4,47¢
$ 2,85¢

»

8,574(1)
6,02¢
$ 4,01¢

& ||~

end of
eriod
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

OSI SYSTEMS, INC
(Registrant

Date: September 11, 2007 By: /sl ALAN E DRICK

Alan Edrick, Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons, on
behalf of the registrant, and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s DEEPAKC HOPRA Chairman of the Board, September 11, 2007
Deepak Chopra President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal

Executive Officer,

/s ALAN E DRICK Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and September 11, 2007
Alan Edrick Accounting Officer)
/sl Aiay M EHRA Executive Vice President, President of Rapiscan September 11, 2007
Ajay Mehra Systems and Directc
/sl LEesLIEE. BIDER Director September 11, 2007
Leslie E. Bider
/s/  STEVEN C. GooD Director September 11, 2007
Steven C. Good
/s/  MEYERL USKIN Director September 11, 2007
Meyer Luskin
/s CHAND R. V ISWANATHAN Director September 11, 2007

Chand R. Viswanathan
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EXHIBIT 10.23
September 10, 2007

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL OR HAND DELIVERY

Deepak Chopra
President and CEO

Re: Letter Agreement for Payments upon a Change iontrol

Dear Mr. Chopra:

This Letter Agreement provides for the paymentda gf certain sums if (A) your employment by OSE®@&yms, Inc. or one of its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”, and sechployment shall be referred to as the “Employrésterminated by the Company
without cause within 12 months after a Change int@d, or (B) you terminate the Employment for Gd®eason within 12 months after a
Change in Control.

If the circumstances described in (A) or (B) abogeur while this letter agreement is in effect, whiall be entitled to the following:
(i) an amount equal to 12 months’ base salary at tfeen-current rate; (i) an amount equal to 5@gour bonus for the prior year; and
(iii) any unvested stock options and other equitpaias subject to a vesting schedule and previgyrsigted to you shall become fully vested
and (where applicable) exercisable. Payment @@ (ii) shall be made in a single lump-sum casghrant, less appropriate deductions and
withholding, on the last day of the Employment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you are a “spegfemployee” (as defined under Section 409A ofitibernal Revenue Code) and to
the extent the “short-term deferraXception under Section 409A does not apply, timgnpayments to which you are entitled under thidet
Agreement shall be paid to you by the Company gh@and in full, as soon as practicable followingrabnths after your “separation from
service” with the Company (as such phrase is ddfin&section 409A). If you die before all severapegments have been paid, such unpaid
amounts shall be paid as soon as practicable fwitpyour death to the personal representative of gstate. Within five days of your
request, the Company shall provide you with a emittletailed explanation of the Company’s analygiperting its determination that you
constitute a “specified employee” (as defined uriieetion 409A) and that any payment is covereddmnti@n 409A.

For the purposes of this letter, the following défons shall apply:

“Change in Control” means the acquisition, by airparty or a “group” (as defined in Section 188)lpf the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended), of equity in OSI Systems,refresenting a majority of the voting power inl @gstems, Inc.

“Good Reason,” shall mean the occurrence of arthefollowing events unless the Employee speciiicagrees in writing that such
event is not Good Reason:

1. Any substantial reduction in duties;

2. Following a Change in Control, the relocatioryofir principal office location more than 75 mifesm its location as of the date of
this letter;

3. Your base salary is reduced from any prior yextept for a reduction: (a) of 10% or less, (n)d@eriod of one year or less, and
(c) which is compensated with substantially equaalalue through a grant of stock options, retgdstock or some other form of
compensation; or

4. Any material breach of any written Employmentégment by the Company that is not cured withitod€iness days after written
notice from you.

From time to time the Company is expected to chdings of reporting. It is agreed that changesned of reporting, of itself, will not
constitute*Good Reasc”.



Unless the Company provides a notice of renew#lisfLetter Agreement prior to its expiration, thistter Agreement shall expire on
(i) the first anniversary of the date first writtahove, if no Change in Control occurs earlier(iipif any Change in Control should occur
during the term of this Letter Agreement, the digrahe first anniversary of the first such Chang€ontrol. Nothing in this Letter
Agreement shall interfere with or limit in any wthe right of the Company or of any of its affiliate terminate the Employment at any time,
nor confer upon Employee any right to continuehia ¢mploy of the Company or any of its affiliates.

This Letter Agreement constitutes the entire agezdrhetween us pertaining to the subject mattexdiend supersedes and preempts
any prior understandings, agreements or represamdty or between the parties, written or oraliclvhmay have related in any manner to
subject matters addressed in this Letter AgreenNmsupplement, modification or amendment of thestér Agreement shall be binding
unless it is written and signed by all the partigse rule that a contract is construed againspérty drafting the contract is waived, and shall
have no applicability in construing this Letter Agment or its terms. To the extent that you hgme@xisting written employment agreem
with the Company, such employment agreement coasiiu full force and effect except as amended Isyltbtter Agreement.

This Letter Agreement shall be construed in acawdavith and governed by the laws of the Stateadif@nia. Any disagreement
relating to or arising out of this Letter Agreemshall be resolved solely through arbitration by &merican Arbitration Association under
then-applicable rules. The parties agree thatcéibias or proceedings arising directly or indirgdtbm this Letter Agreement shall be
arbitrated or litigated by arbitrators or in coddsated within the County of Los Angeles, Califiarand hereby consent to the jurisdiction of
any such local, state or federal court, and ago¢éondisturb such choice of forum.

Please acknowledge your agreement to the ternelstathis Letter Agreement by countégning where indicated below, and returr
a counter-signed copy of this Letter Agreement & m

Very truly yours,
/s/ VICTORSZE
Victor Sze
General Counse
AGREED:
/s/ DEEPAK C HOPRA
Deepak Chopr Date: September 10, 20!



EXHIBIT 10.24
September 11, 2007
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL OR HAND DELIVERY

Ajay Mehra
Re: Letter Agreement for Payments upon a Change i€ontrol

Dear Ajay:

This Letter Agreement provides for the paymentda gf certain sums if (A) your employment by Rapis&ystems Holdings, Inc. or
one of its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Compgrand such employment shall be referred to asHEneployment”) is terminated by the
Company without cause within 12 months after a @ean Control, or (B) you terminate the EmploymiamtGood Reason within 12 months
after a Change in Control.

If the circumstances described in (A) or (B) abogeur while this letter agreement is in effect, whiall be entitled to the following:
(i) an amount equal to 12 months’ base salary at ffeen-current rate; (i) an amount equal to 5@gowr bonus for the prior year; and
(iii) any unvested stock options and other equitiuas subject to a vesting schedule and previaysigted to you shall become fully vested
and (where applicable) exercisable. Payment @@ (ii) shall be made in a single lump-sum casghrant, less appropriate deductions and
withholding, on the last day of the Employment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you are a “speaifemployee” (as defined under Section 409A oflitibernal Revenue Code) and to
the extent the “short-term deferra%ception under Section 409A does not apply, tignpayments to which you are entitled under thiet
Agreement shall be paid to you by the Company ghaad in full, as soon as practicable followingrabnths after your “separation from
service” with the Company (as such phrase is ddfin&section 409A). If you die before all severapegments have been paid, such unpaid
amounts shall be paid as soon as practicable foipyour death to the personal representative of gstate. Within five days of your
request, the Company shall provide you with a emittletailed explanation of the Company’s analygigperting its determination that you
constitute a “specified employee” (as defined uriieetion 409A) and that any payment is covereddmti@n 409A.

For the purposes of this letter, the following d#fons shall apply:

“Change in Control” means the acquisition, by ay&rparty or a “group” (as defined in Section 188)lpf the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended), other than OSI Systemspints subsidiaries, of equity in Rapiscan Systéetoklings, Inc. representing a majority of
the voting power in Rapiscan Systems Holdings, Inc.

“Good Reason,” shall mean the occurrence of arthefollowing events unless the Employee speciiicagrees in writing that such
event is not Good Reason:
1. Any substantial reduction in duties;

2. Following a Change in Control, the relocatioryofir principal office location more than 75 mifesm its location as of the date of
this letter;

3. Your base salary is reduced from any prior yercept for a reduction: (a) of 10% or less, (b)d@eriod of one year or less, and
(c) which is compensated with substantially equaalalue through a grant of stock options, retgdstock or some other form of
compensation; or

4. Any material breach of any written Employmentégment by the Company that is not cured withitbd€iness days after written
notice from you.

From time to time the Company is expected to chdings of reporting. It is agreed that changesned of reporting, of itself, will not
constitute"Good Reasc”.



Unless the Company provides a notice of renew#lisfLetter Agreement prior to its expiration, thistter Agreement shall expire on
(i) the first anniversary of the date first writtahove, if no Change in Control occurs earlier(iipif any Change in Control should occur
during the term of this Letter Agreement, the digrahe first anniversary of the first such Chang€ontrol. Nothing in this Letter
Agreement shall interfere with or limit in any wthe right of the Company or of any of its affiliate terminate the Employment at any time,
nor confer upon Employee any right to continuehia ¢mploy of the Company or any of its affiliates.

This Letter Agreement constitutes the entire agmdrhetween us pertaining to the subject matterdiemd supersedes and preempts
any prior understandings, agreements or represamdty or between the parties, written or oraliclvhmay have related in any manner to
subject matters addressed in this Letter AgreenNmsupplement, modification or amendment of thestér Agreement shall be binding
unless it is written and signed by all the partidse rule that a contract is construed againsp#ty drafting the contract is waived, and shall
have no applicability in construing this Letter A&gment or its terms. To the extent that you hgue@xisting written employment agreem
with the Company, such employment agreement coasiu full force and effect except as amended lsyltbtter Agreement.

This Letter Agreement shall be construed in acamdavith and governed by the laws of the Stateadif@nia. Any disagreement
relating to or arising out of this Letter Agreemehtll be resolved solely through arbitration by &merican Arbitration Association under
then-applicable rules. The parties agree thatcéibias or proceedings arising directly or indirgdtbm this Letter Agreement shall be
arbitrated or litigated by arbitrators or in coddsated within the County of Los Angeles, Califiarand hereby consent to the jurisdiction of
any such local, state or federal court, and agoe¢ondisturb such choice of forum.

Please acknowledge your agreement to the ternesigtathis Letter Agreement by coungggning where indicated below, and returr
a counter-signed copy of this Letter Agreement & m

Very truly yours,

/s|  DEeePAK C HOPRA

Deepak Chopr
Chief Executive Office

AGREED:

/sl AJAY M EHRA Date: September 10, 20
Ajay Mehra




EXHIBIT 10.25
September 10, 2007
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL OR HAND DELIVERY

Victor Sze
General Counsel

Re: Letter Agreement for Payments upon a Change i€ontrol

Dear Mr. Sze:

This Letter Agreement provides for the paymentda gf certain sums if (A) your employment by OSkf&yns, Inc. or one of its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”, and sechployment shall be referred to as the “Employasterminated by the Company
without cause within 12 months after a Change int@x, or (B) you terminate the Employment for Gd®eason within 12 months after a
Change in Control.

If the circumstances described in (A) or (B) abogeur while this letter agreement is in effect, whall be entitled to the following:
(i) an amount equal to 12 months’ base salary at ffeen-current rate; (i) an amount equal to 5@gowr bonus for the prior year; and
(iii) any unvested stock options and other equitias subject to a vesting schedule and previaysigted to you shall become fully vested
and (where applicable) exercisable. Payment @@ (ii) shall be made in a single lump-sum cashrgant, less appropriate deductions and
withholding, on the last day of the Employment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you are a “speaifemployee” (as defined under Section 409A oflitibernal Revenue Code) and to
the extent the “short-term deferra%ception under Section 409A does not apply, tgnpayments to which you are entitled under thitet
Agreement shall be paid to you by the Company ghaad in full, as soon as practicable followingrabnths after your “separation from
service” with the Company (as such phrase is ddfinesection 409A). If you die before all severapagments have been paid, such unpaid
amounts shall be paid as soon as practicable foipyour death to the personal representative of gstate. Within five days of your
request, the Company shall provide you with a emittletailed explanation of the Company’s analygigperting its determination that you
constitute a “specified employee” (as defined urBieetion 409A) and that any payment is covereddmnti@n 409A.

For the purposes of this letter, the following d#fons shall apply:

“Change in Control” means the acquisition, by ajirparty or a “group” (as defined in Section 188lpf the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended), of equity in OSI Systems,reiresenting a majority of the voting power inl@gstems, Inc.

“Good Reason,” shall mean the occurrence of arth@following events unless the Employee speciiicadrees in writing that such
event is not Good Reason:
1. Any substantial reduction in duties;

2. Following a Change in Control, the relocatioryoiir principal office location more than 75 mifesm its location as of the date of
this letter;

3. Your base salary is reduced from any prior yextept for a reduction: (a) of 10% or less, (n)d@eriod of one year or less, and
(c) which is compensated with substantially eqmavalue through a grant of stock options, retstticstock or some other form of
compensation; or

4. Any material breach of any written Employmentégment by the Company that is not cured withitod€iness days after written
notice from you



From time to time the Company is expected to chédinge of reporting. It is agreed that changesriad of reporting, of itself, will not
constitute “Good Reason”.

Unless the Company provides a notice of renewttlisfLetter Agreement prior to its expiration, thistter Agreement shall expire on
(i) the first anniversary of the date first writtahove, if no Change in Control occurs earlier(iipif any Change in Control should occur
during the term of this Letter Agreement, the dfgrahe first anniversary of the first such Chang€ontrol. Nothing in this Letter
Agreement shall interfere with or limit in any wthe right of the Company or of any of its affiliate terminate the Employment at any time,
nor confer upon Employee any right to continuehia ¢émploy of the Company or any of its affiliates.

This Letter Agreement constitutes the entire agesdrhetween us pertaining to the subject mattexdiend supersedes and preempts
any prior understandings, agreements or represamdty or between the parties, written or oraliclvhmay have related in any manner to
subject matters addressed in this Letter AgreenNmsupplement, modification or amendment of thestér Agreement shall be binding
unless it is written and signed by all the partigse rule that a contract is construed againspérty drafting the contract is waived, and shall
have no applicability in construing this Letter Agment or its terms. To the extent that you hgme@xisting written employment agreem
with the Company, such employment agreement coasiiu full force and effect except as amended Isyltbtter Agreement.

This Letter Agreement shall be construed in acamdavith and governed by the laws of the Stateadif@nia. Any disagreement
relating to or arising out of this Letter Agreemehtll be resolved solely through arbitration by &merican Arbitration Association under
then-applicable rules. The parties agree thatcéibias or proceedings arising directly or indirgdtbm this Letter Agreement shall be
arbitrated or litigated by arbitrators or in coddsated within the County of Los Angeles, Califiarand hereby consent to the jurisdiction of
any such local, state or federal court, and agoé¢ondisturb such choice of forum.

Please acknowledge your agreement to the terneslgtathis Letter Agreement by coungggning where indicated below, and returr
a counter-signed copy of this Letter Agreement & m

Very truly yours,

/s/ DEEPAK CHOPRA
Deepak Chopr
Chief Executive Office

AGREED:

/sl VICTOR SZE Date: September 10, 20!
Victor Sze




EXHIBIT 10.26
February 28, 2007
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL OR HAND DELIVERY
Re: Letter Agreement for Payments upon a Change i€ontrol

Dear Manoocher:

This Letter Agreement provides for the paymentda gf certain sums if (A) your employment by OSlt@gectronics, Inc. or one of |
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”, and sechployment shall be referred to as the “Employasterminated by the Company
without cause within 12 months after a Change int@x, or (B) you terminate the Employment for Gd®eason within 12 months after a
Change in Control.

If the circumstances described in (A) or (B) abogeur while this letter agreement is in effect, whall be entitled to the following:
(i) an amount equal to 12 months’ base salary at tfeen-current rate; (i) an amount equal to 5@gor bonus for the prior year; and
(iii) any unvested stock options and other equitias subject to a vesting schedule and previaysigted to you shall become fully vested
and (where applicable) exercisable. Payment @@ (ii) shall be made in a single lump-sum cashrgant, less appropriate deductions and
withholding, on the last day of the Employment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you are a “spegfemployee” (as defined under Section 409A ofitibernal Revenue Code) and to
the extent the “short-term deferra%ception under Section 409A does not apply, tgnpayments to which you are entitled under thitet
Agreement shall be paid to you by the Company ghaad in full, as soon as practicable followingrabnths after your “separation from
service” with the Company (as such phrase is ddfinesection 409A). If you die before all severapagments have been paid, such unpaid
amounts shall be paid as soon as practicable fuwitpyour death to the personal representative of gstate. Within five days of your
request, the Company shall provide you with a emittletailed explanation of the Company’s analygigperting its determination that you
constitute a “specified employee” (as defined urieetion 409A) and that any payment is covereddmntiGn 409A.

For the purposes of this letter, the following défons shall apply:

“Change in Control” means the acquisition, by airparty or a “group” (as defined in Section 188)lpf the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended), other than OSI Systemspirts subsidiaries, of equity in OSI Optoelectamilnc. representing a majority of the
voting power in OSI Optoelectronics, Inc.

“Good Reason,” shall mean the occurrence of arth@following events unless the Employee specificadrees in writing that such
event is not Good Reason:
1. Any substantial reduction in duties;

2. Following a Change in Control, the relocatioryoiir principal office location more than 75 mifesm its location as of the date of
this letter;

3. Your base salary is reduced from any prior yercept for a reduction: (a) of 10% or less, (b)d@eriod of one year or less, and
(c) which is compensated with substantially eqmavalue through a grant of stock options, retsttistock or some other form of
compensation; or

4. Any material breach of any written Employmentégment by the Company that is not cured withitod€iness days after written
notice from you.

From time to time the Company is expected to chédinge of reporting. It is agreed that changesriad of reporting, of itself, will not
constitute“Good Reasc”.



Unless the Company provides a notice of renew#lisfLetter Agreement prior to its expiration, thistter Agreement shall expire on
(i) the first anniversary of the date first writtahove, if no Change in Control occurs earlier(iipif any Change in Control should occur
during the term of this Letter Agreement, the digrahe first anniversary of the first such Chang€ontrol. Nothing in this Letter
Agreement shall interfere with or limit in any wthe right of the Company or of any of its affiliate terminate the Employment at any time,
nor confer upon Employee any right to continuehia ¢mploy of the Company or any of its affiliates.

This Letter Agreement constitutes the entire agmdrhetween us pertaining to the subject matterdiemd supersedes and preempts
any prior understandings, agreements or represamdty or between the parties, written or oraliclvhmay have related in any manner to
subject matters addressed in this Letter AgreenNmsupplement, modification or amendment of thestér Agreement shall be binding
unless it is written and signed by all the partidse rule that a contract is construed againsp#ty drafting the contract is waived, and shall
have no applicability in construing this Letter A&gment or its terms. To the extent that you hgue@xisting written employment agreem
with the Company, such employment agreement coasiu full force and effect except as amended lsyltbtter Agreement.

This Letter Agreement shall be construed in acamdavith and governed by the laws of the Stateadif@nia. Any disagreement
relating to or arising out of this Letter Agreemehtll be resolved solely through arbitration by &merican Arbitration Association under
then-applicable rules. The parties agree thatcéibias or proceedings arising directly or indirgdtbm this Letter Agreement shall be
arbitrated or litigated by arbitrators or in coddsated within the County of Los Angeles, Califiarand hereby consent to the jurisdiction of
any such local, state or federal court, and agoe¢ondisturb such choice of forum.

Please acknowledge your agreement to the ternesigtathis Letter Agreement by coungggning where indicated below, and returr
a counter-signed copy of this Letter Agreement & m

Very truly yours,
/s/  DEePAKC HOPRA
Deepak Chopr
Chief Executive Office
AGREED:
/s/  MANOOCHERM ANSOURI Date: February 28, 20(

Manoocher Mansou



SUBSIDIARIES OF OSI SYSTEMS, INC.

Blease Medical Holdings Limite
Corrigan Canada, Lt

CXR Limited

Dolphin Medical, Inc

Dolphin Medical Pte Ltd

Ferson Technologies, In

Metorex Security Products, In
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OSI Defense Systems, LL
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OSI Electronics Pte. Lt
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Spacelabs Healthcare (Canada)
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Spacelabs Healthcare Gml
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Spacelabs Healthcare Pte. L

Spacelabs Healthcare S,

Spacelabs Healthcare Trading (Shanghai) Co.,
Spacelabs Healthcare LL

Spacelabs Medical, In
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Ontario, Canad
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Hong Kong

Salfords, United Kingdor

Santa Clara, Californi
Espoo, Finlant
Andhra Pradesh, Ind
Singapore

Johor Bahru, Malaysi
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Issaquah, Washingtc
Andhra Pradesh, Ind
Ontario, Canad
Espoo, Finlant
Feucht, German
Chesham, United Kingdo!
Singapore

Creteil, France
Shanghai, Chin
Issaquah, Washingtc
Issaquah, Washingtc

EXHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
OSI Systems, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement Nos. 333-106176, 333-122673;68133 and 333-132142 on
Form S-8 and in Registration Statement Nos. 3337049333-75228, 333-73618, 333-100791 and 333-1®dAlForm S-3 of our report
dated September 28, 2005, relating to the congelidinancial statements and financial statememedgle of OSI Systems, Inc. and
subsidiaries, appearing in this Annual Report omFd0-K of OSI Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries lieryear ended June 30, 2007.

/s/  DeLOITTE& T OUcHELLP
Los Angeles, Californii
September 11, 20(




EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
OSI Systems, Inc.

We consent to the inclusion in this Annual Repaorform 10-K of OSI Systems, Inc. for the year endigne 30, 2007 and to the
incorporation by reference in Registration Stateisien Forms S-8 (No. 333-106176, 333-122674, 33®88%nd 333-132142) and in
Registration Statements on Forms S-3 (No. 333-149383-75228, 333-73618, 333-100791 and 333-1013f165I Systems, Inc. of our
report dated September 11, 2007 appearing in Itemtt8s Annual Report on Form 10-K, on the cordatéed financial statements and
financial statement schedule, which appears in @dedl of this Form 10-K, and of our report dateeptember 11, 2007 with respect to
managemens$ assessment of the effectiveness of internal aloower financial reporting and the effectivenesternal control over financi
reporting, which report is included in Item 9 insthnnual Report on Form 10-K.

/sl MossA pAvs LLP

Los Angeles, Californii
September 11, 20C




EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Deepak Chopra, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of OSI Systems, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omsgitéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: September 11, 2007

/s|  DEEPAK C HOPRA

Deepak Chopr
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Alan Edrick, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of OSI Systems, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttéde a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentet
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Hd)) and internal controls over financial repat(as defined in Exchange
Act Rule 13i-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

(b) Designed such internal controls over financial répg, or caused such internal controls over finaneporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

() Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsdtsclosure controls and procedures and presemtads report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesftf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluetiimernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardioéctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir
Date: September 11, 2007

/s/ ALAN E DRICK
Alan Edrick
Chief Financial Officel




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of OSI Systems. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded June 30, 2007 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Deepak Chopra, Chieécutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agpsstbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxtewpf 2002, that:

(&) The Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934, as amended; and

(b) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
Company at the dates and for the periods presémtbis Report.

Date: September 11, 2007

/s/ DEEPAK C HOPRA

Deepak Chopr
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of OSI Systems. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded June 30, 2007 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tie hereof (the “Report”), I, Alan Edrick, Chighkncial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18, U.S.C. Section 1350, ampsetl pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Qddewpf 2002, that:

(&) The Report fully complies with the requiremeunit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934, as amended; and

(b) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
Company at the dates and for the periods presémtbds Report.

Date: September 11, 2007
/s/  ALAN E DRICK

Alan Edrick
Chief Financial Officel




